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Interim Results 2024:
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Interim dividend

Special interim dividend
Dividend payment date
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HK1.0 cent per ordinary share
HK3.0 cents per ordinary share
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(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified) 2024
(LB EETBEN » BREFZHI) z —E-NE
Turnover 2] 5,585 5,367 6,059 8,043 7,352
Profit for the year attributable to KRR EBERES

ordinary equity holders of the Company L AEE T 116 132 75 191 274
Total equity AR 4,769 4,793 5,016 5,436 5,400
Total assets MEE 6,888 7,108 6,947 8,978 8,740
Total liabilities to total equity ratio (times) A& ERAERLZ(5E) 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.7 0.6
Total interest-bearing debts to B S EREAER

total equity ratio (times) LR (L) 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2
Current ratio (times) BNt (EE) 28 3.0 3.0 2.1 2.2
Trade and bills receivables EWETREE

to turnover (days) HEX®(A) 61 63 48 51 58
Inventories to turnover (days) BEEEREH) 81 105 922 113 119
Net assets per share (HK cents) BREEFEBEML) 345 347 364 394 391
Return on total assets (%) BEERIRE%) 1.7 1.9 181 2.1 3.1
Return on turnover (%) EEIEOIREY) 2.1 2.5 1.2 24 37
Interest cover (times) FEREL =) 2 4 3 7 15
EBITDA BB EREBHEAFIE 593 589 471 671 903
EBITDA on turnover (%) BB ER

BEAFBEE8(%) 10.3 11.0 7.8 8.3 123

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) EAGRERIBEL) 8.4 9.6 5.4 13.8 19.8
Dividends per share (HK cents) BRBRE CBE)) 10.0 7.0 20.0 18.0 15.0
Dividend yield (%) % S 3R (%) 14.3 96 14.8 12.3 84
Number of issued shares (million) ERITRAEEB (BE) 1,382 1,382 1,382 1,382 1,382
Number of employees: EEAY:

Hong Kong &H 563 646 605 583 555

Mainland China FEIARE 7,582 8,174 9,049 11,844 11,981

Vietnam and Indonesia BERORE 1,654 1,029 130 62 -
Total sy 9,799 9,849 9,784 12,489 12,53
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Notes:

Financial and Operational Highlights B iR £ KR E

Interest cover was calculated by dividing the profit before interest and tax
by the interest expenses.

EBITDA is the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
expenses.

Number of shares was on weighted average basis.

Dividend yield was calculated by dividing the dividends per share by the
closing market price per share as at the end of the respective reporting
period.

The financial results of the above refer to the results of the Group for each
financial year. And, the other figures used were the position of the Group as
at the end of the respective reporting period.
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Chairman’s Statement E[EiREE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Texwinca Holdings
Limited (“Texwinca” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”), | am pleased to present the consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 and provide an overview of
our strategies and prospects.

EARNINGS AND DIVIDENDS

For the reporting year, the Group'’s revenue increased by 4.1% to
HK$5,585 million (2024: HK$5,367 million), and gross profit decreased
by 6.3% to HK$1,320 million (2024: HK$1,409 million). The Group's
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company was
HK$116 million, representing a decrease of 12.1% compared with
HK$132 million reported for 2024. The Board has resolved to propose
a final dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share. In celebration of the
50th anniversary of the Group, the Board has also resolved to propose a
special final dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share, together with
the interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share and a special
interim dividend of HK3.0 cents per ordinary share paid on 8 January
2025, will make a total dividend of HK10.0 cents per ordinary share.
Based on the core profit attributable to the Company’s ordinary equity
holders, excluding gain from resumption of land and buildings, of
HK$89 million, the dividend payout ratio (excluding special dividend) is
76.9% for the core profit.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the reporting year, the Group’s textile and garment businesses
navigated a complex macroeconomic landscape, balancing challenges
with strategic progress. The ramp up and integration of the Group's
production facility in Vietnam acquired in November 2023, enhanced
our business competency and diversity. This drove modest revenue
growth by enabling the Group to secure new export customers and
orders. Meanwhile, our business in China remained stable, despite
cautious consumer behavior persisting amid a modest recovery in
economy. Geopolitical uncertainties, particularly in the latter half of
the year, slowed down order growth, with the United States apparel
retailers adopted cautious strategies in response to new trade policies.
Despite these challenges, Texwinca was able to achieve encouraging
revenue growth, yet overall gross margins squeezed, partly due to the
Vietnam factory’s early-stage operations, where margins were not yet
optimized.

Amid these challenges, Texwinca continued to pursue its “China+1"
strategy, leveraging dual production bases in Dongguan and Vietnam to
mitigate regional risks and provide diverse solutions to our customers.
Following the acquisition of the Vietnam facility in November 2023, full
operations commenced in early 2024, primarily for high-volume, lower-
complexity fabric lines at the initial stage. Meanwhile, our Dongguan
facility maintained its focus on high-margin, technically complex fabric
projects. This strategic segmentation allowed us to offer a balanced
price-quality proposition: cost-efficient production in Vietnam for
standard products and advanced processing expertise in China for
premium orders. With the “China+1" strategy, we also saw growing
interest from European and North American customers, which prefer
suppliers with multi-production locations amid ongoing U.S.-China
trade tensions.
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Chairman'’s Statement E[EiREE

As we steadily expanded the production capacity of our textile
operations, we concurrently refined our retail strategy, yielding
encouraging improvements. Our retail segment in Mainland China
experienced a consistent upturn starting in the beginning of the
reporting year, propelled by store network optimization and the
centralization of warehousing and administrative functions. These
initiatives drove substantial improvements in operational efficiency and
cost savings, effectively mitigating the adverse effects of weakened
consumer sentiment and adverse weather conditions. Additionally, our
e-commerce business continued to thrive, with gross merchandise value
(GMV) soaring twofold year-on-year to HK$659 million. Although our
Hong Kong retail operations encountered unprecedented challenges
that compromised outbound travel and cross-border shopping in
Shenzhen, along with a decrease in spending by travelers and the
growing influence of online shopping platforms, the operations have
demonstrated a steady recovery in the second half of the reporting
period, primarily fueled by targeted promotional campaigns.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

We are deeply committed to sustainable development throughout
our journey. Over the past year, we established the Sustainable
Development Committee, comprising three Executive Directors
and Senior Management from various departments, to drive our
sustainability agenda. Our dedication to reducing carbon emissions
is reflected in our daily operations, including the installation of solar
panels, a coal-to-gas conversion project, and a grid-connected initiative.

In our upcoming 2025 Environmental, Social, and Governance Report,
we will disclose Scope 3 indirect greenhouse gas emissions data for the
first time, enhancing transparency regarding our environmental impact.
Additionally, we prioritize the research and development of green,
low-carbon textile products to meet the rising demand for sustainable
materials from our textile customers. This supports our customers’
environmental goals and strengthens long-term partnerships.

At Texwinca, sustainability is about more than minimizing our
environmental footprint — it's about creating value for our customers
and society. By embracing sustainable practices, we strive to build a
brighter future for our community and the planet.

OUTLOOK

The global economic landscape remains clouded by uncertainty,
primarily driven by the introduction of reciprocal tariff policies
worldwide in April 2025. These developments pose challenges to global
supply chains and market stability. Under this backdrop, Texwinca
will adopt a stance of cautious optimism, maintaining strategic
agility to navigate these complexities while capitalizing on emerging
opportunities.
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Chairman’s Statement E[EiREE

To mitigate risks and ensure operational resilience, we will continue to
pursue our “China+1" strategy, leveraging our dual production bases in
Dongguan and Vietnam. This model affords us the flexibility to allocate
production strategically, aligning with specific client needs to maximize
efficiency and responsiveness. Building on the strong performance
of our Vietnam facility in its inaugural year, we will further enhance
production capabilities by streamlining processes and providing
additional machines and facilities, as well as training for the labor
force, enabling the manufacture of higher-value products with a higher
average selling price (ASP). In response to the shifting global economic
environment, we will continuously evaluate the timeline for the second
phase of our Vietnam facility expansion, prioritizing fiscal prudence and
aligning capacity growth with projected order demand.

In our retail operations, we remain dedicated to delivering innovative
products that seamlessly integrate comfort, functionality, and
contemporary style to align with evolving consumer preferences. We
will enhance our supplier portfolio to reduce costs and streamline
production cycles, enabling us to launch products with superior cost-
effectiveness and quality. Following the successful consolidation of
our store network in Mainland China, we have effectively transitioned
Baleno from a traditional offline apparel retailer to an e-commerce-
centric leisure wear brand. This asset-light model positions us to capture
greater market share amidst intense competition in China. In Hong
Kong, our operations are showing encouraging signs of recovery from
recent challenges. We will continue to optimize and integrate our retail
network and deploy targeted marketing campaigns to boost demand
and elevate brand visibility. Concurrently, as we solidify our presence
in existing markets, we will diversify our market by expanding into
Southeast Asia, and exploring opportunities overseas.

50TH ANNIVERSARY APPRECIATION

This year marks an important milestone — the 50th anniversary of the
founding of Texwinca. This occasion is not merely our golden jubilee;
it is a testament to our collective achievements. Over the past half-
century, with the trust and collaboration of all stakeholders, we have
overcome countless challenges steadily, growing from a local small
enterprise into a multinational publicly listed group - a truly hard-
won accomplishment. Looking ahead, the Group will treat this golden
jubilee as a new starting point, steadfastly upholding our commitments
to delivering returns to our shareholders, maintaining quality for our
customers, fulfilling our corporate social responsibilities, and nurturing
our employees. We are confident that through continuous effort
and transformation, we will usher in brighter prospects in its future
developments. On behalf of the Board, | extend heartfelt gratitude our
shareholders, customers, partners, and all employees for their enduring
support.

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman
Hong Kong, 12 June 2025
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis B g 2 i

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

For this fiscal year ended 31 March 2025, the Group's total revenue
increased by 4.1% to HK$5,585 million (2024: HK$5,367 million). Owing
to the scale-up of the Vietnam facility and changes in our product mix,
the Group’s gross profit margin was 23.6% (2024: 26.3%), a decrease
of 2.7 percentage points from last year. Impacted by a number of non-
operating factors, including a HK$20 million increase in finance costs
due to acquisition and expansion of the Vietnam facility, HK$22 million
in carbon emission charge, a HK$15 million increase in freight costs
arising from the Red Sea crisis, as well as a HK$89 million gain from
resumption of the Guangzhou warehouses, the profit attributable to
the Company’s ordinary equity holders for the year totaled HK$116
million (2024: HK$132 million), reflecting a year-on-year decrease of
12.1%.

In line with its commitment to creating value to shareholders, the Board
has resolved to propose a final dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary
share (2024: HK2.0 cents) and a special final dividend of HK5.0 cents per
ordinary share. Combined with an interim dividend of HK1.0 cent (2024:
HK5.0 cents) and a special interim dividend of HK3.0 cents, the total
annual dividend for the year amounts to HK10.0 cents per ordinary
share (2024: HK7.0 cents). Based on the core profit attributable to the
Company'’s ordinary equity holders, excluding gain from resumption
of land and buildings of HK$89 million, the dividend payout ratio
(excluding special dividends) is 76.9% for the core profit.

Textile business

During the reporting year, the textile business achieved significant
progress despite challenging market conditions. The commencement
of mass production in Vietnam has established a new revenue stream
for the Group, driving growth primarily through new export orders to
overseas, while the business in China remained stable. Yet, escalating
concerns over trade tensions prompted retailers to adopt a more
cautious approach in the second half of the year, moderating this
segment’s growth momentum.

The textile business recorded revenue of HK$4,376 million for the fiscal
year, a 11.6% increase from HK$3,921 million in 2024, contributing
78.4% (2024: 73.1%) to the Group's total revenue. This growth was
primarily driven by the commencement of production in Vietnam, which
enabled the Group to secure additional orders from Japanese and
North American retailers seeking suppliers with diversified production
footprints.

The establishment of the strategic China-Vietnam dual-location model
has enabled the Group to provide flexible and tailored solutions that
meet customer needs and geographic preferences, helping us capture
orders from overseas clients. However, since the Vietnam facility was
still in its initial phase, margins were not yet optimized during the
reporting year, resulting in a gross profit margin of the textile business
of the Group decline of 1.0 percentage points to 15.3% (2024: 16.3%).
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
(continued)

Textile business (continued)

In recent months, the Group further optimized the production process
at the Vietnam facility. More advanced machines were deployed, and
the workforce has undergone comprehensive training programs to
enable the production of higher-value products. It is expected that the
product-mix of the Vietnam facility will align more closely with that of
the Dongguan facility in the foreseeable future, driving up margins and
profitability.

The performance and key financial ratios of the business were as

follows:

EBOERARER®)

I ()

A EEE-—SELCBRIRNEERRE  SHEE
SRENKERETAE TRMEEMNEI  UEE
ESMIMENER - SEFER - REBEIRONER
HERRERETIHRIER  FHEFNXRAFGEDR
N

WEB 2 RBERERIHLERNOT -

(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified) 2024

(KEBEEETREN  BEHEH) —E-ME

Net sales HEFHE 4,376 3,921 4,297 5,544 4,644
Gross profit margin (%) EFE%) 153 16.3 18.1 213 23.8
Operating profit (note 1) EERIBWEE) 168 193 171 564 567
EBITDA (note 2) B FERBMNAEW LY 490 476 408 790 771
Return on total assets (%) (note 3) BEEWSE(%)(1E3) 3.0 35 3.0 75 6.1
Return on sales (%) (note 3) SEEWNEER(%)(IE3) 4,0 5.7 43 10.1 9.2
Capital expenditure e NEF ] 290 166 246 251 126

Notes: (1) Exclude interest income, rental income, finance cost, income tax  ffat : (1) TEIZFEKA - HEKA > BHEEH - A7

expense, compensation for the loss of inventories due to a fire
accident and loss of inventories due to a fire accident.

(2) Exclude rental income, finance cost, income tax expense,
depreciation, compensation for the loss of inventories due to a fire
accident and loss of inventories due to a fire accident.

(3) Exclude rental income.

Retail and distribution business

The revenue of the retail and distribution business decreased by 16.4%
to HK$1,207 million (2024: HK$1,443 million), accounting for 21.6%
(2024: 26.9%) of the Group’s total turnover. The gross profit margin
of retail and distribution business was 53.9%, representing an increase
of 0.6 percentage points from last year’s 53.3%. The revenue from
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Indonesia accounted for 50.0%, 46.6%
and 3.4% of the segment revenue, respectively.

In the Mainland China market, the Group successfully transitioned
from a traditional offline retailer to an e-commerce-focused leisure
wear brand through strategic adjustments, broadening its coverage
nationwide and achieving impressive e-commerce sales growth. By
prioritizing “functionality” and “value for money,” the Group expanded
its reach across China via leading e-commerce platforms, achieving a
gross merchandise value (GMV) of HK$659 million, a remarkable year-
on-year increase of 170.1%.
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
(continued)

Retail and distribution business (continued)

Concurrently, the Group further optimized its physical sales network
in Mainland China by closing underperforming self-operated stores,
resulting in a net closure of 94 self-operated shops during the reporting
year, representing 29.8% of its self-operated shops in the market. The
remaining stores are more profitable and located mainly in Guangdong
Province, where Baleno has a strong presence and brand influence.
Attributing to a combination of factors, including the closure of stores
as part of the optimization plan, as well as external challenges such as
abnormal weather conditions and weakened consumer sentiment, the
sales from the Mainland China market for the reporting year decreased
by 26.0% to HK$604 million. However, amidst this sales drop, the Group
achieved a positive outcome in its loss reduction. This improvement was
supported by two key developments: the rapid growth of e-commerce
business, and significant cost savings from optimization of the physical
store network and integration of warehouse, administration, and
marketing resources at the Dongguan base.

The Group's operations in Hong Kong experienced a challenging year,
with sales declined to HK$562 million (2024: HK$594 million), primarily

w ou

due to the combined impact of “northbound consumption”, “outbound
tourism”, reduced spending by travelers, and the increasing influence of
online shopping platforms. In response to these formidable challenges,
the Group swiftly adjusted its marketing strategy. Building on the
success of products valued for functionality and comfort, the Group
pivoted to emphasize “value for money” offerings, launching targeted
promotional campaigns designed to appeal to price-sensitive consumers.
This strategic shift mitigated the sales downturn in the second half
of the fiscal year. To further strengthen its operational resilience, the
Group will continue to optimize and integrate its sales network in
Hong Kong to enhance profitability. These measures underscored the
Group's disciplined approach to cost management and its commitment
to optimizing its retail presence in a challenging market.
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HmiSHEEEN29.8%  c BRNELEEREESE
FEEH - BEE{MMBalenomEEBERREEH
BREME - SECHETERBIBEE - EER
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BB TBATSERES  ZEBEEBREER
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT #KEIRERKKNKER &)

(continued)

Retail and distribution business (continued) BENDHEEK(E)

(a) the performance and key financial ratios of the business were as  (a) 2(KXBERIEHELLZRIIMT :
follows:

(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified) 2024

(LB EETAEN  BREIZHI)) “ECME

Net sales HEFH 1,207 1,443 1,761 2,496 2,705
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE(%) 53.9 533 44.9 453 44.1
Sales growth of comparable shops A ttfERSHER RECR (%) (H15E1)

(%) (note 1) (7.1) (5.5) (17.7) (4.8) (8.4)
Operating loss (note 2) EEEBWH2) (168) (114) (267) (289) (199)
EBITDA (note 3) BB ERESHRIFEE3) 18 74 (126) (26) 108
Return on total assets (%) (note 4)  BEEWER(%)(H:24) (8.0) (6.0) (12.8) (10.4) (6.9)
Return on sales (%) (note 4) HERER(%) (Ht4) (123) (8.2) (15.4) (10.9) (6.8)
Capital expenditure BAMTH 15 31 18 49 57

Notes: (1) Comparable shops include shops with full year operation B . (1) HHEHERZFREN—FIIEE
during the year and the preceding year. FEEER A
(2) Exclude interest income, rental income, finance cost, income 2) TEEFEKA HEWA > BHE
tax expense and gain from resumption of land and buildings. H - FEHERREHK L RESE
Wi as
(3) Exclude rental income, finance cost, income tax expense, (3) TEBEHLUA  BHEER - FriEH
depreciation and gain from resumption of land and buildings. B - TERFHK LB REZYN
o
(4) Exclude rental income. (4) TEEFHEEUA -
(b)  the analysis of turnover by major brand was as follows: (b) REIEZREEESNWOT :
(HK$'million)
(BEEET)
Baleno e 1,188 1,395 1,71 2,380 2,525
Others Hity 19 48 50 116 180
Total &5 1,207 1,443 1,761 2,496 2,705
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

(continued)
Retail and distribution business (continued)

()

the development in different markets was as follows:

Mainland China

Net sales (HK$'million) HETFHENEET)
Increase/(decrease) in net sales (%)  $HEFE2EM,/ A )(%)
Retail gross floor area (sq. ft.)** TEREEBE(FrR)*
Number of sales associates*# EXEgR
Number of outlets®* PIm g A

Hong Kong

i

EBOERARER®)
BERSHER(H)
© SEHHEREERMOT
P 3t
2024
—E-mE
604 816 1,105 1,936 2,184
(26) (26) (43) (1) 5
456,162 681,420 1,611,886 1,554,031 1,867,355
781 1,243 2,895 3,319 3,919
601 1,034 1,687 1,666 2,026
&8

2025

—ECRE

2024
—ECMmE
594 629
(6) 14
103,622 93,274
464 504
88 85

552

6
91,597
407
85

96,

521
(17)
516
377
88

Net sales (HK$'million) HWEFHREEET) 562
Increase/(decrease) in net sales (%) SEEFEE LM,/ (A ) (%) (5)
Retail gross floor area (sq. ft.)*¢ SERAERE(FrK) 98,139
Number of sales associates *# EXEHA 398
Number of outlets*# PImE A * 76
Z1)=1
Indonesia

2024
—ECmE
Net sales (HK$'million) HEFHEYEET) 4 33 27 8 =
Increase in net sales (%) SHEFE (%) N/A
24 2 238 TERA -
Retail gross floor area (sq. ft.)*¢ SERAERE(FrRK) 34,746 35,787 23,636 11,679 -
Number of sales associates** EEXEHA+ 148 146 110 62 -
Number of outlets*# PImE A * 13 14 8 4 =
* As at the end of the reporting period & RIEHR
# For self-managed stores # BEE
a Including self-managed stores, consignment stores and franchise a BIEBEE - BHEERISTRER
stores

RAERERRLF
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
(continued)

Other income and gains

Other income and gains increased by HK$2 million to HK$203 million
(2024: HK$201 million).

Compensation for the loss of inventories due to a fire accident

The insurance company paid remaining compensation for the loss
of inventories due to a fire accident to the Group in the prior year,
amounting to approximately HK$30 million.

Gain from resumption of land and buildings

The warehouses located at Guangzhou were resumed by the local
government and net gain from resumption of land and buildings of
HK$89 million was recognized during the year.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by HK$27 million to HK$78 million (2024: HK$51
million) mainly due to the increase in interest-bearing bank borrowings
in the second half of the prior year.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to maintain a sound financial position. The current
ratio, the total interest-bearing bank borrowings and the gearing ratio
as at the year end were 2.8, HK$846 million and -0.2 (2024: 3.0, HK$820
million and -0.2) respectively. Interest-bearing bank borrowings were
maintained during the year due to acquisition a subsidiary in Vietnam in
2024. The gearing ratio refers to the ratio of the total interest-bearing
debts, net of cash and cash equivalents, to the total equity.

During the year, the interest cover, the trade and bills receivables to
turnover and the inventories to turnover were 2.4 times, 61 days and
81 days (2024: 5 times, 63 days and 105 days) respectively. During the
reporting year, driven by active destocking strategies the inventories
decreased as at the reporting date, compared with that of last year. As
a result, the inventories to turnover decreased accordingly. The Group
mainly satisfied its funding requirements with cash inflow from its
operating activities and interest-bearing bank borrowings. At the year
end, the cash and cash equivalents, the equity attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company and the unutilized banking facilities
were HK$1,633 million, HK$4,764 million and HK$6,020 million (2024:
HK$1,555 million, HK$4,788 million and HK$6,399 million), respectively.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Capital expenditure

The capital expenditure incurred by the Group during the year was
HK$305 million (2024: HK$197 million). The capital expenditure incurred
by the textile and garment business for the year was HK$290 million
(2024: HK$166 million), of which HK$268 million (2024: HK$123 million)
was for the addition of plant and machinery for the dyeing, knitting
and garment factories and HK$22 million (2024: HK$43 million) was
for “Coal to Gas” conversion project. For the retail and distribution
business, our capital expenditure incurred for the year amounted
to HK$15 million (2024: HK$31 million), mainly for the addition of
leasehold improvements of the retail outlets.

Pledge of assets
No significant assets were pledged as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March
2024.

Contingent liabilities
Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March
2024 have been set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group continued to adopt a strict and prudent policy in managing
its interest rate and currency exchange risks. The major interest bearing
bank borrowings of the Group were HKD, USD, RMB and VND fixed
or floating rate borrowings with maturity due within two years (2024:
within three year). At the year end, the cash and cash equivalents,
debt instruments at amortised cost and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss were mainly denominated in HKD, RMB, USD
and VND. The cash and cash equivalents were placed as fixed deposits
with well established financial institutions at fixed interest rate with
maturity due within one year (2024: within one year). And, the debt
instruments at amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss were mainly fixed interest rate investments with maturity
due at perpetuity (2024: with maturity due at perpetuity). The Group
will continue to monitor the interest rate risk and arrange appropriate
financial instruments to reduce its risk whenever appropriate.

During the year, the major assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
procurements of the Group were denominated in HKD, USD, RMB,
VND and IDR (2024: HKD, USD and RMB) and the Group had arranged
foreign exchange forward contracts to reduce its currency exchange
risk.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Save as disclosed below, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had material acquisition or disposal during the year ended 31 March
2025.

On 26 June 2024, Guangzhou POSTech Technology Limited
("Guangzhou POSTech”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company), entered into the resumption compensation agreement with
Guangzhou Development District Key Project Promotion Centre for
the resumption of land and buildings, pursuant to which Guangzhou
POSTech shall receive an aggregate sum of RMB98 million (equivalent
to HK$106 million) as the resumption compensation for the relocation.

Details of the above matter in respect of resumption compensation
agreement can be referred to the announcement of the Company dated
28 June 2024.

HUMAN RESOURCES

At the year end, the Group had about 9,799 (2024: 9,849) employees
in the Greater China, Vietnam and Indonesia. The remuneration of the
employees was largely based on industry practice and the performance
of individual employee.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has ensured and continues to ensure full compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations that have significant impact on its
operations, including but not limited to laws and regulations in relation
to environmental protection, product safety and liabilities, customer
rights protection, employment and occupational safety.

The management will monitor the impact for any changes in the
relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek external
advice if considered necessary.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to promoting the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
has established environmental management system and energy
management system in the textile manufacturing operations in
accordance with international standards ISO 14001:2015 and ISO
50001:2018 respectively. The environmental management system
is reviewed from time to time in order to reduce risks related to
environmental issues. While the energy management system will enable
the Group to achieve continually improvement of energy performance,
and therefore reduce energy cost and greenhouse gas emissions in long
term.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE (continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group was in compliance
with the applicable environmental protection laws and regulations in
connection with waste water, greenhouse gas emission, as well as solid
waste generated from its textile manufacturing operations.

Relevant details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance
will be reported in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
of the Company (“ESG Report”). A separate 2025 ESG Report will be
published on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited at the same time as the publication of this
annual report in compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been active in
participating in charitable donation, caring for the needy people and
supporting and sponsoring educational and environmental protection
activities. In addition, we also encourage our employees, customers and
business partners to partake in the aforesaid activities with a view to
developing a better future for our community.

During the financial year, some of the activities/organisations the Group
participated in/donated or sponsored to were:

(1)

Educational Fund in Dongguan City of Guangdong Province;

(2)  Sponsorship for Dongguan Dragon Boat Competition;

(3)  Scholarship for Hunan Institute of Engineering;

(4) Scholarship for Hanoi University of Science and Technology in
Vietnam;

(5)  Funding for typhoon relief in Hai Ha District, Vietnam;

(6) The Community Chest of Hong Kong “Green Low Carbon Day"”;

(7)  Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong;

(8) St.James’ Settlement;

(9)  Chung Shak Hei (Cheung Chau) Home for the Aged;

(10) The Hong Kong Council of Social Service “Caring Company”; and

(11) WWF-Hong Kong.

The Group believes that the development of a better future for our
community relies on the participation of people, corporations and the
government. Therefore, we will continue to invest resources in all major
social, educational and environmental protection activities to strive for
a better future for our community.
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OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Group remains cautiously optimistic about both
the textile and retail markets. Despite challenges posed by persistently
high U.S. interest rates and intensifying global trade frictions, the
strategic realignments executed in recent years have significantly
strengthened our resilience against potential economic downturns.
These initiatives equip the Group with greater buffers, enabling us to
navigate uncertainties.

Echoing its “China+1" strategy, the Group will further optimize its
productions in Dongguan and Vietnam facilities. By streamlining
workflows and providing ongoing training for our production teams,
the Vietnam facility is poised to manufacture products with more
complex processes and higher average selling prices. Alongside
upgrades to production equipment, the Group will advance our digital
transformation initiatives to boost efficiency and realize cost savings.
The Vietnam facility not only strengthens our ability to secure orders
from North American and European retailers but also facilitates a
strategic division of orders between facilities, creating greater synergy
for the Group.

To support its commitment to sustainable development, the Group
will implement additional energy-saving measures in daily production
processes while increasing the adoption of renewable energy sources,
striving to achieve greener manufacturing practices. At the same time,
the Group will continue to enhance its product R&D efforts, focusing
on developing innovative fabrics that meet consumers’ needs while
adhering to environmental protection principles, thereby strengthening
our overall competitiveness.

In recent months, the Trump administration of the U.S. has imposed
reciprocal tariffs on key trading partners, including China and Vietnam,
where our production facilities are located. The Group is actively
monitoring these developments and, as a prudent measure, we
continuously evaluate the timeline for the second phase of our Vietnam
facility expansion to address the current global economic uncertainty.

For the retail and distribution business, the Group is confident that it is
on track to steadily restore profitability following a series of strategic
realignments. The e-commerce initiatives have delivered promising
results during the reporting year, and with the optimization of the
physical store network in Mainland China and Hong Kong markets, the
Group anticipates stronger synergies in the coming years. In addition,
the Group will strive to expand its supplier network to secure more cost-
effective production solutions, while shortening the production period
to fulfill the evolving market demand.

In addition to our established retail markets in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, the Group will pursue further expansion into new regions.
Building on prior success, overseas markets will serve as the cornerstone
of our next growth phase, offering diversified opportunities across
global territories, diversifying our market presence to mitigate over-
concentration risks and capitalize on emerging opportunities.
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Report of the Directors EE S 4

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting the
report and the audited financial statements of Texwinca Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities during the financial year consisted of
the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and garments;
the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessories, the
provision of franchise services and properties investment. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the financial year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong
Kong, including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group; material events that have occurred since the end of
the financial year; an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business; an analysis of the Group’s performance during the
financial year using financial key performance indicators; a discussion on
compliance with relevant laws and regulations; and a description of the
Group’s environmental policies and performance and corporate social
responsibility are contained in the preceding Chairman’s Statement
and Management'’s Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 6 to 8 and
pages 9 to 18, respectively, of this Annual Report. Those discussions
form part of this Report of the Directors.

In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk management are
disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2025 and the Group'’s
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 60 to 63.

An interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share and a special
interim dividend of HK3.0 cents per ordinary share were paid on 8
January 2025. The Board has resolved to propose a final dividend of
HK1.0 cent per ordinary share and a special final dividend of HK5.0
cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 3
September 2025.

ESEMAREBE-_E-HAF=A=+—HLEE
ZHEREKEEBARIR(ALE ) EEMBL
(G AEE ) 2 RERIBHRE -

EFREK

KRR EARKE 2 EREBEOESA - RORK
KReEHRER  EREANTERDE - BAHS
ARERBRNERE - FEEETBEBHEER
MRFELESEEE -

RARZEEXZBHREEZR -

E 3 0]

TEBEBHFRREOE  @FAEEEHNEIER
Bk THBREZEL  PRFER2EREE A
EEXBEETRANARRERENIBR UK
BRERETHNEEMBFARRIN  BFERE
BRAGzH®  REAEEBRERRRKZBMDE
HEEENEL  BRBEBQBRG (56225
REDBIBRAFHRFECEEFESHAZEEREERE
IHZEH1BHERREZMARDNTNA o EF 251#H
TEHAESERE 2D -

LEoh  AEBBBEKRER 2 BN RN BRI
38 ©

HFHRE
AEBRBE-_E-_AF=A=1+—HBLEEZEF
RAEEHEZZAH2HERRIBAITEHRERSE
60ZE63H ©

FHRESREEREBE1MRESNHARESR
HEERBEIMER=-"Z-AF-—ANRAIRKE - &
EEEEREAPRESREBRBE1.0MLRESH
RAREEREBRBESOUF-ZERFNA=
AESIARBRREMZIR

RAERERRLAT —T-RFRH



Report of the Directors EE & &

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in
order to allow shareholders of the Group to participate in the Group's
profits whilst retain adequate reserves for the Group's future growth.
The Group intends to make semi-annual distributions which will
depend upon the anticipated consolidated annual profits of the Group,
having taken into consideration certain criteria set out in the Dividend
Policy, including the Group’s financial performance, retained profits,
distributable reserves, expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements, future expansion plans and any other factors
which the Board deems relevant.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

Results

IR EBUER
ESECRMREBER((REBEK ) REAEERR
DEREEER 0 FRFRERAREUEAEERR
BR2H - AEERSFFORRKE RS - 5
FRESERNAEBETE RS FEER - HEART
REBKFA#EE TENME  BEANEENTER
B REEF - I2IKfHE  BHEESEEER &
FUZTHERK BRERBNESSARBEENE
AEABEE -

MBEERRE
TRASEENBTAENRFEA M EERE
B AfEFRRERCHE  DEROCERNE
BRREFREED,EHE o BT TRREEX
BB HR 2D

E S

Year ended 31 March
HE=A=t-BLFE

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021

—ECHE C—E-_ME C—E-=E C—E--EFE C—T--E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

BEFT BYTT BEFT BEFT BEFT

REVENUE A 5,585,488 5,366,540 6,058,755 8,043,172 7,351,573

PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB ADRA 112,818 161,794 76,168 198,518 419,692

Income tax credit/(expense) PiIEKS /(Bx%) 4,124 (22,848) (13,067) (11,809) (145,733)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERT 116,942 138,946 63,101 186,709 273,959
Attributable to: BE :

Ordinary equity holders of the Company ~ &A & BEERFIEE 116,068 132,334 75,149 191,064 274,213

Non-controlling interests FERER 874 6,612 (12,048) (4,355) (254)

116,942 138,946 63,101 186,709 273,959

Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests

BE - AEEFERER

As at 31 March

R=B=t+—-H

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021

—EBCRE —ZE-ME Z—FE-=F ZE-C —E--F

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000

BEFT  BEFT  BETr  BEFn BEFT

TOTAL ASSETS mEE 6,887,651 7,108,158 6,946,622 8,977,748 8,740,394
TOTAL LIABILITIES #BaE (2,118,482)  (2,315,593) (1,931,059)  (3,542,229)  (3,340,641)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS R ER (5,022) (4,372) 10,248 1,855 251
4,764,147 4,788,193  5,025811  5437,374 5,400,004
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and construction in progress of the Group during the
financial year are set out in notes 12, 13 and 15 to the financial
statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during the
financial year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities (including sale of treasury
shares) during the financial year.

As at 31 March 2025, there were no treasury shares held by the
Company.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 39 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2025, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution and/
or distribution in specie amounted to HK$1,260,336,000. In addition,
the Company’s share premium account and capital redemption reserve,
in the total amount of HK$705,060,000, may be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the financial year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$582,000 (2024: HK$639,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group'’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 26% of the total sales for the year.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 24% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The bye-laws of the Company provides that each Director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or
her office or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company
has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in
respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Poon Bun Chak (Executive Chairman)
Mr. Ho Lai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Poon Ho Tak

Mr. Ng Mo Ping

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing

Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin

Ms. Lin Kit Yee Anna

Dr. Chan Yuk Mau Eddie (appointed with effect from 15 May 2025)

Dr. Chan Yuk Mau Eddie was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 May 2025. In
accordance with clause 86(2) of the Company’s bye-laws, Dr. Chan shall
hold office until the conclusion of the first annual general meeting
after his appointment and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 21 August
2025 (2025 AGM™).

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing has indicated that he will not stand for re-election
at the 2025 AGM and will retire as an Independent Non-executive
Director in accordance with Clause 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws
after the conclusion of the 2025 AGM.

Except Dr. Chan Yuk Mau Eddie and Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, all the
existing directors will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the 2025 AGM in accordance with Clause 87(1) of the
Company's bye-laws.

The Company has received from each of the existing Independent Non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all four Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Law Brian
Chung Nin, Ms. Lin Kit Yee Anna and Dr. Chan Yuk Mau Eddie are
independent as at the date of this report.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts entered into between the Company and each
of the Executive Directors as listed above may be terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice or
compensation in lieu.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, no Director
nor a connected entity of a Director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the financial year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, aged 76, is an Executive Director and the Executive
Chairman of the Company and responsible for overseeing the planning
and development of the Group. He founded the Group in 1975. He has
more than 50 years’ experience in the textile field. He is the father of
Mr. Poon Ho Tak, an Executive Director of the Company and the father-
in-law of Mr. Wu Chi Hang, a Senior Management of the Group.

Mr. Ho Lai Hong, aged 67, is an Executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. He is responsible for the general
administration and financial management of the Group. He was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in August 2022 and was re-designated as an Executive Director of the
Company in November 2023. He has over 30 years of corporate banking,
corporate finance and management experiences with Mizuho Bank
Limited. Prior to his retirement from Mizuho Bank Limited in March
2018, he was the general manager/alternate chief executive of Mizuho
Bank Limited, Hong Kong Branch. In addition, he was an independent
non-executive director of Leo Paper Group (Hong Kong) Limited and
KRP Development Holdings Limited. He holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is also a fellow member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute and a fellow and council member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors. Mr. Ho is also an independent non-executive director of
Yue Yuen Industrial (Holdings) Limited (listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Poon Ho Tak, aged 48, is an Executive Director of the Company
and responsible for overseeing the overall general management of the
textile and retail businesses. After his studies at The University of New
South Wales, Australia, he joined the Group as a management trainee
in 2003 and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in October 2017. He is a son of Mr. Poon Bun Chak, the Executive
Chairman of the Company and a brother-in-law of Mr. Wu Chi Hang, a
Senior Management of the Group.

Mr. Ng Mo Ping, aged 59, is an Executive Director of the Company.
He is also a director and General Manager of Dongguan Texwinca
Textile & Garment Limited, a director of Ecotextile (Vietnam) Company
Limited and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. His
major responsibility focuses on the textile business of the Group in the
Mainland China and overseas countries. Mr. Ng joined the Group in
1988 and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
April 2024. He has more than 35 years’ experience in textile production
and management. Mr. Ng serves as a vice chairman of Guangdong
Association of Garment and Garment Article Industry, a president
of Henan Province Garment Association and an honorary adviser of
International Quality Service Management Promotion Association.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, aged 75, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in July 1992. He is a director
of Techluxe Investments Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and has more than 30 years’ experience in the banking and securities
industries in Hong Kong.

Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, aged 67, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2011. He has worked
for several major international accounting and financial institutions.
Besides, he possesses extensive experience in auditing, corporate finance
and private equity. Mr. Law graduated from University of Toronto in
1980 with a degree in Bachelor of Commerce. He has been a member of
the Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario, Canada since 1983.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive directors (continued)

Ms. Lin Kit Yee Anna, MH, JP, aged 67, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in January 2024.
She holds an MBA in Strategic Management from the University
of Birmingham United Kingdom. She has been appointed by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region as Justice
of the Peace (JP) since 2012 and was awarded the Medal of Honour
(MH) in 2023 respectively. She is the chief executive of GS1 Hong
Kong Limited and a member of board of director of GS1 in Asia Pacific
Ltd. She has more than 30 years of CEO experience in steering the
strategic direction of the organisation, spearheading major strategic
innovative initiatives. She attains Chartered Fellow, granted by The
Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport in 2018, and Fellow,
recognising her achievement and contribution to the industries in Hong
Kong. In fostering a collaborative ecosystem, she holds a number of
appointments in both government and local industry organizations as
well as regional organizations, including: chairperson of Advisory Group
of Digital Transformation Support Pilot Programme, Cyberport, member
of HKTDC Logistics Services Advisory Committee and director of board
of Pacific Basin Economic Council (PBEC), and so on.

Dr. Chan Yuk Mau Eddie, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2025. He is the founder
and chief executive officer of Amani Era (HK) Limited and has over
40 years' experience in the textile and apparel industry. He started
his career by gaining experience at TAL Group, Laws Group and Mast
Industries. He held senior positions at Lever Shirt and Esquel Group
respectively. Dr. Chan was an executive director, the vice chairman
and the chief executive officer of Lever Style Corporation (listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) and officially retired from Lever Style
Corporation in August 2024.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

Dr. Chan graduated with a Diploma in Woven Fabric Manufacture and a
Higher Diploma in Textile Technology from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
(currently The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1982 and
November 1986 respectively. He later obtained a Master of Commerce
in Marketing from the University of Strathclyde in the United Kingdom
in November 1987 and a Doctor of Business Administration from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003. Dr. Chan
then obtained a Bachelor of Business in Accountancy from the Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology University in Australia in September
2007 (distance learning course) and a Master of Science in Financial
Analysis from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
November 2009.

Dr. Chan was admitted as member of the Hong Kong Institution of
Textile and Apparel in October 2003, chartered member of the Textile
Institute of the United Kingdom in June 2004 and member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Marketing in November 2004. He is member of
Clothing Industry Training Authority and vice chairman of Hong Kong
Apparel Society.

Senior Management

Mr. Chan Chi Hon, aged 62, is the Group’s Financial Controller and
Company Secretary. He joined the Group in 1997. Mr. Chan holds
a Master’s degree in commerce from The University of New South
Wales, Australia and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a certified practising accountant of the
CPA Australia. He has more than 35 years’ experience in auditing and
accounting.

Mr. Wu Chi Hang, aged 41, is a Director of the Group's retail operations.
He joined the Group in 2013. Mr. Wu holds a Master of Science in
Engineering Business Management from University of Warwick in the
United Kingdom. He has more than 15 years’ experience in apparel
retailing and textile field. He is a son-in-law of Mr. Poon Bun Chak, the
Executive Chairman of the Company and a brother-in-law of Mr. Poon
Ho Tak, the Executive Director of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2025, the interests and short positions of the Directors
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange"”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
set out Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of Directors

Capacity

Poon Bun Chak Founder of a family trust

B KIREFE 2RI A
Ho Lai Hong Beneficial owner
AR BEEBEEA
Ng Mo Ping Beneficial owner
KREF BREEA
Notes:
1. Mr. Poon Bun Chak is a founder of a family trust and is deemed to be

interested in 698,830,104 Shares held under the family trust. For details,
please refer to the “Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s interests
in shares and underlying shares” under the Report of the Directors.

2. The issued share capital of the Company is 1,381,696,104 shares as at 31
March 2025.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, none of the Directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

EERROREBERD 2ESRKAR

3

R=B-EE=A=+-A  ARTREESRS
S HI2EMBFOBERM - RRE LA
HBCFT M LR AESR RS RS HER
FAD(BEFR ) BAFADREBHAR DA
RAR (R  FEFERLARLBELE
(BE&R(REFRMEMRGDEXVER) B R AR
BERERHART :

Percentage of

Number of  the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
held capital

(Note 2)
1EAEAT
5 BBITRAE
ZERYE BAE
(Hfat2)
1 698,830,104 50.58%
500,000 0.04%
300,000 0.02%

Bet -

1. JEWIESEE BRI IETZAIMARKEBIFEE RIS
AT E19698,830, 104/R IR (7 9 1 2 © B RAF1E -
BEHAEBEREAN TERERAMA LRER
RGBSR (7 7& | — B »

2. REZBZRF=FA=1—H AREZERTRES
1,381,696, 1048 °
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the financial year were rights to acquire benefits

BEEBERER

AR BEEREARA - SREAESIRE S
WERBEL R AR F LR R AR AR A B AR 9 T
BWER  ARSHB/TELSER RF2TRA
EAMEA RS REAZSE RS EBTRER
Hithik A EERRES L SRR o

by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights
in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'S FERREHEHMATRERGREBER G E
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES =

REZZZRF=A=1t—H  UATHEEEAQFCHIT
RAS% R £z - CRB(RSRBERIDE
3B6RBELHNA N A ARFNERZLMA

As at 31 March 2025, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RARBEBRZFR :

Percentage of

Number of  the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Capacity held capital
(Note 3)
LSRN
=55 BBITRAE
ZEREE BAE
(Hta£3)
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited Trustee 1 698,830,104 (L) 50.58%
FFEA
Poon’s Holdings Limited Through controlled corporation 1 698,830,104 (L) 50.58%
BRERBRAR EZEGEE
Farrow Star Limited Directly owned 1 698,830,104 (L) 50.58%
HEER
Pandanus Associates Inc. Through controlled corporations 2 137,374,000 (L) 9.94%
EEEEE
Pandanus Partners L.P. Through controlled corporations 2 137,374,000 (L) 9.94%
EIEHEE
FIL Limited Through controlled corporations 2 137,374,000 (L) 9.94%
EIEEEE
Fidelity Funds Beneficial owner 83,640,000 (L) 6.05%
BB A
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. Approved lending agent 72,558,800 (L) 5.25%
BoEEHREA 72,558,800 (P) 5.25%

L — Long position
P - Lending pool

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2025
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS* AND OTHER PERSON'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(continued)
Notes:

1. UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited, as a trustee of a family trust founded by Mr.
Poon Bun Chak, holds the entire issued share capital of Poon’s Holdings
Limited through its nominee, UBS Nominees Limited. Poon’s Holdings
Limited holds the entire issued share capital of Farrow Star Limited. Farrow
Star Limited in turn holds 698,830,104 shares of the Company. Therefore,
each of Mr. Poon Bun Chak, UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited, Poon’s Holdings
Limited and Farrow Star Limited is deemed to be interested in 698,830,104
Shares held by Farrow Star Limited.

2. Pandanus Associates Inc. has the entire control of Pandanus Partners
L.P. which in turn owns 41% in FIL Limited. FIL Limited is deemed to be
interested in 137,374,000 shares of the Company through a series of
subsidiaries. Therefore, each of Pandanus Associates Inc., Pandanus Partners
L.P. and FIL Limited is deemed to be interested in 137,374,000 shares of the
Company.

3. The issued share capital of the Company is 1,381,696,104 shares as at 31
March 2025.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest and short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

As stated in the Company’s announcement dated 28 March 2024, the
Group entered into certain transactions which constituted connected
transactions and continuing connected transaction (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company, details of which are set out below:

(1) Lease of a property as a retail outlet from a connected person

On 28 March 2024, the Group entered into a tenancy agreement
with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company controlled and
wholly owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director,
executive chairman and controlling shareholder of the Company,
to lease Tianjin Bin Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at 282 Bin
Jiang Road, He Ping Qu, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet
for the retail and distribution of casual apparel and accessories
business of the Group for a term of two years commencing from 1
April 2024 to 31 March 2026 at the monthly rent of RMB494,270.

FTERRRHEMA TR RAEERKRGE
38 (4%)

pat -

1. UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited (1E 3 K ik 5T 19 F
FEA o EZIETEREWEL LAY ) BBEEAUBS
Nominees Limited # 5 & 1 IR B R 2\ a1 89 £ &8
EBTRA o ELZEKREIRL G755 Farrow Star
Limited#9 2 582 #7TH A ° Farrow Star Limited#
B 1 51698,830, 1048 17 ° FEUL » BEHIES
4+ UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited  EF1ZREMRA
& R Farrow Star Limited?9# R 3 # & Farrow Star
Limited fir#5 5 £9698,830, 1042 iZ 17 #9125 °

2. Pandanus Associates Inc. # & Pandanus Partners
L.P.BY 2 87247 - Pandanus Partners L.P.# 7 5
BFIL Limited 41% #9817 © FIL Limited&i8 — % 21
BT/ 2 ] 3R B HE B A 1 7] 137,374,0008 IR 17 HIBE
# o B Ut » Pandanus Associates Inc. » Pandanus
Partners L.P. & FIL Limited 15 # 18 3 # B 4 22 &
137,374,000/ % (7 #9125 °

3. ROEBEZRFZA=+-H FRABRITREE
1,381,696, 104/%
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FURBZERRLR
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

(2) Lease of a property as a director’s quarter from a connected person
On 28 March 2024, the Group entered into a tenancy agreement
with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a company controlled
and wholly owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director,
executive chairman and controlling shareholder of the Company,
to lease a property located at 22 Perkins Road, Jardine’s Lookout,
Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s quarter of the Group for
a term of two years commencing from 1 April 2024 to 31 March
2026 at the monthly rent of HK$400,000.

(3) Lease of a property as a training center from a connected person

On 28 March 2024, the Group entered into a tenancy agreement

with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"), a company

controlled and wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive
director, executive chairman and controlling shareholder of the

Company, to lease Room 4207B, 42nd Floor, Metroplaza Tower

Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

as a training centre of the Group and a car parking space from

WLEL for a term of two years commencing from 1 April 2024 to

31 March 2026 at the monthly rent of HK$55,832.

(collectively, the “Tenancy Agreements”).

Under the Tenancy Agreements, the annual lease payment shall
include: (i) a fixed dollar amount (the “Fixed Lease Payments”); and (ii)
a variable amount determined by the net profit of the tenant, Tianjin
Dafu Friendship Baleno Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Dafu”) (the “Variable Lease
Payments”).

Connected Transactions - Fixed Lease Payments

According to HKFRS 16, the Group, as the lessee, shall recognise a lease
as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability in the consolidated statement
of the financial position of the Group. The recognition of a right-of-use
asset in each of Fixed Lease Payments under the Tenancy Agreements
shall be regarded as an acquisition of asset under the definition of
transaction set out in the Rule 14.04(1)(a) of the Listing Rules and
treated each of the transactions under the Tenancy Agreements as a
connected transaction.

The aggregated value of right-of-use asset recognised under the
Tenancy Agreements (the “Aggregated Value of the Right-of-
use Asset”) is approximately HK$27,000,000. The amount of lease
liability recognised under the Tenancy Agreements is the same as the
Aggregated Value of the Right-of-use Asset recognised.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025

REXZRSFRABERS @)

B—BEATERE-NEELESES
EA_;_IEE B=+NA  AEBEHEE

EB)ARATDTAE]) (BAALXTIHNTE
% CHAITERRERBRRBEWELEESRE
BEEA)SHESR  BRYBRABNRESR
AL EERER2RNYE  EAAEE—F

EEEazA HEHH-_T-_WENA—HZE
—ZRFE=A=+—H AHWE SA#
£ A 7%8%400,0007T °

(2

A —BAE A TR — Y EERIZ I RO
m_q_lmi B=+NAR8: ZtK%lEﬁiﬂd:.
TEERAT(KEE]) (BERQTAEIT
$ HITEERERBREENMBRERE %J
2ERB)FTHESR MKk EEAEES
R SR E ST IR 223k A R RIS 55 — 4218
4207BE - fERAEEMNIZIH LR —EFEE
1_L°*HEHHHE—7—@¢.H E:Zt—v—/\
F=A=1+—B AHWE SAHELHEBY

55,8327T °

(3)

(GHIHEERED -

RELAEESE  SFHS8E  (EESR(E
FHE) S RNBAFTREREURCHERAGER D
A(RERE)FANBFEENT2ER(28H
1) -

BERS - EEAS

BIEFBVHREELENE 165 - AEB(EAER
N EREEBNGEMBEMRERREHEERIHE

Fﬁ*éﬁé&*ﬂéﬁfﬁ R EHRAIZE14.04(1)(a)iF

FEXSNES HESREBETZES EEEHSHE

REFEARESERERAVBEE  KHESEEET

ZE-BRBWRERERS -

HESREBETHEINEAESEEEAR(EAEE
EEELLE ) HB8%27,000,000T - HESRET
BRNHEAESHENERRANEAREEEELER
E o



Report of the Directors EE S 4

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

Continuing Connected Transaction — Variable Lease Payments
According to HKFRS 16, the Variable Lease Payments in relation to the
lease of Tianjin Bin Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at 282 Bin Jiang
Road, He Ping Qu, Tianjin, China, which was determined by Tianjin
Dafu’s net profit shall be recorded as expense by the Group over the
term of the tenancy agreement. The Variable Lease Payments shall be
treated as a continuing connected transaction according to Rule 14A.31
of the Listing Rules.

The annual caps on the Variable Lease Payments (the “Annual Caps
on the Variable Lease Payments”) of the said continuing connected
transaction, in equivalent HK$, at anticipated exchange rate for
the financial years ending on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2026 is
HK$800,000 and HK$1,600,000 respectively. The Annual Caps on the
Variable Lease Payments are determined with reference to the terms of
the tenancy agreement of the above lease.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the above connected transactions and continuing connected
transaction, as disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, and have confirmed that these connected
transactions and continuing connected transaction were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(ii)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditor, was engaged to
report on the Group's connected transactions and continuing connected
transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference
to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have
issued their unmodified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the connected transactions and continuing connected
transaction disclosed above by the Group in accordance with relevant
clauses of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 June 2025

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance and enhancing corporate value and accountability. The
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules have been adopted to
shape our corporate governance structure. This report describes how
the principles of the CG Code have been applied during the year ended
31 March 2025 under different aspects.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules throughout the financial year, except for the following:

Under code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the Board
should attend the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The chairman of the Board has delegated the duty of attending the
annual general meeting held on 22 August 2024 to one of the executive
directors of the Company. The chairman considers the Executive Director
a suitable person for taking up such duty as the Executive Director has
good knowledge in each operating segment of the Group.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board embraces a culture built on these core values, with a view to
achieving the objectives of our investors, satisfying the requirements of
our customers, accomplishing the goals of our vendors and realising the
advancement of our employees.
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CORPORATE CULTURE (continued)

The corporate culture of the Group is summarized as follows:

Corporate Vision: To become an internationally renowned company

Corporate
Mission:

Corporate Spirit:

Core Value:

Corporate
Philosophy:

with competitive edges

To promote industry development through
technological advancement

Sincere cooperation, bold innovation and effective
execution

Diligence, progressiveness, responsibility, loyalty and
gratitude

Business Concept: customer first, win-win cooperation,
environmental protection and social contribution

Management Concept: unity, care, motivation and
conservation

Quality Concept: full participation and quality
orientation

Team Concept: close collaboration, efficient
communication, joint commitment and shared success

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025

Eb#)
AEBMHDE L EBENT

3RS

BAEBFHNBERMERE

BOORMRE - HBITERRE

BHEME  BRAK ST

REW-FEEEL  SFEAR
BATIRMR - Mt E

EEES B4 BE - HE - §15

&b

EEE

— 2828 LENE

BIIES - BRHE > BWEE
HERE  HERR



Corporate Governance Report T &R &

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

As of the date of this annual report, the Board is comprised of eight
members including four executive directors and four independent non-
executive directors. The names of directors and their positions are as

follows:

=g

EERMAR

RAFHRAY  ESSANERE - BEOUHTE
EROBIFHTES - ESHBREABLMT :

Name of Directors Positions

- Bz

Executive Directors:

HITES :

Mr. Poon Bun Chak Executive Chairman
BWIELE HITER

Mr. Ho Lai Hong Chief Executive Officer
AIBREE TR

Mr. Poon Ho Tak

BEERE

Mr. Ng Mo Ping

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHITES
Mr. Cheng Shu Wing
BRtER e
Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin
BMPFLE
Ms. Lin Kit Yee Anna
MWRER L+
Dr. Chan Yuk Mau Eddie
(appointed with effect from 15 May 2025)
PREREL
(R=FB-FHFHH+HHEEZT)

Mr. Poon Ho Tak is a son of Mr. Poon Bun Chak.

The biographical details of all the existing directors which include
relationships among members of the Board are set out on pages 23 to
26.

An updated list of directors of the Company and their respective roles
and functions has been maintained on the websites of the Company
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

BEREERBWEREZRT ©
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
directors in connection with the discharge of their responsibilities.

Re-election of Directors

Dr. Chan Yuk Mau Eddie was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 May 2025. In
accordance with clause 86(2) of the Company’s bye-laws, Dr. Chan shall
hold office until the conclusion of the first annual general meeting
after his appointment and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 21 August
2025 (“2025 AGM™").

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing has indicated that he will not stand for re-election
at the 2025 AGM and will retire as an Independent Non-executive
Director in accordance with Clause 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws
after the conclusion of the 2025 AGM.

Except Dr. Chan and Mr. Cheng, all the existing directors will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2025 AGM in
accordance with Clause 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws.

Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are Mr. Poon
Bun Chak and Mr. Ho Lai Hong respectively; therefore the roles of the
Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated.
The primary role of the Executive Chairman is to provide leadership
for the Board and to ensure that it works effectively in discharging its
responsibilities. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group'’s business.

Independence and qualification of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company has four Independent Non-executive Directors
representing more than one third of its Board, which is in compliance
with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. All the
Independent Non-executive Directors possess a wide range of business
and financial experience. One of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, possesses professional accounting
qualification in full compliance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the existing Independent Non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all four Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Law Brian
Chung Nin, Ms. Lin Kit Yee Anna and Dr. Chan Yuk Mau Eddie are
independent as at the date of this report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Mechanism regarding independent views to the Board

The Executive Chairman of the Board holds meeting(s) with the
Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Executive Directors at least once per year to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board. Such mechanism is reviewed
annually by the Board to ensure its effective implementation.

Role of the Board

The overall management of the Group is vested with the Board and the
day-to-day management of the business is delegated to the executive
management.

The principal roles of the Board are:

(1) to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and
business plan;

(2) to monitor the performance of each operating segment;

(3) to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Group's strategic objectives;

(4) to authorise material borrowings and expenditures;

(5) to prepare and approve financial statements, annual and interim
reports, and make judgments that are fair and reasonable in the
preparation of the Company’s disclosure statements;

(6) to perform corporate governance functions in accordance
with the CG Code, including the determination of the Group'’s
corporate governance policies, and the review and monitoring of
the corporate governance practices of the Group; and

(7)  to oversee and review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group through review of the
reports from Audit Committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board diversity

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. In designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the female representation on the
Board is 12.5%. The Nomination Committee is committed to improving
gender diversity when suitable candidates are identified, and will
continue to monitor the need for appointing members of a particular
gender in order to maintain or, if desired or necessary, increase
diversity.

The Nomination Committee will identify suitable candidate(s), having
due regard to the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy, and
make recommendation to the Board on the appointment. The Board
will strive to ensure the Board is made up of a reasonable and justifiable
proportion of women by reference to stakeholders’ expectations and
the pool of qualified candidates.

The Company will continue to review our Board Diversity Policy. In
particular, when the Board identifies potential Director candidate(s)
in the future, it will ensure that sufficient consideration will be given
to gender diversity in light of the gender distribution of the boards
of listed company on the Stock Exchange which operates in the same
industry as the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Induction and continuous professional development

Newly appointed Directors will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of their appointment so as to
ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company as well as the obligation and responsibility
of being a director under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Reading materials on the latest development of applicable
laws, rules and regulations will be provided to Directors where
appropriate. All Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the existing
Directors received the following training during the financial year:

Name of Directors

EENA
Poon Bun Chak BWIE
Ho Lai Hong MERE
Poon Ho Tak BEE
Ng Mo Ping KREF
Cheng Shu Wing LS
Law Brian Chung Nin EE
Lin Kit Yee Anna MRER
A: Reading materials relating to the Group, general business or director’s
duties and responsibilities, etc.
B: Participated in seminar(s)/corporate events or site visit(s) of the Group

Dr. Chan Yuk Mau Eddie had obtained legal advice from an external law
firm as required under Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 13 May 2025
and was appointed to the Board on 15 May 2025. He has confirmed that
he understood his obligations as a Director of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board process

The Company has in place clear board process. Regular board meetings
are scheduled at least four times per year. Agendas and accompanying
board papers are served to all directors at least five business days in
advance of each board meeting to facilitate informed discussion and
decision making. Directors may include any matters they wish to discuss
in the agendas. Minutes of the Board and committee meetings are
prepared and kept by the company secretary of the Company, and are
open for inspection by directors upon request. All Directors have access
to the advice and services of the company secretary, and are allowed to
seek external professional advice if needed.

Directors’ attendance at meetings

As reflected in their high attendance in the Board and Board Committee
meetings during the year, the Directors continued to participate
extensively in the Board’s discussions and decisions and Company’s
affairs during the financial year. The Independent Non-executive
Directors also held separate meetings with the Chairman to discuss
Board and relevant matters.

Annual general meeting and board meetings

The Company held an annual general meeting and five regular
board meetings during the year ended 31 March 2025. Attendance of
individual Board members at the meetings is set out below:

Name of Directors

BEEgE

Executive Directors HITES

Poon Bun Chak BWIE

Ho Lai Hong AR

Poon Ho Tak BEE

Ng Mo Ping REFE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Cheng Shu Wing LI EES

Law Brian Chung Nin EE

Lin Kit Yee Anna MOZER

Note: Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone conference and/or
video conference in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees to oversee certain
aspects of the Company’s affairs. Each board committee has its own
terms of reference relating to its authority and duties, which have been
approved by the Board and are reviewed periodically. The terms of
reference of each board committee are available on the websites of the
Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee is comprised of four Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Ms.
Lin Kit Yee Anna and Dr. Chan Yuk Mau Eddie (appointed on 15 May
2025). The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, a
qualified accounting professional.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

(@) monitoring the preparation of the financial statements;

(b) monitoring and assessing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

()  monitoring the performance of the Group’s internal audit team;

(d)  considering the appointment and removal of the external auditor,
the audit fee and the terms of engagement; and

(e) reviewing and commenting on the connected transactions of the
Group.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year ended 31
March 2025 to review the followings:

(@) the risk management and internal control of the Group;

(b) the effectiveness of internal audit function;

() the financial reporting process and the financial statements of the
Group; and

(d) the continuing connected transactions pursuant to the Listing
Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit committee (continued)

The attendance of Audit Committee meetings during the year ended 31
March 2025 is set out below:

Members of the Audit Committee

EREEERE

ERZEEg#®)

EREER(E)
ENZEEGNEE-—S-AF=A=t-ALEE>
S HEREHIIMT :

Number of meeting(s)

attended/eligible to attend (Vote)
HESSE AHESERB®

Law Brian Chung Nin EME
Cheng Shu Wing LSS
Lin Kit Yee Anna MRER

Note: Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone conference and/or
video conference in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules. The Remuneration Committee is comprised of four Independent
Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director, namely by Ms.
Lin Kit Yee Anna, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, Dr.
Chan Yuk Mau Eddie (appointed on 15 May 2025) and Mr. Ho Lai Hong,
respectively. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Ms. Lin Kit Yee
Anna.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors and Senior Management as well
as the compensations payable to Directors. The remuneration of the
Directors and Senior Management is determined with reference to
the performance of each individual and the Company, the market
conditions and the industry practice. Besides, the Remuneration
Committee will ensure that no Director or any of his/her associate will
be involved in the determination of his/her own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Remuneration Committee
held three meetings to make recommendations to the Board on
the terms of Executive Directors’ contract(s), Directors’ fee(s), the
remuneration and performance bonus of Executive Directors and Senior
Management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration committee (continued)

The attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2025 is set out below:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

FMESSRE

Lin Kit Yee Anna MR
Cheng Shu Wing I RES
Law Brian Chung Nin EE
Ho Lai Hong AR

Note: Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone conference and/or
video conference in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

Details of the remuneration of each Director and the Senior
Management by band for the year ended 31 March 2025 are set out in
note 7 to the financial statements contained in this Annual Report.

Nomination committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) is comprised of four Independent Non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Law Brian
Chung Nin, Ms. Lin Kit Yee Anna, Dr. Chan Yuk Mau Eddie (appointed
on 15 May 2025) and Mr. Ho Lai Hong, respectively. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng Shu Wing.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendation
of candidates with appropriate experience and qualification to the
Board; reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
reviewing nomination policy for Directors and Board diversity policy;
and assessing independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Nomination Committee held
a meeting to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board ensuring that the Board has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience; to review nomination policy
for directors and Board diversity policy; to review and recommend the
re-appointment of Directors standing for re-election at the Company'’s
2024 annual general meeting; and to assess independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination committee (continued)

The attendance of Nomination Committee meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2025 is set out below:

Members of the Nomination Committee

REZEERE

Cheng Shu Wing LSS
Law Brian Chung Nin EME
Lin Kit Yee Anna MRER
Ho Lai Hong AR

Note: Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone conference and/or
video conference in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has undertaken the corporate governance function to
maintain effective corporate governance within the Group. The
corporate governance duties of the Board have been set out in the
terms of reference of the Board on corporate governance functions
which are available on the website of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Board (i) reviewed
and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and training and continuous professional development
of Directors; (ii) approved the adoption of investment policy and the
amended anti-corruption policy; and (iii) reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code
of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Based on specific enquiry of the Company’s Directors, they have
all complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the financial year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Chi Hon, is responsible for facilitating
the board process, as well as communications among Directors, with
shareholders and management. The Company Secretary’s biography
has been set out in the “Biographical details of Directors and Senior
Management” section of the Report of the Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company Secretary

undertook over 15 hours of professional training to upgrade his skills
and knowledge.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2025, fees paid/payable for audit and
non-audit services by the Company to its principal external auditor were
as follows:

Services

BR%

Audit services rendered iR MET RS
Review of continuing connected transactions EHEBERERS

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company. The statement from the external auditor of the Company
about their responsibilities has been set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 51 to 59.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. Such systems are designed to mitigating
risks inherent in our business faced by the Group to an acceptable
level, but not eliminating all risks. Hence, such systems can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement in
financial information or financial loss.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board reviews the effectiveness and
efficiency of risk management and internal control systems annually.
To achieve this, the Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board,
oversees the following process:

(1)  regular reviews of the principal business risks and the control
measures to mitigate, reduce or transfer such risks;

(2)  risk-based audits on the major operating activities by the Internal
Audit and Control Department; and

(3) discussion with the external auditor matters on auditing, internal
control and financial report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
For the risk assessment and control activities, “top-down"” approach
is complemented by the “bottom-up” aspects and the involvement of
operating units in identifying operation risks. Management conducts
an internal control self-assessment annually. Department heads have to
complete relevant control self-assessment questionnaires and confirm
to the management that appropriate internal control policies and
procedures have been established and properly complied with.

With the adoption of a risk-based approach, the Internal Audit and
Control Department evaluates the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems by reviewing all major operations on a cyclical
basis. The audit reviews cover all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls. And, results of the audit reviews
in the form of internal audit reports are submitted to the Audit
Committee for discussion regularly. The internal audit reports are also
followed up by the Internal Audit and Control Department to ensure
that all findings identified have been properly resolved.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework Diagram:

The Board
E=g
Sets the Group's

Top-down
Oversight, identification,
assessment and mitigation
of risk at corporate level

Responsible for the
Group'’s risk management
and internal control

objectives, strategies,
polices and business plan
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During the financial year, the Internal Audit and Control Department,
which reports directly to the Audit Committee, has reviewed the risk
management and internal controls of each major operating segment of
the Group and has reported its findings to the Audit Committee. The
Board and the Audit Committee are satisfied with the effectiveness and
efficiency of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group.
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INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Company has established policy for ensuring that inside information
is disseminated to the public in an equal and timely manner in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Senior Management
of the corporate affairs and financial control functions of the Group
are delegated with responsibilities to control and monitor the proper
procedures to be observed on the disclosure of inside information.
Access to inside information is at all times confined to relevant Senior
Management and on “as needed” basis, until proper disclosure or
dissemination of inside information in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations. Relevant personnel and other professional
parties involved are reminded to preserve confidentiality of the inside
information until it is publicly disclosed.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to facilitate employees
and other stakeholders reporting on any suspected misconduct or
malpractice within the Group in confidence and without fear of reprisal
or victimisation. The policy is available on the website of the Company.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Group has adopted and implemented a sound anti-corruption
policy and is committed to conducting business honestly, ethically and
with integrity. The policy is available on the website of the Company.

GENDER DIVERSITY OF WORKFORCE

The Board places emphasis on diversity (including gender diversity)
across all levels of the Group. As at 31 March 2025, about 44.1% of our
workforce in the region of the Greater China and Vietnam, is female.
Appropriate balance of gender diversity of workforce is maintained
taking into account the business models and operational needs. Details
on the gender diversity at workforce levels together with relevant data
can be found in the 2025 ESG report of the Company.

NOMINATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

The nomination policy sets out the nomination procedures and
the process and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship. The policy is included in the term of reference of the
Nomination Committee.

According to the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee would
select the candidates based on the objective criteria, including without
limitation, age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional
and educational qualifications, background and the benefit of
diversity as set out under the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee would also take into account whether the candidate can
devote sufficient time to the Company, and in case of Independent
Non-executive Directors, would also consider the independence
requirements under the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee
monitors the implementation of the nomination policy and will review
and recommend any revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval, when necessary, to enhance effectiveness.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, there were no changes to the
constitutional documents of the Company. An updated consolidated
version of the Company’s constitutional documents is available on the
websites and the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of special general meetings on requisition by shareholders
According to Clause 58 of Company’s bye-laws, one or more
shareholders (including a clearing house (or its nominee)) holding, as at
the date of deposit of the requisition, in aggregate not less than one
tenth (10%) voting rights, on a one vote per share basis in the share
capital of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to convene
a special general meeting and/or add resolutions to the agenda of a
meeting; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the “Companies Act"”).

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings by
shareholders

Shareholder(s) is/are entitled to put forward a proposal (which may
properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general meeting
of the Company when (i) the shareholder(s) representing not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition; or (ii) the requisition is made by not less than
100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the registered office
of the Company. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

We strive to provide quality information to shareholders as well as
our many stakeholders regarding the latest developments whilst
ensuring that relevant information is equally and simultaneously
provided and accessible to all interested parties. The Company has
adopted a Shareholder Communication Policy which provides the
below communication channels to shareholders so as to enable them
to engage actively with the Company and exercise their right as
shareholders in an informed manner.

(1)  Meeting shareholders in annual general meetings (“AGM")
to explain results of the Company and answer questions of
shareholders;

(2) Disseminating corporate information to shareholders according
to the rules and regulations;

(3) Meeting fund managers and investors to promote the business of
the Company; and

(4) Publishing the background, the latest development and the

results of the Group on the Company’s website.

The Company ensures that shareholders’ views are communicated to
the Board. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate resolutions
for each issue to be considered. Members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee also attend the
AGM to answer questions from shareholders.

AGM proceedings are reviewed from time to time to ensure that the
Company follows the best corporate governance practices. The notice
of AGM is distributed to all shareholders by the designated period prior
to the AGM and the accompanying circular also sets out details of each
proposed resolution and other relevant information as required under
the Listing Rules. The chairman of the AGM exercises his power under
the Company’s bye-laws to put each proposed resolution to the vote
by way of a poll. The procedures for conducting a poll are explained at
the meeting prior to the polls being taken. Poll results are posted on
the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited on the day of the AGM.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Making enquiries to the Board

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments and
suggestions to the Board or to the Company are welcome to contact the
Company Secretary.

Designated contact information
Texwinca Holdings Limited

Address : 16th Floor, Metroplaza Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 2610 7116/(852) 2610 7257

Fax : (852) 2233 1116/(852) 2233 1257

Email : IR@texwinca.com

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025
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Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EY:

To the shareholders of
Texwinca Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 60 to 172, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2025, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") as issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

EeIN=E IR
ESHREBREE 979 58
AEtp—EE 27 18

Tel EB5E: +852 2846 9888
Fax {8 E.: +852 2868 4432

Wwww.ey.com

HEXEEEERAE
(REFEFMA L ZERAE])

P AR SR

=

EMEFF I HNEOZEN2HEEKEREBARL
A(EAFDREWB AR (EERE ) 2HREMEHR
® EFEER-ZE-AFZA=+-HZESUH
RRK  REZZALFEZFEBRER  FE2H
BAR GERBEBREGEHETRER - ARG
BHMBHRNE  BEEESHBEREN -

KRR ZEGSUBBRRERETESHAAS
Bff 2 EBMBRELENEEMAALRR BEEEH
REZZBZAF=A=+-HANGEUBHRRREBE
ZALFENRSUBRARGERERE - WCEK
REBARROI 2 RERENZRHEER -

RRHER

KMEREEBSTMASHRANEBEREN(E
BETER ) ETET - RMEZSERTAENE
FEEARELBEHE RS UBBMRAENEE
—HIREE -SRI - REFBEHMASHEMNE
¥aertimEEsFR(sR) - RMBIR BEEH
YWEBTFRFHEMEEERET - HIEE - &
TSN ENRRETEREEDAEMNETZ
RERptE -

EXkEREFRAT —Z-HEFR



Independent Auditor’'s Report & 37 #Z 2{Ef 3R &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matters
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMEFSRNMAEERESETER

Provision for inventories

FERE

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had inventories, net of
provision, of HK$1,242,676,000, which comprised textile
and apparel products. The consumption of inventories
is subject to changing consumer demands and market
trends which increased the level of judgement involved
in estimating inventory provisions. Judgements were
required to assess the appropriate level of provision for
items which might be ultimately obsoleted or sold below
cost as a result of a reduction in customers’ demand.

RZZ-HFE=A=+—0 BEEEHRERREFEBYE
1,242,676,000T © EFEFEHBEREER - FEMNHEES
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We obtained an understanding of the inventory
provision policy adopted by management. We also
evaluated whether the inventory provision was
made in accordance with the policy. We examined
management’s estimation regarding the obsolescence
percentage applied based on past experience,
subsequent sales and usage status.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) RRESSEH®)
Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BREEITER PSRN IEERRENER
Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting We tested the underlying data used by management
judgement and estimates, the provision for inventories to calculate the inventory obsolescence provisions by
and the balance of inventories are included in notes 3, 6 reviewing the inventory ageing analysis and checking,
and 20 to the consolidated financial statements. on a sample basis, the subsequent sales and usage.

FENTESTHHERMG FERBERESNERKRESIH BEMERFERESITRMEHREERER - LUARE
RERBMIEIRKMES ~ 65220 ERUGTEFEHRERENEREE -

We tested the resultant calculation by assessing the
calculation criteria and recalculating the provision for
the inventories based on those criteria.

HMUHEFER BT EER Y U ZEENERTE LU
HTEER

We also assessed management’s calculation of net
realisable value by checking to the latest or subsequent
selling prices.

BT REsiPAREE  UIHEEERT2REEN
& e
Recoverability of trade receivables
FEW AR HI AT [E]1%
As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of trade We tested the controls over the Group’s collection
receivables before loss allowance for impairment of trade procedures. We evaluated the appropriateness of
receivables amounted to HK$690,359,000 and the loss the allowance of doubtful debts recognised by test
allowance for impairment of trade receivables amounted checking the historical cash collection trend, subsequent
to HK$27,569,000. settlements, ageing analysis of the trade receivables

and considered whether the historical loss rates
were appropriately adjusted based on the current
local economic environment and forward-looking
information by evaluating the correlation of market
information used. We also considered the adequacy of
the Group’s disclosure about the degree of estimation
involved in arriving at the allowance amount.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BRRETEEE)

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRETEE EMFH R NAEEBERERTSHE

During the year, management used a provision matrix

to calculate expected credit losses (“ECLs") for trade
receivables. The matrix was initially based on the
Group'’s historical default rates, and specific factors that
management considered in the estimation of the rates
including the type of customers, ageing of the balances
and recent historical payment patterns. Management
then calibrated the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information, such as
forecasted economic conditions. We focused on this area
because of a high level of management’s judgement and
the materiality of the amounts involved.

REE EEECABBEEUGEERERINABEESD
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R ERZENSERZAERTEE - SRNIRERIA
HHELAFES - EEEEARRNKERRSAEEER
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FHHERBEASHE - MEMNESTRALEE -

Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgement and estimates and the provision for
impairment of trade receivables are included in notes 3
and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters

BREER

RRETEE(®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMFARNAEEFERFASE

Impairment assessment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment

RAREERYF - BERREAETE

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had right-of-use assets of
HK$586,792,000 and property, plant and equipment of
HK$1,452,743,000. The Group’s management performed
impairment assessment of right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment for identified retail outlets that
continued to underperform by estimating the recoverable
amounts of their right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment based on value in use calculation.
Impairment losses of approximately HK$1,890,000 and
HK$3,125,000 have been recorded for the year ended 31
March 2025 to reduce the carrying amounts of certain
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment.
Management considers each retail shop as an individual
cash-generating unit as each shop generates independent
cash flows, which are largely independent of the cash
flows generated by other assets. The Group determines
impairment provision based on the cash flow forecasts
of loss-making retail shops. The evaluation process is
inherently subjective and dependent on a number of
estimates.

ATE-RFE=A=+—0  FAEENEAEESERYE K
ERREAHBY586,792,000T K #BHE1,452,743,0007T ° R&E
ENEREERAREERAEETEMTHEAREERYE
BERRENTREESHE HIEFEXBTENCHESEEH
NEAREERYE BRERBBETRENE BE=-F
“EHF=A=+—HLFE U AHEREY1,890,0007T
R E#3,125,000T © UEHEFERAREERYE  BERE
BEHREERLZHMATATRESE - EBESSETEEH
RE—EBUNBRESELEN  RAESEREEEBINRS
FE MREABEEABRELBYIRHMEEEENRESR
B o AEERBEBEFENRSAEFARTRERE - F7E
BREAE FEXEK 0 WEEURRE S5 -

Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgements and estimates and the balance of right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment are included
in notes 3, 12 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EFEETEEHHENGETNERESURERYE  BEKR
RENEAEEENFREESEASMBERRMMEES ~ 12
147 o

Our audit procedures in relation to management'’s
impairment assessment included, among others,
evaluating the Group’s policies and procedures in
identifying impairment indicators and assessing
management'’s significant assumptions adopted, in
particular those relating to the cash flow forecasts
of loss-making retail shops, by reviewing the Group’s
business plan, comparing with the market discount
rate and evaluating the growth rate adopted by
the management. Our procedures also included a
comparison of the cash flow forecasts with historical
data of the Group. Also, we checked, on a sample basis,
the accuracy and relevance of the input data used.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 7 & E 5 3 &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Sai Yu (practising certificate number: P05066).

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

12 June 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss ZR 51 &

Year ended 31 March 2025 BiF —ZE - HF=H=+—HI-FEF

REVENUE WA

Cost of sales SHERA

Gross profit EF

Other income and gains H AU A K Uz
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER
Administrative expenses THER

Other operating expenses, net HithEEER 25
Finance costs MEER

PROFIT BEFORE TAX, GAIN FROM BRTEE - R TR EEY
RESUMPTION OF LAND AND BUILDINGS, Wi REVERAAREEE
NET FAIR VALUE LOSS ON INVESTMENT BHERAKERCEREF
PROPERTIES AND COMPENSATION FOR BRNEENER
THE LOSS OF INVENTORIES DUE TO A FIRE
ACCIDENT

Gain from resumption of land and buildings ¥ £ it [ 32 £ Y UL

Net fair value losses on investment properties 1R&E Y%A A ERIEFEE

Compensation for the loss of inventories due X XS K EFE KR EE
to a fire accident

PROFIT BEFORE TAX FRBLADRF
Income tax credit/(expense) BiIEK R ()
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEERR
Attributable to: T
Ordinary equity holders of the Company AAREBESEE
Non-controlling interests RS

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BEAAREERBRAEE
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BRER
COMPANY

Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARREHE CBEAY)

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025
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2025 2024
—g-nF —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT BEFT
5,585,488 5,366,540
(4,265,792) (3,957,563)
1,319,696 1,408,977
203,208 201,000
(695,785) (725,859)
(686,223) (677,512)
(5.697) (10,005)
(78,064) (51,197)
57,135 145,404
88,807 =
(33,124) (13,192)

— 29,582

112,818 161,794
4,124 (22,843)
116,942 138,946
116,068 132,334
874 6,612
116,942 138,946
8.4 9.6




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income ZRE 2 HWA X

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Other comprehensive loss that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Release of exchange reserve upon
deregistration of a subsidiary
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR
THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Year ended 31 March 2025 Bt Z —E - HF=H=+—HI FEF

2025 2024
—E-RF —ZE-mE
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
REFEBR 116,942 138,946
Hibh2HEEE
REZBPETENR2>EEEBREN
Hih2MEEE -
RS — R B A AR R
SNER B EE - (3,387)
BEGIMEEEREEZ
ERER (57,436) (159,056)
AEEHME2HEEE  BRERFE
(57,436) (162,443)
AEEZERA (BB EE
59,506 (23,497)
R
AAREBEREE 58,856 (30,363)
RS 650 6,866
59,506 (23,497)
EBkEEEBREAT —Z-RFHR



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4= & Bt & AR R 3R

31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Investment properties

Construction in progress

Goodwill

Trademarks

Prepayments

Long-term rental deposits

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade receivables
Bills receivable

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Derivative financial assets

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued liabilities
Lease liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

ERBEE
W - BERRE
fERmEE

RE %

HRTRE

e

[

A E

RHESERS

BAREH BSOS REE

FEBIEERE
@ RBEE
rBEE
H

FEWBRR
FEWERE

FANRIE ~ AR HEBEWRERK

BARERABENEMERE

BEOEERANEBETA
TTEEREE
RL{EESE
RERBRESEEY

BRBEE

REBAE

FE £ 8RR
HtEN R K BT EE
HE&E

TESReE

M SSRITE R

FEfI iR

REERRBDAEE
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14
13
15
16
17
22
22

18
28

20
21
21

18
19
23,

24

25
26
14
23
27

2025 2024
=SS —EmEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BETTT
1,452,743 1,408,871
586,792 611,506
497,089 530,213
80,266 88,140
18,468 18,576
33,293 33,293
14,260 21,764
21,834 78,280
22,155 22,752
32,468 19,845
2,759,368 2,833,240
1,242,676 1,541,213
662,790 680,774
269,397 242,003
278,220 214,327
7,499 15,772

963 20,258

6,222 444
27,109 5,025
1,633,407 1,555,102
4,128,283 4,274,918
503,436 573,470
273,712 392,727
118,519 118,374
3,830 4,839
539,424 315,100
18,813 10,194
1,457,734 1,414,704
2,670,549 2,860,214
5,429,917 5,693,454




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4= & Bt &R R 3R

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

Notes

o=

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEM
Other payables and accrued liabilities Hit e IR R St B 26
Lease liabilities HESE 14
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M EERITER 27
Deferred tax liabilities RS EEE 28
Total non-current liabilities BIERBERE
Net assets EEFH
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to ordinary equity FEAAFEERREEER
holders of the Company
Issued capital ERETRA 29
Reserves & 30
Proposed final and special final dividend BORARE R 45 BIREA AR 2 10
Non-controlling interests IR AER
Total equity B
Poon Bun Chak Ho Lai Hong BE
Director Director EWRE

2025 2024
—BCRE —ZomE
HK$000 HK$°000
BETFT BETFT
13,927 7,691
298,783 306,439
306,818 504,837
41,220 81,922
660,748 900,889
4,769,169 4,792,565
69,085 69,085
4,612,160 4,691,474
82,902 27,634
4,764,147 4,788,193
5,022 4,372
4,769,169 4,792,565
BZ
fABE
RAERERRLAT —T-RFRH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 4 8B & HhE R

Year ended 31 March 2025 BiF —ZE - HF=H=+—HI-FEF

2024
—B-mF
HK$000
BETT

—E-FE

HK$°000
BETT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEFERESHKE

Profit before tax RRBE AR A 112,818 161,794
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs MisEA 8 78,064 51,197
Interest income FIEUWA 5 (89,150) (85,516)
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange INESTEEMTIA
derivative financial instruments A REW S FEE 6 (3,854) (2,333)
Net fair value losses/(gains) on financial BARESABEN
assets at fair value through profit or loss SRIEERE (R B 6 (714) 1,330
Gain on revision of lease terms arising from R AIEEHIHERREE)
changes in the non—cancellable period of ~ TMELMWBEEEET ~ ks
leases 6, 14 (4,405) (18,263)
Gain from resumption of land and AU & b 2 ER AR U 25
buildings (88,807) -
Net fair value losses on investment REMEAAREHIEFE
properties 6 33,124 13,192
Depreciation of property, plant and YME - BMENRKREITE
equipment 6 239,408 218,145
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEIE 6 163,035 157,788
Net gains on disposal of property, HEWE  BERSRE
plant and equipment Wi FEE 6 (2,754) (10,518)
Impairment of property, ME - BERZERE
plant and equipment 6 3,125 -
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE 6 1,890 -
Reversal of write—down of inventories FEMREE 6 (24,461) (9,969)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FEWERFURIE,
trade receivables CR{ERE) 6 2,429 (1,567)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of BREBERANEEIA
debt instruments at amortised cost BB CRERR) 6 (3,870) 3,751
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary L — BB A Bz W 5 - (3,387)
Waiver of trade and other payables IR R H M BR R R R 5 (4,596) (5,337)
Non-controlling interests derecognised TR E A R R AR LR
upon deregistration of a subsidiary FEIE RS = 7,754
411,282 478,061
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERD, (M) 316,087 (60,903)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEWBR R R 4RI 0 (15,086) (142,264)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other {1518 » 5T & R HAFEUK
receivables BRFUR D 21,473 79,949
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FEATBRIRIZ AN, G A) (66,915) 137,825
Decrease in other payables and accrued HAb T IRAR
liabilities EstRERD (109,244) (141,521)
Cash generated from operations REMBRE 557,597 351,147
Tax refunded/(paid) 2R (Bf)FHE (48,630) 37,597
Net cash flows from operating activities RETEERRESRAFEE 508,967 388,744

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 48 £ HRhEFE

Year ended 31 March 2025 Bt Z —E - HF=H=+—HI FEF

2025 2024
—BCRHE —ZomE

Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
KizE BT BT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEBERERE

Interest received 2HFIE 89,150 85,516
Net redemption from/(payment to) HEETEEMIANRE

settlement of derivative financial e, (X)) 558

instruments (2,977) 8,535
Purchases of property, BEYX  BRERRE

plant and equipment (84,082) (146,487)
Additions to construction in progress AEEEIR 15 (211,197) (69,176)
Redemption of debt instruments at B IR 2 AR

amortised cost BB TR T 23,165 16,208
Redemption of financial assets at fair value EEIRA AEFTABRH

through profit or loss TREE 7,954 336
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE BRER

plant and equipment REWA 86,061 15,491

Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged time RETZB=@EA U LR
deposits with original maturity over three ~ EHREBMIFR

months when acquired B/ (38hn) 695,145 (354,703)
Acquisition of a subsidiary I iE — BB AR 31 = (596,181)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing BRETHHRSHEANGRE)

activities R 603,219 (1,040,461)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEBRERE

Principal portion of lease payments HERESIBH 32(b) (146,502) (154,882)
New interest-bearing bank borrowings TR IRITER 32(b) 3,528,708 2,472,330
Repayment of interest-bearing bank EEMSRITER

borrowings 32(b) (3,557,853) (2,082,685)
Interest paid ENFIE (78,064) (51,197)
Dividends paid ENRE (82,902) (207,255)
Net cash flows used in financing activities =~ BEEER SR FE (336,613) (23,689)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BE&RELSZEEY

CASH EQUIVALENTS #m (D) FE 775,573 (675,406)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHZRERAEEEY

of year 857,732 1,584,769
Exchange realignment [ERIES (2,123) (51,631)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FRZAERAESEEY
OF YEAR 1,631,182 857,732

BAESEERLT —S-HEH @



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 4 8B & HhE R

Year ended 31 March 2025 BiF —ZE - HF=H=+—HI-FEF

2024
ZE-HF —EMEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
B FIT BT
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERBASEEVERDIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances BeRIBITER 24 625,222 456,082
Non-pledged time deposits with original RETZB=EAREH=
maturity within three months IR EHFR
when acquired 24 1,005,960 401,650
Non-pledged time deposits with original RETYB=@EB LR
maturity over three months IR ERFR
when acquired 24 2,225 697,370
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RERBSEEY
in the consolidated statement of MERERE AR T
financial position 1,633,407 1,555,102
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with B RETM A=@EA L
original maturity over three F| 8 2 I E BRI R
months when acquired (2,225) (697,370)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RERREEEY
in the consolidated statement MEFRFERSRER
of cash flows 1,631,182 857,732

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Texwinca Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of Texwinca Holdings
Limited is located at 16th Floor, Metroplaza Tower Il, 223 Hing
Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors consider the
immediate holding company and the ultimate holding company
of the Group to be Farrow Star Limited and Poon’s Holdings
Limited respectively, both of which are incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

o Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and
garments;

° Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessories;
and

. Provision of franchise services.

Information of subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/
registration registered

and business share capital
BRTER/

EMRL BER
ik BETRA

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

ARREEER

B EEEERARNABREIMRIZER
EELTE KRR ZFEMPIEE HClarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda c A AR EELEE MU BETBIFR
ERES K223 ISR — 164 o

RAFLE  EERARKEBEERTHBETMAK
3 ZFarrow Star Limited B KIZR AR A T
PRIBAEBEERAAIRRAERAT

RAFE » FEBZTREEUTER

o HEH  BURBRKZEHERER;

o (FEREHMZZTERSHE R

o RUEEIHEERT -

M2 RER
ARA2EEMBRARZFHBAOT !

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
RNrIEG R

ZERE FTEEK
2025 2024
“E-RE  ZEC@E

Principal activities

Trustland Inc British Virgin Islands/ Us$18,000 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
KERZAE /B8 18,000 7T REER
Nice Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 100  Sale of finished knitted
Non-voting fabric and dyed yarn
deferred
HK$3,125,000
KERBERAT BB EBR HEH B REY
7B£1,0007T &
BEREEELRS
7B3,125,0007T
Dongguan Texwinca Textile & PRC/Mainland China HK$2,857,950,000 100 100  Production, dyeing
Garment Limited' and sale of knitted
fabric and yarn
RREXEHARRERDT HE/REIKRE 7#52,857,950,0007T SR RIBY  EHRER
Texwinca Enterprises (China) Limited  British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 100 Investment holding and
Hong Kong trading of machines
BXE(RE)BEERAR KBRLHE/ BB (ES REZRREEHS

BAESEERLT —S-HEH @



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. ARREEER @)

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/
registration
and business

B BER
RS

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEE/
EERRA

nt- S -3

Bt S 2 RIE R (4F)

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
AQRELER
ZARE
2025 2024
—F-ME

Principal activities

FREK

Texwinca Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Provision of management
services
BAEEXERAA BB BT REERRY
Ecotextile (Vietnam) Company Socialist Republic of US$15,920,000 100 100 Production, dyeing
Limited Vietnam ("Vietnam") and sale of knitted
fabric
PG AR (M) BRAR HEETRLAE 15,920,000% 7T sHAHZEHERER
((F=0)
Creative Textile Technology PRC/Mainland China HK$150,000,000 100 100  Production and sale
Company (Guangdong) Limited' of garments
ANGS(RR)BRAT" TE/hE AR 75 #150,000,0007C RRZEH
Creative Textile Technology PRC/Mainland China HK$80,000,000 100 100  Production and sale
Company (Henan) Limited? of garments
AIRGERE CTR) BRAR HE/HERE 751#80,000,0007T MK EH
Creative Textile Technology British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100  Sale of garments
Company Limited Hong Kong
AIRGABRAR RERLEE/BB 1£7 AR ZSHE
Dongguan Innovative Trading PRC/Mainland China HK$8,000,000 100 100  Export trading
Company Limited!
REAIEZERAR' TE/hE AR 7#8,000,0007C HOEg5
Win Ready Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100  Property holding
HK$10 and
Non-voting
deferred HK$2
KEBXERAF BB BERBBI0TR BENE
ERFEELRS
BT
Winson Knitting Factory Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100 100  Property holding
Company Limited and Non-voting
deferred
HK$1,000,000
BB EEREBI0TR EXEIES
BRZBETRG
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

Winlife Trading Limited
KETERAT

Knight Force Inc.

Bt

Nice View Dyeing & Bleaching Limited

KRBEARLE

Baleno Holdings Limited

HeREEERAT

Baleno Kingdom Limited

HeBARAR

Guangzhou Friendship Baleno
Co. Ltd."

EMNRERCRRAHBRA R

Guangdong Baleno Co. Ltd.!

BRI REABR AT

Beijing Xing Yu Baleno Garment &
Decoration Co. Ltd"

It RBFRRERERGERAR

LEEARMHARLE

Place of incorporation/
registration
and business

Y BRR
S

Hong Kong

BB

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RERLHE/BB

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RERLHE/EH

Hong Kong

BB

PRC/Mainland China

hE/EAE

PRC/Mainland China

hE, hEKE

PRC/Mainland China

hE/ B

PRC/Mainland China

hE hEKE

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEE/
EEERA

HK$15,903,100

781%15,903,1007T

Us$1

1£7
HK$3,000,000

#13,000,0007T

US$20,000

20,000% 7T

HK$10,000

7#1%10,0007T

HK$103,800,000

71%103,800,0007T

HK$30,000,000

##30,000,0007T

US$500,000

500,000% 7t

RMB1,000,000

AE#1,000,0007T

RAREEER @)
B AR ER(E)
Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company Principal activities
KA RMEEER
ZHASE TEEHR
2025 2024
ZE-HE TBI@EE
100 100  Property holding
EXSLIES
100 100  Sale of garments
B ZSHE
100 100  Investment holding
REER
100 100  Investment holding and
retailing of casual
apparel and accessories
REERRERR
B2 EE
100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
ERRENBERD H
100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
ERRENZEER A
100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
ERRENBERD H
100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
ERREGNZERDH
100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
ERRENBERD H
RBAEREBTRAT —T-AFRH
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

-—

AEIREEER (&)
A DA R (F)

Place of incorporation/
registration
and business

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEE/
EERRA

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
AQRELER
ZARE
2025 2024
S ST =1

Principal activities

B BER
RS

FREK

Tianjin Dafu Friendship Baleno Co. PRC/Mainland China HK$2,100,000 100 100  Retailing and distribution
Ltd.! of casual apparel and
accessories
REAERERREER AR HEREARE 7##2,100,0007T ERRGNZEER D
Huge Growth Corporation British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100  Property holding
Mainland China
BSERARE RERLHE/HEAE 1%7% BEM#E
Bigpoint Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100  Holding of trademarks
Hong Kong and provision of
franchise services
ARERAT RBELHE/ B 1% HEBREREMSE
RE R
Successful Channel Corporation British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100  Property holding
Mainland China
RIRERE RERZHE/HEKE 1%Ex BENE
PT Baleno Kingdom Indonesia Indonesia Indonesian 51 51  Retailing of casual apparel
Rupiah (“IDR") and accessories
10,000,000,000
Bfe 10,000,000,000£1/2 & BERRSGY S BE

! These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises 1
under the laws of the PRC.

] B L) PSR
B

All subsidiaries other than Trustland Inc are indirectly held by the
Company.

BrTrustland Incsh - A EFRBEMIE LD RHHEA
DEBESH -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in FERFFIEARATCHMBAT  EERHHE
HAEBRFEZEEBREIZZEIERSE
SHEEFRIERANN - ESARFIHM
MBATESREBRAR

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRS Accounting Standards (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) as issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties, certain buildings
included in property, plant and equipment, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2025. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
()  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

2.1
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to ordinary equity holders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the
related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling
interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve and recognises the
fair value of any investment retained and any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRS Accounting
Standards for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 1

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current (the “2020 Amendments")

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the 2022 Amendments”)

Supplier Finance Arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025
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22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRS Accounting

Standards that are applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

(b)

(@]

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. Since the Group
has no sale and leaseback transactions with variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
occurring from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16,
the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a
right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled
in its own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion
option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for as an
equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact
its classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify
that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply
on or before the reporting date affect the classification
of that liability as current or non-current. Additional
disclosures are required for non-current liabilities that
are subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions of
its liabilities as at 1 April 2023 and 2024 and concluded
that the classification of its liabilities as current or non-
current remained unchanged upon initial application of the
amendments. Accordingly, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and require
additional disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure
requirements in the amendments are intended to assist users
of financial statements in understanding the effects of
supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash
flows and exposure to liquidity risk. As the Group does not
have supplier finance arrangements, the amendments did
not have any impact on the Group’s financial statements.

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRS
Accounting Standards, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements. The Group intends to
apply these new and revised HKFRS Accounting Standards, if
applicable, when they become effective.

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements®
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability:
Disclosures?
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and ~ Amendments to the Classification and
HKFRS 7 Measurement of Financial Instruments?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and  Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent
HKFRS 7 Electricity?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS Accounting HKFRS 10 and HKAS 72

Standards - Volume 11

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027

2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRS Accounting Standards
that are expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
While a number of sections have been brought forward
from HKAS 1 with limited changes, HKFRS 18 introduces new
requirements for presentation within the statement of profit or
loss, including specified totals and subtotals. Entities are required
to classify all income and expenses within the statement of profit
or loss into one of the five categories: operating, investing,
financing, income taxes and discontinued operations and to
present two new defined subtotals. It also requires disclosures
about management-defined performance measures in a single
note and introduces enhanced requirements on the grouping
(aggregation and disaggregation) and the location of information
in both the primary financial statements and the notes. Some
requirements previously included in HKAS 1 are moved to
HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors, which is renamed as HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation of
Financial Statements. As a consequence of the issuance of HKFRS
18, limited, but widely applicable, amendments are made to
HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 33 Earnings per Share
and HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. In addition, there are
minor consequential amendments to other HKFRS Accounting
Standards. HKFRS 18 and the consequential amendments to other
HKFRS Accounting Standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027 with earlier application
permitted. Retrospective application is required. The Group is
currently analysing the new requirements and assessing the
impact of HKFRS 18 on the presentation and disclosure of the
Group'’s financial statements.

HKFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply reduced
disclosure requirements while still applying the recognition,
measurement and presentation requirements in other HKFRS
Accounting Standards. To be eligible, at the end of the reporting
period, an entity must be a subsidiary as defined in HKFRS
10 Consolidated Financial Statements, cannot have public
accountability and must have a parent (ultimate or intermediate)
that prepares consolidated financial statements available for
public use which comply with HKFRS Accounting Standards.
Earlier application is permitted. As the Company is a listed
company, it is not eligible to elect to apply HKFRS 19. Some of the
Company's subsidiaries are considering the application of HKFRS
19 in their specified financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to the
Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments
clarify the date on which a financial asset or financial liability
is derecognised and introduce an accounting policy option
to derecognise a financial liability that is settled through
an electronic payment system before the settlement date if
specified criteria are met. The amendments clarify how to assess
the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets
with environmental, social and governance and other similar
contingent features. Moreover, the amendments clarify the
requirements for classifying financial assets with non-recourse
features and contractually linked instruments. The amendments
also include additional disclosures for investments in equity
instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial instruments with contingent features. The
amendments shall be applied retrospectively with an adjustment
to opening retained profits (or other component of equity) at
the initial application date. Prior periods are not required to be
restated and can only be restated without the use of hindsight.
Earlier application of either all the amendments at the same time
or only the amendments related to the classification of financial
assets is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Contracts Referencing
Nature-dependent Electricity clarify the application of the
“own-use” requirement for in-scope contracts and amend the
designation requirements for a hedged item in a cash flow
hedging relationship for in-scope contracts. The amendments
also include additional disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to understand the effects these contracts have on
an entity’s financial performance and future cash flows. The
amendments relating to the own-use exception shall be applied
retrospectively. Prior periods are not required to be restated
and can only be restated without the use of hindsight. The
amendments relating to the hedge accounting shall be applied
prospectively to new hedging relationships designated on or after
the date of initial application. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 shall be applied at the same
time. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute
a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 was removed by the HKICPA. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess
whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency and
how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement
date when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require
disclosures of information that enable users of financial statements
to understand the impact of a currency not being exchangeable.
Earlier application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or to
the cumulative amount of translation differences accumulated in
a separate component of equity, where appropriate, at the date
of initial application. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards —
Volume 11 set out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7 (and the
accompanying Guidance on implementing HKFRS 7), HKFRS
9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7. Details of the amendments that are
expected to be applicable to the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The amendments
have updated certain wording in paragraph B38 of HKFRS
7 and paragraphs IG1, 1G14 and 1G20B of the Guidance on
implementing HKFRS 7 for the purpose of simplification or
achieving consistency with other paragraphs in the standard
and/or with the concepts and terminology used in other
standards. In addition, the amendments clarify that the
Guidance on implementing HKFRS 7 does not necessarily
illustrate all the requirements in the referenced paragraphs
of HKFRS 7 nor does it create additional requirements.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments clarify
that when a lessee has determined that a lease liability has
been extinguished in accordance with HKFRS 9, the lessee is
required to apply paragraph 3.3.3 of HKFRS 9 and recognise
any resulting gain or loss in profit or loss. In addition, the
amendments have updated certain wording in paragraph
5.1.3 of HKFRS 9 and Appendix A of HKFRS 9 to remove
potential confusion. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

o HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements: The
amendments clarify that the relationship described in
paragraph B74 of HKFRS 10 is just one example of various
relationships that might exist between the investor and
other parties acting as de facto agents of the investor,
which removes the inconsistency with the requirement in
paragraph B73 of HKFRS 10. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

o HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: The amendments replace
the term “cost method” with “at cost” in paragraph 37
of HKAS 7 following the prior deletion of the definition
of “cost method”. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
Group'’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group'’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on
the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial assets
and liabilities at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 -  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties) the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2025 —E=- A F=H=+—H

24 BEEEFHHEE®E)

FERMEERE
HAENSBEREREREN AN EEETFE
BENR(FE  BEREEE  SREEKR
REWERN) - AERFZEEZTHES
HoBEECTHEESEAZEENELREE
UHEREERAAERHERFTNRSE
WHERNEEMERT  BRFFHREELEESL
AR EBIYRHMEEREEARN 2RER
A ERIERT  TREESEREEFRBHR
TELBEVMERE - BREELEMETRE
WEE . RSB B SEEE  —&
DRBEE (MBIAE) WIREET 2 EEM
BWREELEN A0 MERSELENH
/MR -

AREYECREERRATRESENAE
BRBERRE - REEEREBEER - AR
RERBE T RRRE TSI h 2 S8 EREE
EREERERRZHAIBRBRERERE -
BEBEDREEBRBERPRR - M
BENREMESEAR  BEBSRAERRE
HEEMBAZ RS BEEAR -

BEBEITETBFERTED - MFEZSE
PR - BIAFHE T WEEHE - BECERERZ
EEBERMBRESRESNTRESEE
EEEHRSBRHL TR - BEZERTE
CTRERAESMMEZEETFLERTRES
BUNBREMTE ) RMER < REE -
ERmzBEBEIREEBRFABER
HERAEEETIZEMSIEIR - BEZREE
BEAERREGEEMER 2 EEETEE
N



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

or

(b)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity; and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 EESTBR@®)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment
properties, the related revaluation surplus is retained in the
asset revaluation reserve and remains there until the subsequent
disposal or retirement of the property, when it is transferred from
the revaluation surplus to retained profits.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful
lives used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 25 years or over the remaining
lease terms of related land,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms

Plant and machinery 10 to 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and office 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
right-of-use assets) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date
of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

Trademarks

The useful lives of trademarks are assessed to be indefinite.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level
and are not amortised. The useful life of a trademark with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. For fabric, yarn and garments, cost is determined on a
weighted average basis and, for work in progress and finished
goods, cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. For casual apparel and
accessories, cost is determined on a weighted average basis
and includes all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal or to
make the sale.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land Over the remaining lease terms
Premises Over the remaining lease terms

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group
and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (continued)
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of premises (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms and is included in other income in
the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as other income in the
period in which they are earned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date,
that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments, equity investments,
debt investments and financial products issued by financial
institutions. Dividends on the equity investments are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information. The Group considers that there
has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a

"

third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a “pass-through” arrangement,
it evaluates, if and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans and
borrowings and payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accrued liabilities, lease
liabilities, derivative financial liabilities and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains
or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except for
the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk which
are presented in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other payables,
and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-
bearing bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes, except that deferred tax is not
recognised for the Pillar Two income taxes.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised at their fair values where
there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
subsidy relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account
and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and released to profit or loss by
way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly liquid
deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a loyalty programme in its retailing operation
which allows customers to accumulate award credits when they
purchase products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products sold
and the award credits issued. The consideration allocated to the
award credits is measured by reference to their fair value, i.e. the
value of the future redemption obligations by applying statistical
techniques.

The fair value of the award credits issued is deferred and
recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(@) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine
the amount of variable consideration that can be included
in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is
recognised.

(b) Rendering of services
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised upon
the completion of the relevant services.

() Provision of franchise and royalty services
Revenue from the provision of franchise and royalty services
is recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Income from the sale of scrap materials and sale of steam are
recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Technical service revenue is recognised upon the completion of
relevant technical support services.

Distribution right income is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Other income (continued)

Storage and services income from e-commerce is recognised over
the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of
its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate overseas
are required to participate in central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and an
associate are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that
the differences are attributable to non-controlling interests. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount in the
reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing
rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has lease contracts that include extension options.
The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether or not
to exercise the option to renew the lease. That is, it considers
all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change
in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability
to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew the lease (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2025 —E=- A F=H=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

The Group determines whether property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are impaired when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying values of these assets exceed their
recoverable amounts, which are the higher of their fair value less
costs of disposal and their value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the assets. When value-in-use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from
the assets or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Further details are contained in notes 12 and 14 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2025 was HK$32,468,000 (2024:
HK$19,845,000). Further details are contained in note 28 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of trademarks

The Group determines whether trademarks with indefinite
useful lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the trademarks.
Estimating the recoverable amount requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future sales from the cash-generating
units which use the trademarks and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. Further details are contained in note 17 to the financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition and location (or subject to different
leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences;
(ii) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii)
independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2025
was HK$497,089,000 (2024: HK$530,213,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement
and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management'’s judgement and estimates, based on management’s
expectations for future sales net of estimated selling expenses.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying amounts of the inventories and the write-down
charge/write-back amount in the period in which such estimate
has been changed. The carrying amount of inventories at 31
March 2025 was HK$1,242,676,000 (2024: HK$1,541,213,000).

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2025 —E=- A F=H=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is contained in note 21
to the financial statements.

Impairment of debt instruments at amortised cost

The Group reviews portfolios of debt instruments measured at
amortised cost to assess whether any impairment losses exist and
the amount of impairment losses if there is significant increase in
credit risk. The impairment loss for debt instruments measured
at amortised cost using the expected credit loss model is subject
to a number of key parameters and assumptions, including
the identification of loss stages, estimates of probability of
default, loss given default, exposures at default and discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and other
adjustment factors. The carrying amount of debt instruments at
amortised cost was HK$963,000 (2024: HK$20,258,000) as at 31
March 2025 (note 19).

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
("IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term,
and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when
leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and
garments segment;

(b) the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessories segment; and

() the "others” segment comprises, principally, the provision
of franchise services and property investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group'’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss) which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax.
The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except interest income,
compensation for the loss of inventories due to a fire accident,
gain from resumption of land and buildings, net fair value loss
on investment properties and non-lease related finance costs are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude time deposits, tax recoverable and
deferred tax assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
prevailing market prices.

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
The following tables present revenue, profit and certain assets,
liabilities and expenditures information of the Group for the
years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024:

TV

Segment revenue:

Production, dyeing and
sale of knitted fabric,
yarn and garments
$H87 » BORAKZ
EHRER

2025

—BCTE

HK§'000
Vi

2024

ZgopE

HK$000
Vit

4,

Retailing and
distribution of casual

apparel and accessories

ERRHZ
ZERAH

2025

- -

HK§°000
Vi

2024 2025

“ECNE —E-TE

HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BT

EETRER (®)

—ZoPEZ A=+ —BIEFEZRA - EF

REEE BERIHER

2024 2025 2024 2025
“E-_ME -—B-REf -—E-_NE —B-1fF
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
BRTr BT BEfr BEFA

Others Eliminations Consolidated

Hfp B &

A
"

2004
-
HKS000
BT

Sales to external customers EFHREF 4376418 3920887 1,207,085 1,443,408 1,985 2,245 - - 5585488 5366540

Intersegment sales PEEHE 74087 68877 - B3 - - (14087)  (82,300) - -

Other revenue =00 84,484 65,999 VARVI 3971 21,846 8313 (13,443) (2799 114,058 115,484
Total segment revenue PENREE 4534989 4055763 1,228,256 1,500,802 23831 10,558 (87,530) (85,099) 5,699,546 5,482,024
Segment results E 168,402 193,265  (168,174)  (113,928) 2,121 15,070 4942 (3,064) 26,897 90,743
Reconciliation: i
Interest income FEBA 89,150 85,516
Gain from resumption of land and ~ REM LR

buildings eIy 83,807 -
Net fair value loss on investment ~ REMEAAE

properties TERE (33124) (1319
Compensation for the loss of A EHEREFEAN

inventories due to a fire accident  E&f§ - 29,582
Finance costs (excluding intereston  BEER (TEERE

lease liabilities) BfERIS) (58912)  (30,855)
Profit before tax Bl 112818 161,7%
Income tax credit/(expense) s/ (#%) 414 (2809
Profit for the year AEEEA 116942 138,946
Segment assets PEEE 4856739 5616282 1841803 1597425 534925 561,673 (1413578) (1,791,112 5819889 5984268
Reconciliation: ETil
Unallocated assets KoHEE 1,067,762 1,123,890
Total assets BEE 6,887,651 7,108,158
Segment liabilities PEEE 699,062 874575 1,888,654 1,947,544 37,265 35180 (1412,774) (1453,759) 1212207 1,403,540
Reconciliation: i
Unallocated liabilities *oHER 906,275 912,053
Total liabilities B8k 2118482 2,315,593
Other segment information: B BER
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #1% + BERRER

and equipment and right-of-use ~ EREEERE

assets 237,116 207,621 165,327 168,312 - - - - 402483 375,933
Capital expenditure* B H* 289,652 165,473 15,397 31,275 - - - - 305,049 196,748
Write-down/(reversal of write- &M/ (HHEE)

down) of inventories (17,151) 3,639 (7310 (13,608) - - - - (24,461) (9,969)
Impairment/ (reversal of FElaRERE/

impairment) of trade receivables  (HEERE) - - 249 (1,567) - - - = 2,429 (1,567)
Impairment of right-of-use assets ~ FREEEHE = - 1,890 - - - - - 1890 -
Impairment of items of property, ~ #1% - BERRERE

plant and equipment - - 3,125 - - - - - 3125 -
Impairment/(reversal of FEBEHAN

impairment) of debt instruments ~ EBIEHE/(HE

at amortised cost &m) - - (3,870) 3,751 - - - - (3,870) 3,751

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment and construction in progress.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025

L BAMSHOEREYF  BERRERE
BIRE-



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. EEIEER @)
Geographical information b9 & R
The following table presents geographical revenue and non- TRAXERBZ-ZE-RAF=A=+—HK
current assets information of the Group for the years ended 31 —E_ME=ZA=t+—HIEEEZEK AR
March 2025 and 2024: FRBEEER :

USA Mainland China Japan Hong Kong Others Eliminations Consolidated
S REKE ik B i i B
025 04 005 04 2005 04 005 04 005 04 025 04 005 04

CECRE CECmE CECRE CE-ME CECRE CE-CME CECRE CE-ME CECRE CECME CECRE CECME CECRE CECME

HKS'000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSTO00  HKS000 HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
Bfn B¥fn B¥FR B¥Tn BFn BRTn B B BT BT BT BT BT BT

Revenue fromexternal ~ SPREEUA

customers 1710734 1564037 2253290 2411446 818370 527785 5EBI02 720482 21432 142790 - - 5585488 5366540

Non-current assets FhEE - - 1108251 1,240,114 - - 798349 849535  TI63M1 62714 - - 2682011 2712363
The Group’s geographical revenue and non-current assets AEBMIGWARFERDEEER (TEBER
information, excluding long-term rental deposits, financial assets HHLES  RARBESTAEEZENEREER
at fair value through profit or loss and deferred tax assets, are EERIBEE) Do RRETSEREEZME
based on the locations of the markets and assets, respectively. o HE o
Information about major customers FEEFZER
No sales to a single external customer (2024: Nil) contributed to RER  BEE—IIAFZF(ZEIF - #)
more than 10% of the Group’s revenue during the year. R AL AEBFRIWA10% L E o

BAESEERLT —S-HEH @



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. A~ B AR S
Revenue from contracts with customers REEEFITLNEHNHBRA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAHDIHUOT :
2025 2024
—E_RE —EmE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Sale of goods HEEm 5,575,066 5,360,540
Rendering of yarn dyeing services RRD IR 8,437 3,755
Franchise and royalty income R RE REFWA 1,985 2,245
Total &hEr 5,585,488 5,366,540
(i) Disaggregated revenue information ()  DIFUAEH
For the year ended 31 March 2025 BZE-_Z_HF=A=1+—HLEEE
Rendering of Franchise
Sale of yarndyeing and royalty
Types of goods or services goods services income Total
RERY BIRER
EmREREESR HEE M BR 7% BRI A &t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Segments 78
Production, dyeing and  #H ~ 18O R AR
sale of knitted fabric, EHRER
yarn and garments 4,367,981 8,437 - 4,376,418
Retailing and distribution {ERREMIZZER
of casual apparel and k|
accessories 1,207,085 - - 1,207,085
Others Hi - - 1,985 1,985
Total &5t 5,575,066 8,437 1,985 5,585,488

Geographical markets i 5

Hong Kong BB 588,702 - - 588,702
Mainland China PR K B 2,242,868 8,437 1,985 2,253,290
United States of America %[l 1,710,734 - - 1,710,734
Japan =N 818,370 - - 818,370
Others HAith 214,392 - - 214,392
Total S5 5,575,066 8,437 1,985 5,585,488
Timing of revenue WA FERR B

recognition

At a point in time HE—RFE 5,575,066 8,437 - 5,583,503

Over time RE—FER - - 1,985 1,985
Total &5t 5,575,066 8,437 1,985 5,585,488
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5.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2024

Types of goods or services

EmRRBES

5.

Sale of
goods

HEEm
HK$°000
BETT

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

WA ~ H AW A R U ss )

REEEFITIMNEHNMBA (E)

(i)  DIHEUAEH(E)
BE-_ZE-NF=A=+—HLEE

Franchise
and royalty
income
HFRER
HRWA
HK$’000
BT T

Rendering of
yarn dyeing
services
R
BR#%5
HK$’000
BT

Total
A
=R
HK$°000
BT

Segments E
Production, dyeing and  #F4i7 « O RKKZ

sale of knitted fabric, EHERER

yarn and garments 3,917,132 3,755 = 3,920,887
Retailing and distribution {ERR & &%) =

of casual apparel and ZERDH

accessories 1,443,408 - - 1,443,408
Others Hit = i 2,245 2,245
Total ST 5,360,540 3,755 2,245 5,366,540
Geographical markets 35 T 5
Hong Kong B8 720,482 - - 720,482
Mainland China R KR 2,405,446 3,755 2,245 2,411,446
United States of America %[ 1,564,037 - - 1,564,037
Japan HZR 527,785 - - 527,785
Others Hith 142,790 - - 142,790
Total &t 5,360,540 3,755 2,245 5,366,540
Timing of revenue PN 410

recognition

At a point in time NE—FEL 5,360,540 3,755 - 5,364,295

Over time AE—ER — — 2,245 2,245
Total = 5,360,540 3,755 2,245 5,366,540

BAEREERAT —Z-AFR



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5 WA > HRA RS #)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) RERFFITLNEHHKRA (E)
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) DHFUAER(E)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TRE AR H AR R R &5 5
recognised in the current reporting period that were et AEHEBZWAEEE :
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:
2025 2024
ZBCoRF —E-mE
HK$°000 HK$’000
EBETT BT T
Revenue recognised that was included in  REF] - THEHEZUWA
the contract liabilities at the beginning BEREH
of the year: aEd:
Sale of goods HEER 6,499 11,535
Customer loyalty programmes EFEHE 1,618 6,992
8,117 18,527
(i) Performance obligations (i) JBHIEF
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is REBBHNSEFEZENT :
summarised below:
Sale of goods HEL D

The performance obligation is satisfied upon acceptance of
the products by the customers. The Group’s trading terms
with its customers are mainly on credit and by cash. The
credit period is generally within 90 days.

Rendering of yarn dyeing services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when services are rendered and payment is generally due
upon completion of services and customer acceptance,
except for some customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.

Franchise and royalty income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and advances are normally required before
rendering the services. Franchise contracts are for periods
of one to two years.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025
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5.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(iii)

Unsatisfied performance obligations

For the sale of goods and rendering of yarn dyeing
services, the Group does not expect to have any contracts
with original expected duration of more than one year,
and therefore the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed as permitted by HKFRS
15.

For franchise and royalty income, the amounts of
transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
March 2025 and 2024 are as follows:

Within one year —FR
More than one year ZR—4E
Total A

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations expected to be recognised as
revenue after one year relate to franchise services, of which
the performance obligations are to be satisfied within two
years. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated
to the remaining performance obligations are expected to
be recognised as revenue within one year.

5.

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

WA ~ EAUW AR WS )

REEFFTINENHEA(F)

(iii)

FERERIEIE
PMEEE MR EHRORYE - FAEEL
EBEHBEAS OO FRREBIRGER
—F  TURREBMBRELERE15
FAEERBERERSEREEAERE
Bzai e

METCERERRA > R=Z-FHF
ZEA=t+—HRZZE-WE=A=1+—
B BXSZEREERTHENEMR
(REBATRBHARBITINOT :

2025 2024
—E_RF —E_ME
HK$°000 HK$’000
EETFT BT T
890 479

1,075 1,139
1,965 1,618
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5. WA~ Efbl AR WS @)
2025 2024
—E_FF —E_ME
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Other income and gains H A A R Uz
Interest income ISUON 89,150 85,516
Net fair value gains on IMESTEEMTIAEAARE
foreign exchange derivative W FEE
financial instruments 23 3,854 2,333
Gross rental income from investment REYELLEHERS
property operating leases ON -t 16,110 16,196
Compensation from suppliers for R ERESHEREE
defective goods 9,444 7,378
Government subsidies* BN Bh R 7,786 12,629
Sale of scrap materials SHERER 29,549 15,071
Rental income from suppliers and others fHFERT R H AL A 1,882 3,751
Sale of steam HEER 14,251 12,059
Reversal of impairment of trade FERER TR ERE
receivables 21 - 1,567

Gain on revision of lease terms arising  E A/ #HSEEE
from changes in the non-cancellable HARRE B MAEERN

period of leases HEBF 2 14 4,405 18,263
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary ~ zE§5—REIIE A 7 2z = 3,387
Net gains on disposal of property, HEWE  MERSZE

plant and equipment W FRE 2,754 10,518
Waiver of trade and other payables FE(TBRF R H A FE(SBR TR G2 BR 4,596 5,337
Distribution rights income DEHEWA = 1,557
Technical service income FATARFE A 7,199 1,117
Storage and services income from BRI 2B RERRFHRA

e-commerce 5,503 3,363
Sundry income HIEUWA 6,725 958
Total a5t 203,208 201,000

# Various government grants have been received from local # Tt 5 BT F B BT B o EEFEHR
governments. They mainly represented financial assistance for BB EER A FAREL LA EEE
the acquisition of the Group’s new machinery items, which are B BEREBEEEN EWER Z&EF
transferred from deferred income to profit or loss over the useful B -R-F-BF=ZFA=+—H FEFL
lives of the relevant assets. As at 31 March 2025, there were no FRIER(F 5 E BB B 5 16 = K B
unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to the TTIRURAMKEERE(—E-F &) -
government grants that had been recognised by the Group (2024:

Nil).
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6.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold*
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Employee benefit expenses, including directors’
and senior management'’s remuneration
(note 7):

Wages, salaries and other allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions**

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Contingent rents under operating leases

Gain on revision of leases term arising from
changes in the non-cancellable period of
leases

Auditor's remuneration
Foreign exchange differences, net*
Net fair value losses on investment properties

Gross rental income from investment property
operating leases*

Less: direct operating expenses (including
repair and maintenance) arising from rental
earning investment properties

Net rental income

Reversal of write-down of inventories*
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of
trade receivables*
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of
debt instruments at amortised cost*
Impairment of right-of-use assets*
Impairment of property, plant and equipment*
Net fair value losses/(gains) on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss*
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange
derivative financial instruments
Net gains on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Compensation for the loss of inventories due
to a fire accident (note)
Gain from resumption of land and buildings

BEEYZRA
0% BERRERE
ERERENRE

BERFHX - BRESN
BREEABME (H27)

TE  HFEREWZE
BB BIER

HER(TEENMEIERE

ZFTE)

ReMET2HEHS

B AR AR EHRR
Z2PMEENEERT 2
Wz

RS

EHEME B
REMEDABRBETZE

REMFLLHERSWALE

B EREERX (BRRER
HEER)REWERENS

HEWAFE

FEHARE
EUERRE (RERE)*

ROBERANEBIA
HiE/ ORERE)*
EREEERE"
0% - BERRERE
BRARBERHABENERER
B8/ (&) =
MEFTESRTAARE
W FE
HEME - BERRE
Wah B
REBHEREFRANEE
(#at)
RRR L REEY RS

12
14(a)

14(c)
14(c)

14(c)

13

21
19

14(a)
12

23

BRBE A E A
AEEZBRBATRFBS IR (L) :

2025 2024
“EC-RE —ENF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT BETT
4,265,792 3,957,563
239,408 218,145
163,035 157,788
1,077,743 1,024,781
7,216 7,355
1,084,959 1,032,136
55,266 114,770
48,971 33,755
(4,405) (18,263)
3,044 3,280
(31,303) 2,602
33,124 13,192
(16,110) (16,196)
4,047 3,828
(12,063) (12,368)
(24,461) (9,969)
2,429 (1,567)
(3.870) 3,751
1,890 =
3,125 =
(714) 1,330
(3,854) (2,333)
(2,754) (10,518)
= (29,582)
(88,807) =
EAkELEFRAT —Z-HFH



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2025 —E=- A F=H=+—H

6.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2022, certain inventories located

*%

in Mainland China were damaged in a fire accident which occurred
at a third party warehouse. The carrying amount of the damaged
inventories and related costs amounting to HK$162,278,000 was
written off. During the year ended 31 March 2024, the compensation
was finalised by the insurance company and the remaining amount
of approximately HK$29,582,000 was received and credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Cost of inventories sold includes reversal of write-down of
inventories, staff costs, depreciation and lease payments totalling
HK$582,236,000 (2024: HK$499,681,000) which are also included in
the respective total amounts disclosed above for each of these types
of expenses.

These items are included in the “Other operating expenses, net” or
“Other income and gains” on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group
as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.
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6.

BREBIRIER (7)
MiF: BE-—FE-—F=ZFA=+—HIEE LK

* ok

FEABEZE FHRERNE=BEEZEENE
TE% - BRIET{E B/E#162,278,0007T 2 B8
REEREBRAEM - B2 —F_IF
ZA=+—HIEFE REXTEEZEE
$£EE 0 BT £ AE4)E 29,582,000 B Y [E]
RIREE 18 a2 B [E]

EEEYZH AT EIEFEMAZEEL - 5T
B HTER G R 8 1582,236,0007T
(ZFEZ[94F : j8#499,681,0005T ) IR L _E
EEE BRI E

ZEFBABFAGEBR RN AMEEE
FH - RIS BN AR Kz [ o

R EE B 0E T AR WA AR5
BHRIEFIKF -



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration paid during the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation,

is as follows:

7.

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

EESNSREEAEHERAMUES
FMES

EEME

BEMBA - BB D EEAGE383(1))
(b) ~ (ORMFERLABREESFEER) R
PIEZF > AEEXINESHME 2 REWT ¢

2025 2024
—E_FF —E_ME
HK$000 HK$’000
BYTFT BHEFT
Fees: weE
Executive directors HITES 40 34
Independent non-executive directors BYFHITES 1,730 1,628
Subtotal INET 1,770 1,662
Other emoluments: Hiui & -
Executive directors: HITES :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMRIIERSEFR 29,211 22,870
Performance related bonuses* FRIBBMRFEAT* 12,566 4,879
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIKER T EIH 36 18
Subtotal et 41,813 27,767
Total 45T 43,583 29,429
* The executive directors of the Company are entitled to discretionary * KAGHITEZZF FHEBEALRL G EEE D

performance payments not exceeding a certain percentage of the
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company. The
performance related bonuses paid to each director were determined
with reference to the performance of the directors and the results
of the Group.

BB BRI E T EOEEBEIELN
RBHHTEAL o BV G EEZ RBHHTE
ARRELFEZEF XKL REBFE
EE -

EAkELEFRAT —Z-HFH



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 7. EE=HNEREEASMERENES

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FMES (@)

EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued) EEWE(E)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUHIITEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors REREZNFFEILFPITESZHSE
during the year were as follows: wr

2025 2024

—E-REF —E-MEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

EBETT BT T

Cheng Shu Wing LS 570 570

Law Brian Chung Nin ZEhE 590 570

Ho Lai Hong (note (i) AR (BT3E (i) = 346

Lin Kit Yee Anna (note (ii)) MORER (ML (i) 570 142

Total ast 1,730 1,628

Notes: Bfat -

(i) Mr. Ho Lai Hong was appointed as an independent non- () AEEAER=E==FNNF=1—

AEZFERBEVHHITEERR=-F
CEFEt—ANAABYHHTESE

executive director on 31 August 2022 and re-designated from
independent non-executive director to executive director on

BITBHITESE -

9 November 2023. BAEBHITESE

(i) Ms. Lin Kit Yee Anna was appointed as an independent non- (i) BEE AR = — i — — R
executive director on 1 January 2024. FIEETIEHTES o

RER - WE(ZEZME - 8) QB IFNT
EEXHEMME -

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2024: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S 7. EEHNESHEEAEMERANES

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID SIES (&)
EMPLOYEES (continued)
Directors’ remuneration (continued) EEME(E)
(b)  Executive directors (b)) HITEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances  Performance benefit
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions remuneration
& ENR 30 BEEF
ne FRLEA HEFEA FTEIER MemmE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BEFT BEFTT BEFT BEFTT
2025 —B-EHE
Poon Bun Chak BWE 10 13,071 7,176 - 20,257
Ho Lai Hong HERE 10 5,577 2,000 - 7,587
Poon Ho Tak BEE 10 3,059 3,390 18 6,477
Ng Mo Ping (note (i)) KRERF D)) 10 7,504 - 18 7,532
40 29,211 12,566 36 41,853
2024 —E-ME
Poon Bun Chak BWE 10 13,648 2,504 - 16,162
Ting Kit Chung (note (i) ~ THER(HzL(ii) 10 4,359 885 2 5,254
Poon Ho Tak e 10 2,660 1,490 18 4,178
Ho Lai Hong (note (iii)) TR (HzL (i) 4 2,203 - 2,207
34 22,870 4,879 18 27,801
Notes: BraE -
(i) Mr. Ng Mo Ping was appointed as an executive director on 1 (i) RBRFPAELER-ZFE_EPH—HE
April 2024. EERHITESE -
(i) Mr. Ting Kit Chung resigned as an executive director on 1 (i) THELLER=ZFZ[FE—F—HR
January 2024. FHITESE -
(i) Mr. Ho Lai Hong re-designated from independent non- (i)  WEBELER-—E_=F+—HFNH
executive director to executive director on 9 November 2023. BB VKB TEBEFTRHTES °
Save as disclosed above, there was no arrangement MREXFIEBEEN  UBREERFAR
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any FHRENZEIRDERETMAMEHR
remuneration during the year or after the year end. o

BAESEERLT —S-HEH @
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

7.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7.
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

Senior management’s remuneration

Senior management’s remuneration for the year was within the
following bands:

BEENSREEAEMERANVES
FNES (@)

EREBAEME
TEEEEXNEREBAEMESBN T IIEH
:

2025 2024
—E-5%F —2omF

Number of Number of
individuals individuals

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 ##2,000,001 7T £ % #2,500,0007T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 7E#2,500,001 7T £ % #3,000,0007T 7 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 7#3,500,001 7T £ %#4,000,0007T 1 1
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 711,500,001 7T Z 8% 12,000,0007T = 1

2 3

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
directors (2024: three), details of whose remuneration are set out
in “Directors’ remuneration” above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining one (2024: two) highest paid
employee who is not a director of the Company are as follows:

ANREFHMES
AERENBREFHESSENV (==X
FIZMEE HEMFBCHNULENE
EMe IR - BT (ZZE-MF : W) K
EEMES (HUEARDTNES) NAFELE
FEWT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMRIIRESEF
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKER 2R

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025

2025 2024
—E-RHF —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$°000
BYFT JBHF T
3,810 15,786

18 36

3,828 15,822




8.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

Five highest paid employees (continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

EENEAEBAEMERENES
HiNES (®)

TGS FMES(F)
AEECXNIESRSTFMEENSBRT
HIEE -

Number of employees

BEAH

2025
—E-RHE

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 7B#53,500,001 7T £ #%4,000,0007T 1 1
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 7#511,500,001 T E #E#12,000,0007T - 1
1 2

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERREZFE
Interest on lease liabilities (note 14(b)) HEAERE (HF140))

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2024: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group
which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2024: HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2024: 8.25%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2024: 16.5%).

Pursuant to the PRC Income Tax Law and the respective
regulations, companies of the Group which operate in Mainland
China were subject to Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") at the rate
of 25% (2024: 25%) on the taxable profit for the years ended 31
March 2025 and 2024.

Certain companies of the Group which operate in Mainland China
were subject to CIT at the rate of 15% (2024: 15%) as qualified
high and new technology enterprises and entitled to deduct
qualifying research and development expense from taxable profit
during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

MBER
2025 2024
—g-nF —E-mE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BT
58,912 30,855
19,152 20,342
78,064 51,197

HiE

ERFEHERFANREBRM 2 HeTER
FURFI LB E16.5% (ZFE=MF : 16.5%)12
BEE BAEE-RMEARKRN  ZA
AAEEREAFESHMAFNELRE - ZM
BT EB%2,000,000T (=S4 : 8
#52,000,0007T ) HY FE SR FL R 128.25% (=&
PN 8.25%) TR ERAB 0 BRT WERR
FEAIE16.5% (ZF = MH4F : 16.5%) KB =R

RIBPEFMERERERER  AEERTE
A EEN AR ERBE_S-_AFR_F
“WE=A=1t—RAIFEZEMRBTSER
25% (ZZ MU : 25%) B RN B EFTE
(T BEMBEHR] -

BE_Z_HFR-_ZT-_WNE=A=+—HL
FE  AEERTFERHEENETARMES
EERNBIEMEERIS%(ZE=NF :
15% ) T RBMEEFEH  WHEBRER
BETSBERIRFEIRENHRER -

EAkELEFRAT —Z-HFH



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

9. INCOME TAX (continued)
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

BiE®)
BRI ERFIERIE  DIREAEEE
BES AT B2 BB EHE -

2025 2024
—E_FF —E_ME

HK$°000 HK$°000

BT BEFT

Current tax — Hong Kong and Mainland China ZN&E#{18 — &8 & B KFE :

Charge for the year RNEEEE 18,066 12,469

Overprovision in prior years AFEREBLE (8,183) (232)
Withholding tax FENHIE 40,787 -
Deferred tax (note 28) IERERLIE (H7£28) (54,794) 10,611
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year REEHERSR (ER)ET (4,124) 22,848

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax charge/(credit) at the effective tax rate is as follows:

BIRARD AR EASENKB D T FERLE
BB BB ANER UL EER R E 2 HIB6M
Y (ER)EREERERREREADN
T

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rates

Adjustments in respect of current tax of
previous years

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Effect of withholding tax on the
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries

Unrecognised tax losses

Tax losses utilised from previous periods

Tax losses recognised

Reversal of deferred tax assets on inventory
loss due to a fire accident

Others

Total tax charge/(credit) for the year

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025

R AT R

BEERENHIA
REFENERHIRHE

BAZH WA

AR R < & F

PAEEE PRI E A B A2 K
ENENFIENTE

REERBIREIR

SR ABEHEZBIARE

SRR

KKBHIEREFRKN
EAERIRE ERD

Ht

AEEHRIEFR (KR A5

2025 2024
s ==u-F
HK$°000 HK$000
BT EETT
112,818 161,794
12,797 11,457
(8,183) (232)
(23,555) (47,112)
9,377 9,112
2,417 2,304
33,077 56,329
(13,019) (7,305)
(12,870) -
- 5,751
(4,165) (7,456)
(4,124) 22,848




Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

INCOME TAX (continued)

Pillar Two income taxes

The Group is within the scope of the Pillar Two model rules.
Under the Pillar Two legislation, the Group is liable to pay a
domestic minimum top-up tax for the difference between the
jurisdictional Global Anti-Base Erosion effective tax rate and the
minimum rate of 15%. The Group has applied the mandatory
exception for recognising and disclosing information about
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from Pillar Two income
taxes, and will account for the Pillar Two income taxes as current
tax when incurred.

The Pillar Two legislation has become effective on 1 January
2024 in Vietnam, a jurisdiction in which the Group operates. The
Group has assessed that there is no top-up tax exposure for the
year ended 31 March 2025 with respect to the Group’s Vietnam
operation.

For other jurisdictions where the Group operates, as of the
reporting date, Pillar Two legislation has been enacted in Hong
Kong and Indonesia. The enacted legislation in Hong Kong
and Indonesia will be applicable to the Group starting from
its financial year on 1 April 2025. The Group has performed an
assessment of its exposure to Pillar Two income taxes based on
the information available regarding the financial performance of
relevant subsidiaries in the current year. As such, information used
is not entirely representative of the actual circumstances in 2025.
Based on the assessment, the Group does not expect a material
exposure to Pillar Two income tax yet.

The Group continues to follow Pillar Two legislative developments
in jurisdictions in which the Group operates, to evaluate the
potential future impact on its financial statements.

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

BiIE (%)

R FTEH

AEEEN A S SRR o RIFTA
SR AEEEEAREERFEHEND
BRBEFSEEBRE15%RERE BN
ERSMEHRERER - AEECEARY
HRENERNRE SR FFERELNEES
BEENGBNEN LB FERER
EREREHTERETEEE -

IHZERENRENE— B —BEAEE
BT ME A - RIBAREBMPTME » &
EEEERBE-_E-HF=A=1T—HL*TF
ERME SRR

o EAREEEEMRES  BEHEAR
BEERHNECERIMETESR - EEBRIEE
EERNEREEARSTEEE -Z-RF0
A—BENBMHFE - XEBZEENE AT
REEMBRRNVBABEMBEEZRER
RBRAEST T 52 - Bt - FIEAMNERL R
ERARTZB-AFNERIER o REFTME - &
EERBEMTEHRERWIAEZAEHEA
B o

REBRFERIIE - EEEEEMTIHN
SOEBR o UEHEH HM BRI ARIEER
@,

RAERERRLAT —T-RFRH



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

10. DIVIDENDS 10. B2
2025 2024
—BCRF —T-mE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BEFT
Interim dividend - HK1.0 cent PEIRE - BRE BB 1.010
(2024: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share (ZE I © BHS5.01L) 13,817 69,085
Special interim dividend — HK3.0 cents AP ERE - BRERRIEBEE3.0M
(2024: Nil) per ordinary share (Z=Z-mF : TEA) 41,451 =
Proposed final dividend - HK1.0 cent BRI S — SRERREE1.01
(2024: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share (ZEIUEF © BE2.01L) 13,817 27,634
Proposed special final dividend — HK5.0 cents  #0R4FBIRER S — SR ZER
(2024: Nil) per ordinary share BES.0I(ZZ=ME  REA) 69,085 -
138,170 96,719
The proposed final dividend and special final dividend for the REERIRZARAREREFHIARPREAGR
year are subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at NERRANERITHWRRBEARS LBES -

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 11. BEA AR EERBIAEEERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based EXAGRENCHEDEAARERERME
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders ERLZEESNRAZERERTEER
of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary 1,381,696, 1048 (== =4 : 1,381,696,104
shares of 1,381,696,104 (2024: 1,381,696,104) in issue during the BR) z IR BGETE -

year.

The Company had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue AARRBEZZE-_AF=A=+—HR=ZF
during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. TWE=A=+—HLEFERTESBHITHE

RS B ENE AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% BRERRE

Furniture,
fixtures Motor
Leasehold Plant and and office vehicles

Buildings improvements machinery  equipment and yacht Total

B RER
BT REETRE REREE  ROERE  NERER &
HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
BETR BETn  BEFr  EBRTn BETn BRTx

31 March 2025 “E-RFZA=t+-H
At 1 April 2024: RZZ-MEMA-A:
Cost or valuation BASHE 1,346,870 405,890 3,245,333 208,636 96,053 5,302,782
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTERAE
impairment (884,068) (367,387)  (2,442,107) (122,833) (77,516) (3,893,911)
Net carrying amount REFE 462,802 38,503 803,226 85,803 18,537 1,408,871

At 1 April 2024, net of accumulated ~ R=B=MEMA-A -

depreciation and impairment ENBEHTERAE 462,802 38,503 803,226 85,803 18537 1,408,871
Additions RE 1,392 11,689 45,673 22,303 12,795 93,852
Disposals EE (8,743) (118) (5,548) (4,116) (195) (18,720)
Depreciation provided during the FRITEEE(HiL6)

year (note 6) (43,713) (14,820) (150,497) (23,573) (6,805) (239,408)
Transfer from construction in EQfEIR(WE15)

progress (note 15) 22,334 - 195,805 - - 218,139
Impairment (note 6) RE(Hits) - (3,125) - - - (3,125)
Exchange realignment EHAZ (2,437) 219 (3,770) (754) (124) (6,866)
At 31 March 2025, net of RIEZRE=A=1-B"

accumulated depreciation and EHNREGHTERAE

impairment 431,635 32,348 884,889 79,663 24,208 1,452,743
At 31 March 2025: R=B-EF=F=+-R:

Cost or valuation BAHER 1,311,461 398,103 3,410,075 209,093 99,970 5,428,702

Accumulated depreciation and ZERAE

impairment (879,826) (365,755) (2,525,186) (129,430) (75,762) (3,975,959)

Net carrying amount REFE 431,635 32,348 884,889 79,663 24,208 1,452,743
Analysis of cost or valuation: RSB :

At cost B 1,297,859 398,103 3,410,075 209,093 99,970 5,415,100

At 31 March 1992 valuation R-AR=E=A=+-H

fbE 13,602 - - - - 13,602
1,311,461 398,103 3,410,075 209,093 99,970 5,428,702

BAESEERLT —S-HEH @
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31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12. Y% BERSEE®)

Furniture,
fixtures Motor

Leasehold Plant and and office  vehicles and
Buildings  improvements machinery  equipment yacht Total

ffh - RER
BT REETEE REREN  HOERE  NEREE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTR E¥Tn  ERTn ERTr EETn EETx

31 March 2024 “E-ME=A=1+-H
At 1 April 2023; RZZ-=4NA-R:
Cost or valuation BASfHE 1,221,865 853,305 3,229,111 234,558 105,263 5,644,102
Accumulated depreciation and ZIHTERAE
impairment (890,005) (820,890) (2,461,984) (177,763) (89,394) (4,440,036)
Net carrying amount REEE 331,860 32,415 767,127 56,795 15,869 1,204,066

At 1 April 2023, net of accumulated ~ R=B==%MA-R -

depreciation and impairment EHRZHTERRE 331,860 32,415 767,127 56,795 15,869 1,204,066
Additions NE - 32,208 73,538 13,998 7,828 127,572
Acquisition of a subsidiary WeE—-EHE AR (Hit31)

(note 31) 170,745 - 154,783 35,968 2,041 363,537
Disposals EE = = (2,691) (1,692) (590) (4,973)
Depreciation provided during the ~ ERTEEE (Hi26)

year (note 6) (39,787) (19,372) (134,566) (18,384) (6,036) (218,145)
Transfer from construction in BEERIR(MH15)

progress (note 15) - - 357 - - 357
Exchange realignment E R (16) (6,748) (55,322) (882) (575) (63,543)
At 31 March 2024, net of RIBE-RE=A=+-H "

accumulated depreciation and ENRESHTERAE

impairment 462,802 38,503 803,226 85,803 18,537 1,408,871
At 31 March 2024: REB-ME=A=+-A:

Cost or valuation BASEE 1,346,870 405,890 3,245,333 208,636 96,053 5,302,782

Accumulated depreciation and ZERAE

impairment (884,068) (367,387) (2,442,107) (122,833) (77,516) (3,893,911)

Net carrying amount REFE 462,802 38,503 803,226 85,803 18,537 1,408,871
Analysis of cost or valuation: A EER -

At cost A 1,333,268 405,890 3,245,333 208,636 96,053 5,289,180

At 31 March 1992 valuation R-ANZE=ZA=+-H

fhfE 13,602 - - - - 13,602
1,346,870 405,890 3,245,333 208,636 96,053 5,302,782

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025



12.

13.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s management identified certain
retail shops of its retailing and distribution of casual apparel
and accessories business which continued to underperform;
and estimated the recoverable amounts of the corresponding
property, plant and equipment. Based on these estimates, an
impairment loss of HK$3,125,000 (2024: Nil) was recognised
during the year to write-down the carrying amount of these items
of property, plant and equipment to their aggregate recoverable
amount of HK$518,000 as at 31 March 2025. The recoverable
amount of the items of property, plant and equipment was
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering the remaining
lease terms. The pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash flow
projection ranged from 13.8% to 14.0% (2024: 14.4% to 16.0%).

Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings were revalued
in 1992 by independent professionally qualified valuers. Since
1993, no further revaluation of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings had been carried out as the Group has relied upon the
exemption granted under the transitional provisions in paragraph
80A of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, from the
requirement to carry out future revaluations of its property, plant
and equipment which were stated at valuation at that time. Had
such leasehold land and buildings been carried at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would have
been nil (2024: approximately HK$99,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REFREE

Carrying amount at beginning of year
Net fair value loss on investment properties
(note 6)

(hyete)

RERREE

Carrying amount at end of year

12.

13.

REMELAEBRFHE

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

ME - BERRB@®)
F_7_£¢ A=+-8" $$lﬁ@ﬁﬁ
EFRARENERR N2 TERS B

EIE - EEHEEYE - BmERRE ﬁ%?%@
f@ c REBEZEME  REAFREERRE
E5 18 A 78%3,125,000 T (ZE -0 : )
DAL BERE ﬁﬁamﬁﬁﬁﬁi
“ERF=A=+—HLEMATRE £ EEMOE
ZBH518,0007T ° ¥ > MERREEEN
e ERREFAEETEREN > Z&E
Fﬁ%‘l@ﬁ’g%‘l’ EE"IﬁﬁmLEi‘E&!U ; Eiiﬁfﬁ
ERNERREFGEELRNWMERE -
EARRESREEANITEREESR13.8%F
14.0%(ZZZNF : 14.4%%E16.0%)

HHFHEELHREFER - AN FLE
VEEGEMETER - AEERE-ANZF
B WEHHAE T RETEE—SEHE
B EAEERESSTEINE 16Ky
BEREEESOABRBEMGR REehHEE
DERGEARNYE  BERZEEFNG
REEER - MZSHELHREFTREDK
KEBITESR  HREEEANRE(ZZ
PO @ ##£99,0007T) °

REYHE

2025 2024

“E-RF —ETNE

HK$°000 HK$°000

BT T BHEFT

530,213 543,405
(33,124) (13,192)

497,089 530,213

EAkELEFRAT —Z-HFH
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31 March 2025 —E=- A F=H=+—H

13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties with a carrying value of
HK$497,089,000 (2024: HK$530,213,000) are situated in Hong
Kong. The Group’s investment properties consist of 12 (2024: 12)
industrial properties in Hong Kong. The directors of the Company
have determined that the investment properties consist of one
class of asset, i.e., industrial, based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of each property.

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued on 31
March 2025 based on valuations performed by Chung, Chan
& Associates and PSA (HK) Surveyors Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers. Each year, the Company’s board
of directors decides to appoint which external valuers to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s financial controller has discussions with
the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
once a year when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under

operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 14(f) to the financial statements.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025
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REWME®)

BRTH {E 578 #5497,089,0007T (2 =94 : &
#£530,213,0007T) VIR EWENREE o &NE
ERENESENNREBZNREIEEZF (=
TOPE D 12{8) c RBZFREWEZMEE -
BEEERE  AATNEERIREMEHR &
EEFERIARK  BTHEEF -

RZZBE-RF=A=+—H UREBNRE
MERBEEEER 2B LAEMEETRE
TR (BB AEBMITETER - 85 Q7
ZESSATRMANSEEMESHAEEZ
REYEEITINGE o BEERM ZBEER
HHBHE B8  BUMKEREEEEE
%o REF M BBENGERRREELS

BF AR EBTENBRR SR EMET

BECR

REMEDUEEANBEFE=E > FHEER
A IS IRIRFIFE14() ©



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2025 —E—-F#=HA=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

13. BEWHE#®)
ARBEER
TREAAEFMREYEN D ABHBER

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2025
R-B-_RAFE=A=+—HWARETERH

Quoted

prices

in active

markets

RIER
™IS RE
(Level 1)
(B—%)
HK$'000
BT T

B T AR 9
ARMEHE -

THiET -

Recurring fair value
measurement for:
Industrial properties

Significant
observable
inputs

BEX
ATEEN
[TPN-¢-
(Level 2)
(B=%&)
HK$°000
BT T

Significant
unobservable
inputs
BEARFH
B

A B
(Level 3)
(B=4#R%)
HK$'000
BT T

497,089

Total
BmE
HK$’000
BT T

497,089

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2024

REZB-ME=ZA=+—HNAAREFTERA

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BX BAARA
AV B GIE-E3:0) BEn
TIZHYIRIE WA B BB
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(EE—4%) (EE=#) (B=#) e
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Recurring fair value AT EEEMEN
measurement for: AREGTE -
Industrial properties TH#EF - - 530,213 530,213
EAEREFRAT —Z-HFR
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31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REWHE @)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) RAABEERE)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurement FER E—RESE_FOEIBEMDA
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level STEMNER FMERKE=REAZELH(ZZ
3 (2024: Nil). ZPUEE &) e

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within PEARAE=ZFAARNBEERNAABETTELER

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Industrial
properties

THEF
HK$°000
BT T
—EC=FMA-BREE 543,405
RERFEERFHE (13,192)

Carrying amount at 1 April 2023 i
Net loss from fair value adjustments N

Carrying amount at 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 RZ-ZZ-_MHFE=A=+—HEK

—E-_NFMA—-BEREE 530,213
Net loss from fair value adjustments AREFARERTFE (33,124)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2025 R-ZE-_HF=A=+—RHEKREE 497,089
Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and LTAREYEGERMANGELEZRETER
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: AEIENHIE :
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range/weighted average
ftER% EAXATTRENGALE &8/ ETY
2025
“E-RE
Industrial properties Income approach Estimated rental value HK$6.6 to HK$19.7 HK$6.3 to HK$12.5
located in Hong Kong: W& i (per sq.ft. and per month) BH6.6TEBE19.7T Bke3T2B12.57
UREBNIRET e BEEFIRRES)
Market yield 3.1%-3.9% 2.8%-3.2%
mElEE
Direct comparison Unit market price HK$3,688 HK$4,080
approach (per sq.ft) #B%3,6887T 7B#4,0807T
BELEE BEMUMSEEHFIR)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Income approach

Under the income approach, fair value is estimated on the basis
of capitalisation of existing rental income.

The market rentals of the investment properties are assessed
and capitalised at the market yield expected by investors for this
type of properties. The market rents are assessed by reference
to the rentals achieved in the investment properties as well as
other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The
market yield, which is the capitalisation rate adopted, is made
by reference to the yields derived from analysing the sales
transactions of similar properties and adjusted to take account of
the valuers’ knowledge of the market expectation from property
investors to reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment
properties.

The key inputs were the market rent and the market yield, which
a significant increase/decrease in the market rent in isolation
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties and a significant increase/decrease in
the market yield in isolation would result in a significant decrease/
increase in the fair value of the investment properties.

Direct comparison approach

Under the market approach, fair value is estimated by the direct
comparison method on the assumption of the sale of the property
interest with the benefit of vacant possession and by reference to
comparable sales transactions as available in the market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the
investment properties, which include the location, size, layout,
view, floor level, year of completion and other factors collectively,
to arrive at the market price per unit.

The key input was the market price per unit, where a significant
increase/decrease in the market price would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.

13.

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

REWE #)

DREERAF)

Woas 2

BEREE  DAEREEHSBARTES
MERETEST o

REMENTSHSRIBYEIREETAHN
MmISWERFEALEARL - HSHEETIURE
YIEMFEHNE S R EMAKET SRR HEE
TUEATEE - MBS RBTANERCF
R JRERAMBLNEEERHEERS G
W REE - W EEMHNEREEL TS
TAMAEE L AR  LURRAEBRE %
HBEE -

FTEBABBATSHERTERER - MR
BHSEBXEEM FH  BERREYHE
DABEREEN B - MOHERERER
RIEEM, WD - BEBIREWE D AEKE
B B0 o

EEHEE

EMSET  DABEREELRBUEETES
BREEEEEBRANYERER  XBEH
5 F AT ELEEER S -

HEFEZRRENENEY  BEVE X
PR R BE - RIFHREME
- LSHESENImE-

TEHAHBRSENTE  mEAELA
THRESHRENEINABEBRELA THE-

RAERERRLAT —T-RFRH
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31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

14. LEASES 14. #HE

The Group as a lessee REBESEEBA

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land NEBBEELE TP FANSEBHEE L
BFENWHEEERE  EATEET IR SR
BEERIHEENGRRESHERR20E
SOFEMAAE Ty - W EBBEFENK - BFHE
E-RAB2Z2FWHER - BFEAEHEE
MNEESE  TESE— S5

and premises used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with
lease periods of 20 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of premises
generally have lease terms between 2 and 25 years. There are
lease contracts that include variable lease payments, which are
further discussed below.

(a)  Right-of-use assets (a) EFESE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and EENFERAEEERDARERESH N
the movements during the year are as follows: T

Leasehold land Premises Total
+ih BF At
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
JBIETF T BT T BT T
As at 1 April 2023 RIE_=FNA—H 105,693 299,100 404,793
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — R B A =
(note 31) (H1a#31) 175,586 - 175,586
Additions Hri - 203,794 203,794
Depreciation (note 6) e (Hite) (5,718) (152,070) (157,788)
Revision of lease terms arising  E a5 NWHEE AR
from a change in the non- BEMELEDN
cancellable period of a lease HEE: - (4,151) (4,151)
Exchange realignment & H R (496) (10,232) (10,728)
As at 31 March 2024 and RIZE-WFE=A
1 April 2024 =+t-AE
ZE-NFMA—H 275,065 336,441 611,506
Additions g - 153,190 153,190
Depreciation (note 6) e (fft6) (10,929) (152,106) (163,035)
Impairment (note 6) BB (FrEte) - (1,890) (1,890)
Revision of lease terms arising  E T a[#sEHEE IR
from a change in the SEMEEN
non-cancellable period THEEET
of a lease - (8,079) (8,079)
Disposals RE (2,762) - (2,762)
Exchange realignment FEE 54, %R (750) (1,388) (2,138)
As at 31 March 2025 R-ZBE-RE=8
=Sqr== 260,624 326,168 586,792
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s management identified
certain retail shops of its retailing and distribution of
casual apparel and accessories business which continued
to underperform; and estimated the recoverable amounts
of the corresponding right-of-use assets. Based on these
estimates, an impairment loss of HK$1,890,000 (2024:
Nil) was recognised during the year to write down the
carrying amount of these items of right-of-use assets to
their aggregate recoverable amount of HK$6,337,000 as
at 31 March 2025. The recoverable amount of the items of
right-of-use assets was determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering the remaining lease terms. The pre-tax
discount rates applied to the cash flow projection ranged
from 13.8% to 14.0% (2024: 14.4% to 16.0%).

Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 April RIUA—AREE

New leases HHEE

Accretion of interest (note 8) A4 RIS (H1EES)

Payments VBN

Revision of lease terms arising from AR HENEE
changes in the non-cancellable BARRE B M AR
period of leases HEET

Exchange realignment & 5 R

Carrying amount at 31 March

Analysed into: DT
Current portion 1S HRER 4D
Non-current portion REAER (D

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
38 to the financial statements.

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

14. #BE @)

FEBEREEAE)
(a) RAREEHE)

(b)

R=A=+—HERHE

RZZ-HF=A=+—A0 £EEE
BEEEHERRGYZSERDHE
BHER T ETRRBETENTES
o WESEEFEREEENTRES
o REZEMET  REAERERER
BB E I8 578 %1,890,000 T (ZZE =
EE) USEEFEAREEEAN
REABEEE-_Z-_HEE=HA=1+—H
1F B9 T Uk 21 < 4B iR 2= 78 %5 6,337,000
o FREEEBEENTEKESERER
BEREETEREN  ZERAEEN
FTEREREBESRERD  ZRERE
EARENREFRGESHRNGTEE
o EARBEESARERANTREEHE
513.8%E14.0% (ZZ=MF : 14.4%
£16.0%) °

HERRE
HESBREERZBNT :

2025 2024
—E-RHE —E_ME
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BHEFT
424,813 416,023
153,190 203,794
19,152 20,342
(165,654) (175,224)
(12,484) (22,414)
(1,715) (17,708)
417,302 424,813
118,519 118,374
298,783 306,439
417,302 424,813

A EE A 2RI S RN 38
IR o

EAkELEFRAT —Z-HFH
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31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)

(d)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

are as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities HEAERMNE
Depreciation for right-of-use assets  {FFAEEEITE
Expense relating to short-term leases ER4SHIFHEERAMNER
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE
Variable lease payments not AIEFHERTEE
included in the measurement EHEEENtER

of lease liabilities
Gain on revision of lease terms

arising from changes in the MEENHEEBT 2
non-cancellable period of leases Yz

RIESTHER SRS

Total amount recognised in
profit or loss

Variable lease payments

The Group leased a number of retail stores and units in
shopping malls which contain variable lease payment
terms that are based on the Group’s turnover generated
from the retail stores and the units in the shopping malls.
There are also minimum annual base rental arrangements
for these leases. The amounts of the fixed and variable
lease payments for the current year for these leases were
HK$165,654,000 (2024: HK$175,224,000) and HK$48,971,000
(2024: HK$33,755,000), respectively.

In the prior year, the Group had various lease contracts that
have not yet commenced as at 31 March 2024. The future
undiscounted lease payments for these non-cancellable
lease contracts were HK$12,329,000 within one year and
HK$30,710,000 after one year but within five years.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2025

14. #BE @)

REBEREBANE)
(c) RiEumPEREHERRIEEUT -

ET AR A SR EE

(d)

2025 2024
—E_FF —E_ME
HK$’000 HK$’000
B TFT BHEF T
19,152 20,342
163,035 157,788
55,266 114,770
1,890 -
48,971 33,755
(4,405) (18,263)
283,909 308,392
TEEEH

AEEAETHZEBERERAEERT
EEMANBY P ONEMELENEE
BAEHNISEERERANSEER
MEBYFOWEN - BLEHEME KK
WEEEAHES R - EEHEEEARE
ERERMNEERN A A ERIES Bl 5B
#£165,654,000 T (Z S M 4F : B
175,224,000 T ) & 7 % 48,971,000 7T
(== : #B#33,755,0007T) ©

REF  AEBEHABEBRNSER
EERE  EERAHENHEESEN
ARKFEHVERE-—FRBBE
12,329,000t © —FEREBERFRNEBE
30,710,0007T °
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14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(e) The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
options. These options are negotiated by management to
provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio
and they are aligned with the Group’s business needs. These
leases generally have lease terms of two to four years with
an additional extension period of two to three years. These
options were not included in the measurement of the lease
liabilities as of 31 March 2025 because it is not reasonably
certain that the leases will be renewed.

(f) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 32(c) to
the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties consisting of 12 (2024:
12) industrial properties in Hong Kong under operating lease
arrangements (note 13). The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$16,110,000 (2024: HK$16,196,000), details of which are
included in note 6 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2025, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

Within one year R—FR

R—FREMFRA
REFRE=FR
REFRENFR

After one year but within two years
After two years but within three years
After three years but within four years

After four years but within five years ROUFRERFR
After five years hER

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

14. #BE @)

REBERFREA(E)

(e) FEEEZETEELCHEEENEES
E - BLRERATEERRUREMRE
BHEESEASHNETYE - XAEFHR
BEAEEWEBER - ZEHIWAE
EEH-RB-ZME  WAILUEEINE
EME=F - HRHAESEREHAE
EESE Rt ELRERY RERE
R-B-HEFE=-A=+—AWNHEEAE

HEET o

(H HEBSHRHAECHERMERERHM
#£32(c) °

FEBERHBA
FEBRBESEHELRFALBETUREE
M1I2(Z2ZWE  12)ETERBFZREY
Z(MEE13) - MAKRTD—RERBEF LM
FRBEERAERRFERHSREMMFEHE
ERE - AEERFAER 2BE WA RBYE
16,110,000t (== = M4 : %% 16,196,000
7T) » R IEEN IR R MR o

R=F=-H2F=A=1+—R  FTEEREEX
PR 2 T A HEEEE 2 RRBEEREE
R EMEROT

2025 2024
—E_RF —E_ME
HK$'000 HK$°000
B TFT BEFT
13,356 14,461
7,953 4,882
1,014 2,436
1,014 654
1,014 436
1,521 -
25,872 22,869

EAkELEFRAT —Z-HFH
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31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

2 M

15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 15. EEIRE
2025 2024
—E-RE —E-NE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
At beginning of year READ 88,140 5218
Additions wE 211,197 69,176
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31) Yeig— M B A B (MaE31) - 15,076
Transfer to property, plant and EEYE - BERRZE
equipment (note 12) (KaE12) (218,139) (357)
Exchange realignment & 5 R (932) (973)
At end of year RER 80,266 88,140
16. GOODWILL 16. BHE
HK$°000
BT T
At 1 April 2023 R-E==FmA—Q 3
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31) Wi B — RE P /B8 A R (PYRE3 1) 18,530
Exchange realignment fE 5 R 46
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 R-ZZE-_WE=A=+—HEK
—ZE_FEMA—H 18,576
Exchange realignment B 538 % (108)
At 31 March 2025 A—E_HF=HA=+—H 18,468
At 31 March 2025 R-ZB-HE=A=+—H
Cost and net carrying amount AR EREFE 18,468
At 31 March 2024 R-ZEZMNF=A=+—H
Cost and net carrying amount EZZF&EE@FWE 18,576

Impairment testing of goodwill
The recoverable amount of the textile products cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation

using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 12.4% (2024: 12.5%).
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the textile
products cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period is 2.9%
(2024: 3.4%), which is the same as the long term average growth
rate of the textile products industry.
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ZRERERAUGFEZEREEEE - AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

GOODW.ILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
textile products cash-generating unit. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved by its fellow subsidiary immediately before the
budget year.

Discount rates — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant unit in Vietnam.

Growth rates — The growth rates are determined with reference
to the expected growth rates for the relevant unit, adjusted for
expected business, market development and economic condition.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development
of textile products industry and discount rates are consistent with
external information sources.

TRADEMARKS

BA K ARE{E

Cost and carrying amount

Trademarks are regarded as having indefinite useful lives because
the products with the trademarks are expected to generate net
cash flows indefinitely.

Impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives
Trademarks are allocated to a group of retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and accessories cash-generating units for
impairment testing.

The value of trademarks with indefinite useful lives is assessed
annually by using the relief-from royalty method. The recoverable
amount of the trademarks was equal to the future royalty savings
resulting from ownership of the assets.

16.

17.

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

[k 30 )

HENRENR(E)
HRERNRLELENEABEIERAS
BRR o LTS EEE AR g TR ERER
SRS RBIAFKE 2 S ERRERR

BEHEEHE - BREE IR TREEAE
WEERRANEESARNEA D RERE
A —ERFERNTHERE -

HEE-FRAZERERRREREELEN
ERENBREZEERR -
BRE-FRAZBRESEREEMNER
BRE . UHRBEHER  HEREREERR
M{EH A

DIKRHBERTED SERRMRENERE
RRERAVEIE - BEIMEREE R 2 -

e

2025
—E-RHE

2024
—E-ME
HK$000
BEFT
33,293

HK$000
EBETFT

33,293

BERER AR ES E A F R AN ZE
BENERUESHELRESFRA

BREAFHBRNBENR
AR BEERRSY2ZERDHA—E
REEEBEMERERR

ERERATFHBENEESFUENENEE
fhEt - BRI E S HEESEREEREEMN
EIERARRERE o

EAkELEFRAT —Z-HFH
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17.

18.

TRADEMARKS (continued)

Impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives
(continued)

The key assumptions, including the royalty savings rate, sales
annual growth rate and pre-tax discount rates, used in the annual
impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives are
as follows:

17.

)
ERE A FHEENRERE)

ARERERFREEF AN EER
ROERROEE « HEFEEERHAE
EMT :

Royalty savings rate HRNEFHEER
Sales annual growth rate HEFRER
Pre-tax discount rates FiATBRIR =R

The sales annual growth rate is the average annual growth rate
over the forecast period. It is based on past performance and
management’s expectations of market development.

The royalty savings rate used is with reference to comparable
intangible assets and the related royalty fees that the buyers
typically pay for the use of such assets.

The pre-tax discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with
external information sources.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:

Unlisted investments, at fair value

Less: non-current portion

B SERENER

TREDED

Current portion

The above unlisted investments as at 31 March 2025 and 2024
were investment products issued by financial institutions. They
were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.
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18.

FEMIRE - EARE

1.5%
2.0%
14.7% - 14.9%

1.5%
2.0%
15.0% - 16.7%

FRANEEFEREATRABENTHOFER
=2 DERUERBAREEEHTSRREN
7 -
FANENERE RN ZRER-—REAZSE
BEMXNNALELEEREBERER -
Fir FR 9% A BE TR 2R TH B0 A 6 = BRAR B B8 A A9 4%
E R o

PEEFRHERNVEERIMERARE - -

BAREFABENERMEE

2025
—E-REF

2024
—EomE
HK$°000
BT

HK$°000
BT

BAREFABSNEREE !

29,654 38,524
(22,155) (22,752)
7,499 15,772

REBZRFR-ZZB-MNF=A=+—-H: £
MIFLHTREREMEBRITZREER - B
REZEERNEGNRERTERELAERFIE
XY BUtZERSEIBEARAIAEFAE
HNEMEE o
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19. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 19.

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

Debt instruments at amortised cost RE#EREANERTA
- Hong Kong —-&BE
— Elsewhere —Hhih =@

Sub-total NEF

Less: accumulated impairment W BEORE

Net carrying amount BREVFE

The debt investments at amortised cost represent investments in
listed debt instruments, with fixed interest return.

The investments had an aggregate nominal value of HK$64,793,000
(2024: HK$87,617,000), and bore interest at rates ranging from
4.70% to 8.75% per annum (2024: 1.60% to 8.75% per annum).
The amortised cost of the debt instruments at amortised cost
was computed as the amount initially recognised minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest rate method of any difference between the
initially recognised amount and the maturity amount.

REBEREANEBIA
2025 2024
—E_RF —E_ME
HK$°000 HK$’000
EETFT BT T
32,059 55,034
32,356 32,546
64,415 87,580
(63,452) (67,322)
963 20,258

ZERECHBERANEETAARENGEER
BEFz EHEKTIA -

ZEREMNS T HEE S B 164,793,000 T
(ZZ =M% : B%87,617,000T) @ FFI=E
RAT0% E875% (ZFZMHF : 1.60% =
8.75%) ~ MEMIEMANBEHE TR 2O
AN EDRNBERIN SRR ECEEN
A& BiESREERERFIRES DGR
REREIP A ST BN R HHEEG
o

EAkELEFRAT —Z-HFH
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31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

19. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST (continued)
The movements in provision for impairment of debt instruments
at amortised cost are as follows:

REA
FE, CR{E R E) 832 (Hzt6)

At beginning of year
Impairment losses/(reversal of
impairment losses) recognised (note 6)

At end of year RER

Included in the above provision for impairment of debt
instruments at amortised cost is a provision for certain individually
impaired investments of HK$63,452,000 (2024: HK$67,322,000)
with a carrying amount before provision of HK$64,415,000 (2024:
HK$72,581,000). An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of default with
published credit ratings. These impaired investments relate to
debtors that were in financial difficulties and were in default
in interest and principal payments and most of the balance is
expected to be irrecoverable.

The impaired debt investments were considered to have high
credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during the year
was therefore measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
losses. The increase in the loss allowance was due to increase in
credit risk of default in interest and principal payments.

20.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials =g
Work in progress &M
Finished goods SR
Consumables AR

Total
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19.

20.

BRE#ERANEEIEm®m)
ROBMERANGEE T ERERENEE N
T :

2025 2024
—E_FF —E_ME
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BHF T
67,322 63,571
(3.870) 3,751
63,452 67,322

ELMZEEERANEE T ARERETE
5 T EERIHRE IR E B1563,452,000T
(ZZ- M4 : #%67,322,0007T) » EEEA
BRTE {8 5581 64,415,000 (Z B MU4F : 8
#572,581,0007T) ° A& WS A B U A MHHY
ERFREZBENN TN - ZSCRENER
BEREBEBAREVERERZEETEE
FMERASBE @ B ASHHEELINE o

HEEBRERRAEASEARR - HitR
FRARRNBRBRRENBETENERE
RSB - BARBERMNZHRFSMA

SHENZARBLEH -
78
2025 2024
—E-FE —ZTME
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BT T
396,311 522,006
265,952 263,419
461,409 617,356
119,004 138,432
1,242,676 1,541,213
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables FEUBRTR
Impairment RE

Net carrying amount BRENFE
Bills receivable ERERE

The carrying amount of bills receivable approximated to their
fair value as at 31 March 2025 and 2024. Their recoverability was
assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors, and
the expected credit losses as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 were
considered to be minimal.

Payment terms for the Group’s customers mainly range from
“cash before delivery” to “90 days from the date of invoice”. A
significant portion of the customers trade with the Group under
documentary credit terms. The Group seeks to maintain strict
credit control on its outstanding receivables and has a policy to
manage its credit risk. Since the Group'’s trade receivables relate to
a large number of customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of

the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance of HK$27,569,000 (2024: HK$25,140,000), is as follows:

Within 90 days 90H R
Over 90 days 90H Lt
Total =5

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

B R RE

2025 2024

—E_RF —E_ME

HK$000 HK$’000

BYTFT BHEFT

690,359 705,914
(27,569) (25,140)

662,790 680,774

269,397 242,003

ERZENREEEAR-Z_RAFR ==
“HOE=ZA=+—-HNAAERS - AR
MHRSZEBANEARRTEHN > R2F
THERZE-NE=R=+-BNREHEE
BEBERABLTEK -

REBEFIERPBEREE IZ[#ERA
HBHI0K | - ERAEREMD 2 L= AREAR
EBETRS - ARBHRRFIRER —ER
RERGENEEEERR - HRNAEBER
FEREERSER  BHIBERNEEEHR
[B o A EEE I E W IRR A RIS AEM
ERmEEREE  BUORARAIEME -

RI|EMR - LBEF AP RN AR ERE
27,569,000t (= Z Z U4 : ##25,140,000
T0) B ZBEURAIRE AATAT

2025 2024
—E_RF —EE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BYFT BT T
573,419 591,657
89,371 89,117
662,790 680,774

EAkELEFRAT —Z-HFH
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31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

AR R B8 ()
FEWERZOREIE A BENEHMT

21.

2025 2024

—E-REF —E-F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

At beginning of year READ 25,140 26,707
Provision/(reversal) of impairment (note 6) BIE,CRERD) (A1:76) 2,429 (1,567)
At end of year RER 27,569 25,140

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, product type and coverage by other forms
of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written
off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

Retail and distribution of casual apparel and accessories:

As at 31 March 2025

Current

=1

MBS B MR ABEEREETRED TG
ERMEEEE - BERDREASRUSE
BRZZEFF 2 MA@ A & (B
HEE - ERENUARAMEXERRRZE
EHEDD)FE o IR ERREARINE
HR ERCEBEBEERNRS AMHBBES
1B~ BAARR RARREER TR TS 2 &
HERAUEHRER - —RME - B S RURRM
BMERE-FRBAZRMNBENTES AT
LARSH o

T XEFIE AR B T E A B 2 R URRR
AREEERBZER
BREEHNzTERDH

R-B-—HF=A=+-8

Past due

=L

Less than
90 days
YCTIPS

Expected credit loss rate RHEEEER 0.00%
Gross carrying amount IREAE

(HK$000) (BHFT) 51,859
Expected credit losses JEHEEEE

(HK$°000) (BHFT) =

0.00% 44.60% 21.68%

13,471 61,814 127,144

(27,569) (27,569)
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Retail and distribution of casual apparel and accessories:
(continued)

As at 31 March 2024

Current
=8
Expected credit loss rate FEHEERFEER 0.00%
Gross carrying amount BREAE
(HK$°000) (BEFT) 49,966
Expected credit losses FEHEERIE
(HK$°000) CEETFT) =

21.

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

R R EiE (%)
ERRHY-BERH : ()

R-B-mFE=A=+—H

Past due
B2EH

Less than Over

90 days 90 days

SNCTIPS HiBIOK
0.00% 47.83% 18.72%
31,781 52,558 134,305
- (25,140) (25,140)

Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and garments:

As at 31 March 2025, the gross carrying amount of trade
receivables measured at amortised cost for this segment was
HK$563,215,000 (2024: HK$571,609,000), of which the expected
credit loss was minimal.

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

B IEREED

Less: non-current portion:

- long-term prepayments —REFEMRIE
- long-term rental deposits - REHSES
Current portion TENER D

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits
and deposits with suppliers. In situations where no comparable
companies with credit ratings can be identified, expected credit
losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record. The loss rate is adjusted to
reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The loss rates applied as at 31 March
2025 and 2024 were minimal.

22.

FANRIE -~ AR EMERIRK

SHET - ROREKZESRER

A—EBZRF=ZA=1—H ko ENEEHE
5 RS HY B L AR R BR D 4B 5 7B 5 563,215,000
TT(ZZ =4 : #B#571,609,0007T) @+ HFTE
HEEBBRLREK -

FANRR » S &R HE AL EW AR

2025
—E_FRE

2024
—EoNE
HK$°000
BT

HK$°000
BT

314,314 314,371
(14,260) (21,764)
(21,834) (78,280)
278,220 214,327

B RAMBRERRERIEHERERATH#
EEzzE - REEEABEENR AL
EBRARZBERT - A2EELERTEER
BERUGTRBEEER - ZBRRET
R DU BRE B AR O R Y AR SRAR AR (408
M)z R-ZB-HAFR-ZF-_WF=A
=+ - HNBRABBERETEAMTRE

EAkELEFRAT —Z-HFH
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23.

24,

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward currency contracts: RHNEEH :
Assets BE
Liabilities afE

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts
to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of non-
hedging currency derivatives amounting to HK$3,854,000 (2024:
HK$2,333,000) were credited to the statement of profit or loss
during the year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits with original maturity
within three months when acquired

Time deposits with original maturity

RERRITER
AT A=A A AEIHz
EHFR
RETZA=EANERHz

over three months when acquired E BT
Total a5t

At the end of the reporting period, the above balances include
cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") of
HK$422,540,000 (2024: HK$322,826,000) and Vietnamese Dong
("VND") of HK$18,918,000 (2024: HK$7,320,000).

RMB in Mainland China is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China ‘s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

VND is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under the Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations
and the Law on Foreign Investment in Vietnam, the Group is
permitted to exchange VND for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time and structured deposits are made for periods
less than or equal to one year depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time and structured deposit rates. The bank balances,
time and structured deposits are placed with creditworthy banks.
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ISR MIEE

TTHEERMIA
2025 2024
=S —EmEF
HK$000 HK$000
BETFT BEFT
6,222 444
3,830 4,839

FEECHEITZENFEEIETERNE
HIESHUEEAERRAR - RER - R
BERPNENFHPIESTEEEND R
BIg% 5 E13,854,000T (ZE -0 F : B
2,333,0007T) °

RERBEEEY
2025 2024
—®-nF —EopE
HK$’000 HK$°000
EEFT BETFT
625,222 456,082
1,005,960 401,650
2,225 697,370
1,633,407 1,555,102

REERR U EEBEEUARBREEE
HH RS RIBITERD B HHB%422,540,000
TT(ZEZ Y45 : #$#322,826,0007T) K& E#
18,918,000 7T ( = & — [ & : & # 7,320,000
JT) °

ARBRPBERETEEAHGIREMER o R
o RIEPERENIEETERRIREE - &
ERNVEEERE AEEREEBRREL
BHINEEB ZBITEARBHBDHEMER -

MEENTAHLREMER o A - RIE®
FAEERNERERIIBEIREE  AEBEE
BEEREEEIEXB 2 RITHBREERR
REMEY -

RITFRRES ARTERRNEZRIVT B2 X
FE - ERREBEERZFRMA—FRU
T BFAEEZARREFRME  WRE
EHERRERBEFRFIRREFL - RITE
o EHRERUEEREREERFIRT



25. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

P& BRER

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 90 days
Over 90 days

Total

At the end of the reporting period, the trade payables are non-

90H K
90H K £

interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms.

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Other payables
Accrued liabilities
Contract liabilities

Provision for reinstatement costs

Total

Less: non-current portion

Current portion

HAESERR
FEEtEfE
aBRaE
EERARE

At

B IEREE D

RENER D

Other payables and certain accrued liabilities are non-interest-

bearing and have an average term of three months.

25.

26.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2025 —E—-F#=HA=+—H

FEAS BRX

2025 2024
—ERHE

—EBoOE
HK$°000 HK$°000
EBETFT BT

503,436 573,470

REBEHR - RBEHH 2 B RRIRE DT
wr

2025 2024
—E-REF —E_ME
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
461,516 545,165
41,920 28,305
503,436 573,470

REEHR - BARABEMER —RBIOK
HRRE o

HttERERRRESAE

2025 2024
—E-REF —ZE-mE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BEFT

32,993 142,040
234,726 236,744
(a) 8,626 8,117
(b) 11,294 13,517
287,639 400,418
(13,927) (7,691)
273,712 392,727

HitENIRA NS TR REREME - B
HERAA=EA -

BAESEERLT —S-HEH @



©

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2025 —E=-#AF=H=1+—H

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 26.

Hitb B AR K BET BE (@)

(continued)
Notes:

(a) Details of contract liabilities as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 are as
follows:

EE

() R-E-HBFER-FE-_MNE=F=+—HZ
BRIEEFEWT -

31 March 31 March 1 April
2025 2024 2023
—E-HEF b 113 —B-=F
Er=[ mA—H
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT

=H=+—H
HK$’000
BT

Advances received from customers WEF T

— Sale of goods —HEER 6,661 6,499 11,535
Customer loyalty programmes EE BT E 1,965 1,618 6,992
Total a5 8,626 8117 18,527

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver
goods and customer loyalty programme reward points. The increase
in contract liabilities in the year ended 31 March 2025 was mainly
due to the increase in short-term advances received from customers
in relation to the sale of goods and the increase in customer loyalty
programme reward points. The decrease in contract liabilities in
the year ended 31 March 2024 was mainly due to the decrease in
short-term advances received from customers in relation to the sale
of goods and the decrease in customer loyalty programme reward
points.

(b) The movements in the provision for reinstatement during the year
are as follows:

EHEECIEBX T E RN AT %
BEREFRHTEZEERS - REZ=F
CHEF=A=F—HIEFEASHEGBEA
12 FEHRAEELSHEEFKRERZ
SRR B 0 URBES Bt E
ZHEBSEAIEMATE - REZE=—F=
F=ZF=+—HILEFERAESHEEHHH
L FEHRABELETEEF KWK
HHAEMAFEEL  URGBEFEHRTEZ
BEBSBIHLATH

(b) EERIBEEFAZBUT -

HK$000

BT T
At 1 April 2023 R-FE-=FmF—H 17,795
Addition during the year FRFIE 750
Utilised during the year FREH (5,028)
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 Ro-BEZF=F=+—HAR-ZE_[EH{E—H 13,517
Addition during the year FRFIE 2,250
Utilised during the year FEREH (4,473)
At 31 March 2025 R-FE-_ABF=A=+—H 11,294

Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements entered into
by the Group, the Group is required to return its leased properties to the
conditions as stipulated in the tenancy agreements at the expiration of the
corresponding lease term as appropriate. The provision for reinstatement
costs was estimated based on certain assumptions and estimates made by
the Group’s management with reference to historical reinstatement costs
and/or other available market information. The estimation basis is reviewed
on an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.
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RIEAEEE T FIREE AT 17 - A B
AREEEER EwR R R B YEER
EEHRBEMRA - EEEARIETIIRIF
FEMEEFSZEAEELTIR HEM
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31 March 2025 —E—-F#=HA=+—H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. MtESRITER

Effective Effective
annual annual
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$000
BIRFER= BIRERZE
(%) ] BEFT (%) FIHA BT
Current pink)
Bank loans-  #R{TER - 4.49-4.82 Within 1 year 539,424 2.44-5.51 Within 1 year 315,100
unsecured IR
R—FR R—FR
Non-current  3ERE
Bank loans-  #R{TEF— 4.75-4.82 2026 306,818 5.51-6.33 2025-2026 504,837
unsecured IR
—BoRE =Z2"H%F
—EORE
846,242 819,937

2025 2024
—E-RF —E_ME
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T JBIETF T
Analysed into: PE
Bank loans repayable: FEEZRITEN :
Within one year or on demand R—FRIIRER 539,424 315,100
In the second year REZFR 306,818 197,576
In the third to fifth year, inclusive RE=ZFHFR
(BREREREWSF) - 307,261
Total a5 846,242 819,937
As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, all bank borrowings are in Hong R-B_RER_FT_NME=A=+—8 " fr
Kong dollars, RMB, United States dollars or Vietnamese Dong. BRITERDAEBE - AR¥ - Zxgiiim
E o
As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group's banking facilities RZB-HFER-_S-_NF=A=+—H ' &
were supported by corporate guarantees from the Company and EEMRITEENBAEARTIRET OB LT
certain of its subsidiaries. EH D EER -

BAESEERLT —S-HEH @
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. RIEBIIE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEARE

Withholding tax Depreciation
on the distributable allowance in
profits of the Group's excess of related
PRC subsidiaries depreciation Right-of-use assets Others

ASENRERELT BLABRRRRN

A RERNRNSRE HESHE ERREE At
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
R ZICME CECEE CTCMF CECREE CECME CECREE CSCME CECRE CECRE
HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Bfr  B¥tn BT BEFn B¥Tn BETn E¥Fa BETn BETn EETa
At beginning of year REH 66,457 64,153 22,366 2,630 34,806 30,994 4,952 9,032 128,581 126,809
Deferred tax charged(credited) ~ EARNERRDHE/
to the statement of profit or (mE)wEEsE
loss during the year (note 9) (H9) 2417 2,304 (2839 (2935) (23%) 5,647 (488) (291) (3,300 2,105
Withholding tax on repatriation ~ #EIMELAELFIEH
of earnings from subsidiaries B8R

in the PRC (40,787) - - - - - - - (40,787) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-BHELR
(note 31) (Ha31) - - - 329 - - - - - 329
Exchange realignment EfHE (5) - (1) (558) (381) (1,835 1 (1,169) (434) (3,562)
At end of year REX 28,082 66,457 19,356 22,366 32,035 34,806 4,587 4,95 84,060 128,581
Deferred tax assets BEEMIEEE

Losses available
Unrealised losses/(gain) for offsetting
Inventory losses due to on derivative against future
a fire accident financial instruments taxable profits Lease liabilities

BASGERN frEEBIA TRfEEHERK

EfFEX AEREE/ (h&) ERBENNER HEER
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
“ECRE CECME CBCRE CECNE CECRE CECME CECRE CECME CECRE CEOME
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
BETL  EEFr  BETn BEfr BEFn BEfn BEFn BETn EEFn BETa

At beginning of year RER] - 6,010 646 1,073 19,845 29,19 46,013 42,669 66,504 78,948
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ERRERERTML/
to the statement of profitor (k) ELH A

loss during the year (note ) (##29) - (5,751) 38 (624) 12870 (197)  (2201) 586 10,707 (8,506)
Exchange realignment ERHE - (259) (1,195) 197 (247) (1,384) (461) (249) (1,903) (3.938)
At end of year RER - - (511) 646 32,468 19,845 43351 46,013 75,308 66,504
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position EERIEEEFEE
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RES TR RRAERH
consolidated statement of financial position EEBIEEEFEE

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$495,338,000
(2024: HK$497,829,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in
Mainland China of HK$1,393,777,000 (2024: HK$1,421,410,000)
and in Vietnam of HK$129,014,000 (2024: HK$17,246,000) that
are available for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which losses arose for maximum periods of
five years and five years, respectively. Deferred tax assets in
respect of tax losses of HK$402,811,000 (2024: HK$478,380,000),
HK$1,304,873,000 (2024: HK$1,218,392,000) and HK$129,014,000
(2024: HK$17,246,000) arising in Hong Kong, the Mainland China
and Vietnam, respectively, have not been recognised as they have
arisen in subsidiaries for which no assessable profits are expected
to be generated in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
deductible temporary difference totalling HK$203,883,000 (2024:
HK$228,025,000) as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the above items can be
utilised.

28.

RERE BRI R AR
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EEBLIE ()

REREMTS  ETECHEEERAEE
REIBRRRAIER - UTBRBBREIH
S WA EEEER A AN

2025
—ERHE

2024
—E-ME
HK$000
BHEFT

HK$000
EBETFT

32,468 19,845
(41,220) (81,922)
(8,752) (62,077)

AEBEBREBELEZHEEFEBABY
495,338,000 ot ( = & — W F : B ¥
497,829,0007T) © ZEELEBEBEEBNW AR
A4 PR HA(E FARZ S5 18 FRAFIR 88 B 18 2 FEER B &
F o REBMUPBEAFERBEEE 2BEFBE
2 B EB%1,393,777,000T (ZE=H4F : 8
#51,421,410,0007T ) & 7% 129,014,0005T (=
TPULE : EB#517,246,0007T) ¢ REELR
BEEMNARAFEAZEEREREBZEE
EESREFREFANERTUER - BNE
HZEMBARNIT RERTEEEERFUE
o RAEB PEAERYEEEZHES
B2 Bl A58 % 402,811,000 T (ZE =94 :
75 478,380,0007T ) ~ 5 1,304,873,000 7T
(ZZB 94 : 78%1,218,392,0007T ) K 781
129,014,0007T (== =4 : &#517,246,000
T0) MEFE R IEE B W B THERR ©

AR A EHE1203,883,0007T (ZE =P :
7#228,025,0007T) (AT IR B B M ZERE R 7R
RELEBEEE  BAAWRATKAUEESR
8 E A B AR A o

EAkELEFRAT —Z-HFH
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28. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 28. EEBIE (=)
The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed AEBMRZERFERERINHBLATEZ
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of ZENF-A—HEEENEBRIFTED KRR
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. The applicable rate is 5% EEENBENSR AEENERABIES
or 10% for the Group. At 31 March 2025, the Group did not have 5%%K10% c RZZE-_RE=A=+—H ' &
unprovided withholding tax (2024: Nil). SEEVWHEABEENRE(ZS-NE | £) -
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment AATEMERRIKEZRE  WRBHEMA
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. BB R 2 BR -
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. B
Shares ZER
2025 2024
—E_FF —E_ME
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETT BT T
Authorised: SETE -
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each 2,000,000,0004% = B2 EHI{E
in nominal value 7B#£0.057C 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
1,381,696,104 shares of HK$0.05 each 1,381,696, 104 Z R HEE
in nominal value 7B#50.057T 69,085 69,085
30. RESERVES 30. f&&

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company and the then nominal value of the issued share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition, as a result
of the reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the
Company’s shares in 1992.

The Group's capital reserve represents the difference between the

consideration for the acquisition of a non-controlling interest and
the corresponding carrying value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 30 November 2023, the Group acquired a 100% interest in
Ecotextile (Vietnam) Company Limited (“Ecotextile”) (formerly
known as Fashion Time Viet Nam Limited) from Fashion Time
Vietnam Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability. Ecotextile is engaged in manufacturing of
knitted fabrics in Vietnam. The acquisition allows the Group to
broaden its production base to reduce its geopolitical risks and
at the same time create a flexible and more diversified business
development environment. The purchase consideration for the
acquisition was in the form of cash, HK$606,871,000 paid at the
acquisition date and the remaining HK$7,804,000 was paid on 31
May 2024.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Ecotextile as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

31.

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

EBaot

R-ZZEZ=Zf+—-A=1H  A&EH@
Fashion Time Vietnam Holdings Limited(—
BREBEMAILNERLR) WERMSHE
B (#iE) AR 2 = (TR ) (AT Fashion
Time Viet Nam Limited) 100%#&#5  FI#kR
MrEtBH A HNRE - RXAKEABAE
EEBEREEE N  BEBEBUEER - B
RRAIEEERES TENEBEREREE - %
BWENAERRE BHURESE B
606,871,0007T * &R T K #7,804,000TE
R-ZB-MNERA=+—HXf -

R BB 2RMa BRI EEREE A AEN
T

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition

AW B
BRZARE
HK$000
BT T

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Construction in progress

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total identifiable net assets at fair value
Goodwill on acquisition
Satisfied by:

Cash
Consideration payable

W -~ BERRME 363,537
FREEE 175,586
EEIR 15,076
& 32,331
FEURBRTR 4,687
FEMFIE ST R EMERERER 40,502
BeRIBITEE 10,690
FE(SERR (28,871)
Hith B IRF K BT B E (14,164)
FEREEE (3,229)
BRARBENEZAHRIEEFEEEE 596,145
g 2 e 18,530
RATH AL :
Be 606,871
EHRE 7,804
614,675

The gross contractual amounts of trade receivables and deposits
and other receivables were HK$4,687,000 and HK$40,502,000,
respectively, none of which is expected to be uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$3,771,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are
included in other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

BUERRITSRAMERERNAENE
¥5 7 Bl B % #5 4,687,000 7T & % # 40,502,000
7T BHEETRE A o

REERLBBELER S RABHE3,771,000
T o ZRGHEAEARAMZ L AGEER
R2HMER -

EAkELEFRAT —Z-HFH
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31.

32.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of

31. ¥B56t®)

WERMNIRERZDTMT

Ecotextile is as follows:

HK$000
BT T

Cash consideration BHERE (606,871)
Cash and bank balances acquired EBRERIBITER 10,690
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash st AREEZSHFBREREZ

flows from investing activities RERRESEYRLFHE (596,181)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in cash flows AR EZEIRSRENUKEE

from operating activities R A (3,771)
Total net cash outflow FEESR LA (599,952)

Since the acquisition, Ecotextile contributed HK$82,983,000 to
the Group’s revenue and caused a loss of HK$17,246,000 to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2024.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2024 would have been HK$5,441,927,000 and
HK$97,360,000 respectively.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$153,190,000 (2024: HK$203,794,000) and
HK$153,190,000 (2024: HK$203,794,000), respectively,

in respect of lease arrangements for premises.

(i) During the year, the Group had non-cash
modifications to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of HK$8,079,000 (2024: HK$4,151,000) and
HK$12,484,000 (2024: HK$22,414,000), respectively, in

respect of lease arrangements for premises.

(iii) The Group recognised estimated obligations to
dismantle, remove and restore certain items of
property, plant and equipment of HK$2,250,000
(2024: HK$750,000) in respect of the premises under
operating leases in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment which had been recorded under other

payables and accruals liabilities.
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BWBUR  AHMRBEE-_Z_-_NF=A
St-HEFEHFEENRATRER
82,983,000 T Kk ¥ AR B W 4R B 1R B ¥
17,246,0005T °

WEHERBE_Z-_NF=A=+—HL
FEVET AEEBEE-_Z_MNF=A
ES+—HLEFEZRARGBINED B A B
5,441,927,0007T & #%£97,360,000.T ©

RERERBRMEE

IBHBRERS

() FER FAEERDENERER
BmE BEAEEERASR
BEZIREBTD R DB
153,190,000 7T ( = & = [0 £ :
7 M 203,794,000 7T ) R B ¥
153,190,000t (=2 Z M4 : &
#203,794,0007T) ©

(a)

RER  AEEFRMENEER
BmE BEAEEERASR
EEZHFREBRIBHBE
8,079,0007T (=R Z M4 : B
4,151,000 7 ) & 78 %5 12,484,000
T(ZE T4 ¢ j8%522,414,000
JT) °

(ii)

AEERAEEYE BERRE
HREHSEBET ZYERIS
THE BRERSZHEELE 2
SRR BRREREMETEE
2,250,0007T (= Z =N : B
750,0007T) © BEARIELEAI AR
FIER MRS IR R BT EE -

(iii)



32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b)

(9]

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

At 1 April 2023

Changes from financing cash flows

Interest paid classified as financing cash
flows

New leases

Revision of lease terms arising from
changes in the non-cancellable period
of leases

Interest expense

Repayment of interest-bearing bank
borrowings

New interest-bearing bank borrowings

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024

Changes from financing cash flows

Interest paid classified as financing
cash flows

New leases

Revision of lease terms arising from
changes in the non—cancellable period
of leases

Interest expense

Repayment of interest-bearing bank
borrowings

New interest-bearing bank borrowings

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2025

Total cash outflow for leases

R-ZZZ=FDMA—A
RMERHELE 2B
ENFESERRME

BER

HHEE

E TR SR E B M
EENEEER]

MEXH
EEMERITERN

i S 4R1T
RN

REZB-ZME=A=+t—-HRK
—E-MNFEMA—H
METDHELEZEH
ENFESEARME

IE;ﬁl}lb
oS

B AR AEREE M
EENEEER

Uéﬁﬁ
B RIRITER

i ERITER
[ERTIE

RZE-_HF=A=+—H

(0

The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated

statement of cash flows is as follows:

Within operating activities

Within financing activities

REFEBA
BMEFBA

(b)

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

32. HEBEEHRERMZT @)

RETDELEZAERS

Interest-

Lease bearing bank
liabilities borrowings
HESE M ESRITER
HK$000 HK$°000
BT BT T
416,023 431,688
(154,882) -
(20,342) -
203,794 -
(22,414) —
20,342 -
- (2,082,685)

- 2,472,330
(17,708) (1,396)
424,813 819,937
(146,502)

(19,152) -
153,190 -
(12,484) =
19,152 -

- (3,557,853)

- 3,528,708
(1,715) 55,450
417,302 846,242

HERSRHEE
@ﬁFmAﬁ§m§%¢ﬁEﬁémﬁ
BEMT :

2025 2024
“E-REF —E-E
HK$000 HK$°000
BETT BETT
104,237 148,525
165,654 175,224
269,891 323,749
BRERERRAT —ZF-AFRK
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. HEEE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not RBER - UTHREEBRNRIIERRPE
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: #:

2025 2024
—B-RE —T-mE

HK$°000 HK$°000
BT JBETT

Bank guarantees given in lieu of property REERNEZREZ

rental deposits IRITHER 5,128 7,345
34. COMMITMENTS 34. EARMEE
The Group had the following contractual commitments at the end AEBNRERRBUTRYE R MERIE

of the reporting period:

2025 2024
“E-EHEF —EEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Property, plant and equipment BYE  BERREE 23780
{BRIERE 32,823 123,601
35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BEALIRS
(a)  During the year, the Group had the following related party (@) RER > AEEBETUTEEALR
transactions: 5

2025 2024
—E-RHE —EWE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BYFT BT T
Rental expenses paid to related MEEQ R
companies HeEA (i) 11,818 17,765
Note: iz
(i) Rental expenses were paid to related companies, of which a (i) HEEBHRE FEEL AIERHG
director of the Company is also the director and beneficial BERPEAEZHE L A EERE
shareholder, for the provision of director’s quarter, a retail £ FEFIHREZIFL  ZERA
outlet and a training centre for certain subsidiaries in Hong REEREmBRRIABARA]Z— L
Kong and Mainland China. The directors considered that the BE -FEIRBAZHEIREH
monthly rentals were charged based on the prevailing market BELE#FTHZ TS BISETE 114
rates at the dates of entering into the tenancy agreements. CEEFZHLEAEGITRESH
The rental expenses of the director’s quarter was included 2 WHIRGBEHREMZT

in the directors’ remuneration as detailed in note 7 to the
financial statements.
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

On 28 March 2024, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company
controlled and wholly owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director, executive chairman and controlling
shareholder of the Company, to lease Tianjin Bin Jiang Fu
Shi Commercial Building at 282 Bin Jiang Road, He Ping Qu,
Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet for the retail and
distribution of casual apparel and accessories business of
the Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April
2024 to 31 March 2026 at the monthly rent of RMB494,270.
During the year, the Group paid to MRL operating lease
rentals in respect of the above property of HK$6,348,000
(2024: HK$12,134,000).

On 28 March 2024, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”),
a company controlled and wholly owned by Mr. Poon
Bun Chak, an executive director, executive chairman and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease a property
located at 22 Perkins Road, Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong
from Latex as a director’s quarter of the Group for a term of
two years commencing from 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2026
at the monthly rent of HK$400,000. During the year, the
Group paid to Latex operating lease rentals in respect of
the above property of HK$4,800,000 (2024: HK$4,800,000).

On 28 March 2024, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"),
a company controlled and wholly owned by Mr. Poon
Bun Chak, an executive director, executive chairman and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Room
4207B, 42nd Floor, Metroplaza Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong
Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong as a
training centre of the Group and a car parking space from
WLEL for a term of two years commencing from 1 April
2024 to 31 March 2026 at the monthly rent of HK$55,832.
During the year, the Group paid to WLEL operating lease
rentals in respect of the above property and a car parking
space of HK$670,000 (2024: HK$831,000).

The related party transaction in respect of rental expenses
paid to related companies above also constituted
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

35.
(b)

31 March 2025 —E=AF=H=+—H

BEALRS @)

RZZE-WME=ZA=+NH  KEEHHE
LWEBARERARTLE D (BERAF
BITES T ERRERRFENE
EERGNREERE)BITHESR
L E AME R AP B R RN EET
E282 R IBETIRETE - EALRE
BEERKHNEERDHEBNSE
T - HEH—_ZT_WFENA—HZE
“E-XRE=ZA=+—H " AHEWE
SRHEEAARYAL94,2707T - RAE
Ao AEER LR EDILE L
EIHEH$8%6,348,000T (= 2=
£ : 78%12,134,0007T) °

RZZ-_MNE=A=+NB  &x5H
BYEEB)ERAT(ILE] (BAE
AFHITES  ITEFERERBRE
WESEZRHIRZERE)ETHES
B EMEARNRESEE L EER
BERHENYE FAFEE—EERE
E2A HEHH-_"ZS-_MFMA—H
E-Z_XF=A=+—-A0 - AHm
F - 5 A2 AE%400,0007T ° B
FR - RNEER LAY ED LB FE
& &£ 78%4,800,000T(=Z =
& : 78%4,800,0007T) °

RZZ-MNE=A=+NB  £~5H
B EECERRAT(TKEE] (A
AATRPTES - T EERERBR
BWELEZRHREERE)FIHE
EE - EKEEARE BT A HES
#8223 5% ST AP 15 55 — R 424242078
2 EAEREENEIIF LR —EFE
o HEHRA_Z-_NENE—HZ=
ZE-RE=ZR=+—H AHRE 8
B & A8 %55,8327T c RANER » &
SER DY EREEEKE RS
KSR SE%670,000T(ZE =M
& : j8%831,0007T) °

BEEARXNNESERTER LT
BAFEAENFERERS -

RAERERRLAT —T-RFRH
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35. BEALRS @)
() Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: () XEBEZTEEIEAETE :
2025 2024
—E_FF —E_ME
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Short term employee benefits EHEEET 43,547 29,411
Post-employment benefits BBz EA 36 18
Total compensation paid to FEEEABR
key management personnel E2a Bk 43,583 29,429
The key management personnel of the Group refers to the AEENTEEERASNARRARWHAIT
executive and independent non-executive directors of the EERBIFHTES ©
Company.
Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in EEMSFIBHN B IRRMELT -

note 7 to the financial statements.
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31 March 2025 —E—-F#=HA=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

RERAIMNEMIA
REBEHF - SESRMTAREENT |

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets SREE
2025 —E-RF

Financial Financial

assets at

assets at fair
value through
profit or loss cost Total

amortised

BRAREFA
BENESHEE
HK$'000
BEFT

REBHRAK
WEREE ait
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BEFT

Trade receivables FEUBRTR - 662,790 662,790
Bills receivable EREE - 269,397 269,397
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEREARE TR
deposits and other receivables HittEWER A2 SREE = 140,847 140,847
Debt instruments at amortised cost REBERANETR IR - 963 963
Financial assets at fair value through profit BAREF ABEN
or loss SREE 29,654 = 29,654
Long-term rental deposits EfeEe = 21,834 21,834
Derivative financial assets fTESRMEE 6,222 - 6,222
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBSEEY - 1,633,407 1,633,407
Total a&t 35,876 2,729,238 2,765,114
2024 —E-ME
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BORERA  REBHERAK
BRNESHMEE HemEE &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
JBEF T BT JBEFT
Trade receivables FEURBRER - 680,774 680,774
Bills receivable EWREE - 242,003 242,003
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEREARE - FTER
deposits and other receivables HitEWERRAZEmEE - 72,359 72,359
Debt instruments at amortised cost REBERANEREIR - 20,258 20,258
Financial assets at fair value through profit BARESABEN
or loss eREE 38,524 - 38,524
Long-term rental deposits KRS - 78,280 78,280
Derivative financial assets TTHEEREE 444 - 444
Cash and cash equivalents REeRBATEEY - 1,555,102 1,555,102
Total &5t 38,968 2,648,776 2,687,744
EAEREFRAT —Z-HFR



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R =E

31 March 2025 —E_-H#F=F=+—H

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 36.

Financial liabilities
2025

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accrued liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

Total

2024

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other

payables and accrued liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Total

REREINERMIE®)

cRBaE
—E-RE
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost
RE #eH
RAR/BERA A
BRNLREE SRBE &zt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BT T BT T
FETERRR - 503,436 503,436
BRENEMEMNRRR
EEBrRzEmans - 80,535 80,535
fTEeREE 3,830 - 3,830
Mt SSRITE R - 846,242 846,242
HEEE - 417,302 417,302
ast 3,830 1,847,515 1,851,345

—EImE
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost
RE
BRARMBEIA BRASHY
BRNEHEE A=l &%
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
FESBRRR - 573,470 573,470
BRENEMET IR R
EitaErRzEmas - 189,142 189,142
fTEemas 4,839 - 4,839
Mt SERITE R - 819,937 819,937
HEAE - 424,813 424,813
a% 4,839 2,007,362 2,012,201
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

37.

31 March 2025 —E=H#=f=+—H
ERMTRAZAAEER
AEBEHTAZREERAAE(REES

HARBAREMEE 2SI AR Ho
T :

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE ARE
2025 2024 2025 2024
—E_REF —E_ME —E_REF —E_ME
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BYFT BHF T BEFrT BHEFT
Financial assets SRIEE
Derivative financial assets PTHEEMERE 6,222 444 6,222 444
Financial assets at fair value BN REFT BRI
through profit or loss SRIEE 29,654 38,524 29,654 38,524
Total a&t 35,876 38,968 35,876 38,968
Financial liabilities SREaE
Derivative financial liabilities TTEEmas 3,830 4,839 3,830 4,839

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, bills receivable, short-term
debt instruments at amortised cost, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade payables,
current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings, and
financial liabilities included in other payables and accrued
liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of long-term rental deposits, non—current portion
of interest-bearing bank borrowings, and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accrued liabilities have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities, and were assessed to approximate
to their carrying amounts.

The Group's finance department headed by the financial
controller is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance department directly reports to the board
of directors. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the board of directors.

EEECHARERBSEEY - BUIR
BWRE - RECBERANEHNEL TR &
ERENRIER  TERAEMEUIRRAZ S8
BE  BARY  REHBOMEBRTERRE
ERAEMEMRRRETEEN 2 EREEN
DAAERAREERS  TEARLETAN
B HBSE o

REESES - FREBIDHMSRBITER
BENEGENRIRETFEERAZEREE
MR SO B TS5 R ER BRI & 2R AR5 Y B B LU
o FERBRSTHHAZIRERNTAZ
MEEBREHARRREREFNE - WEHEIRE
BA% -

REBRPBRAEREZHBEHEEREESH
TAAREFEZHERME - BEIEER
EESEH - NE-HRER - BEHITETE
TAEESSY  WREGEREAZEZEHA
B GERESSEERIE

EAkELEFRAT —Z-HFH
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37.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions
were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of debt instruments at amortised cost are estimated
based on quoted prices.

The fair values of the unlisted financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are derived from the latest transaction
prices, market prices or net asset value of the investee which
approximates to its fair value.

The fair values of the long-term rental deposits have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. Their carrying amounts
approximately to their fair values. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31
March 2025 and 2024 was assessed to be insignificant.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions. Derivative
financial instruments, including forward currency contracts,
are measured using valuation techniques similar to forward
pricing, using present value calculations. The models incorporate
various market observable inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward currency
contracts are the same as their fair values.
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FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 37. €RIBEZ2 A ARESEHKE)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRIIBAEENERITENAREES
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: &
Assets measured at fair value: RARBEFENEE :

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2025

R=B-AF=A=+-HHNAAEFERA

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RIER DN X
s ATEEY TR
HE BWABE BABE
(B—#%) (B=#%) (B=8) e
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
EB¥FT BETFT BIF T EBE T
Derivative financial assets TEEmERE - 6,222 - 6,222
Financial assets at fair value RAREFABRN
through profit or loss THEE - 29,654 - 29,654
Total CHI - 35,876 - 35,876

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2024
R-E-WE=A=+—-BHNQAEFTERA

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RER EDN EN
H35HY AN TN
RE WAZE WABE
(€2 ) (58=#%) € =) ]
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
BT BT T BT BT
Derivative financial assets PTEEmERE - 444 - 444
Financial assets at fair value RAREFABEN
through profit or loss THEE - 38,524 - 38,524
Total a5 = 38,968 - 38,968

BAESEERLT —S-HEH @
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37. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 37.
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

EMIBEZAREBESERE)

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2025
R-B-HF=A=+—HNAAENERA

Quoted

prices in

active

markets

(Level 1)

RER

M

HE

(B—#R)

HK$'000

BETT

Derivative financial liabilities TEEmEs =

Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
DN DN
AEEN FABEN
WABE BWABE
(8= (B=#R%) 2]
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BEFT BETFT BETT
3,830 - 3,830

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2024
R-Z-ME=F=+—-HNAAETERAE

Quoted
prices in
active
markets
(Level 1)
R
k=4
HE
(E—H)
HK$°000
BT T

Derivative financial liabilities PTESmAas =

Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
E DN B8R
BN TRIEERN
BABIE BARIE
(B=#%) (=8 #z
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT BEF T

4,839 = 4,839

As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Group had no
financial instruments measured at fair value under Level 3.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level
3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2024: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives,
comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash and bank
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables,
bills receivable and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The Group also enters into various derivative financial
instruments, including principally forward currency contracts.
The purpose is to manage currency risks arising from the Group's
operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivative financial
instruments are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using an
appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debts. To manage
this mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group may enter into
interest rate swap contracts to reduce its exposure to interest rate
fluctuations.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax and equity (through the

impact on floating rate borrowings).

2025 —EB-HE
Hong Kong dollar ke

Hong Kong dollar ke
United States dollars EVH
United States dollars =T
Vietnamese Dong WEE
Vietnamese Dong WEE
2024 —E-NF
Hong Kong dollar e

Hong Kong dollar B
United States dollars ET
United States dollars ET
Renminbi AR
Renminbi AR

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 52% (2024:
42%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the operating units making the
sale, whilst nearly 33% (2024: 28%) of costs are denominated in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
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BRRAREEBERBE@#)

FRER(F)
TRERTEEERMEEGEEBHERT @ &
S B HBRBADER R R S R IR A=
2B (EHIEERNZE) WHR -

Percentage Increase/
point of (decrease)
interest rate in profit
increase/ before tax
(decrease) and equity
BRBiAT
MEEHEH s Fl R R 2
#in, GRd) #in, (GRd)
% HK$’000
BT T
1 (5,044)
(1) 5,044
1 (2,942)
(1) 2,942
1 (476)
(1) 476
1 (3,836)
(1 3,836
1 (3,286)
(1) 3,286
1 (1,078)
(1) 1,078

SN R

TEBFEXSERAR  ZRBRRELEE
L GZEE I ThREE ME AP 2 B M IEATSH E SR X
B8 o REEMNS52% (=T INE : 42%) 2 HE
DUREBNRER I EREE R
#33% (ZZ U4 : 28%) Z AT LAE 2
IhREE M LN EHMELEE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax and the Group’s equity (due to changes

in the translation of monetary assets and liabilities).

38.

31 March 2025 —E-—##F=H=+—H
BRRBREERERBE#)

SRR ()

TRERTRRERR - EREMAEHMEZE
BERT - AEE A BRBLATER R AR E R
BHEERTRENARBERZE (ANEY
HEEMREELNZE) NSRRI -

Increase/
(decrease)
Increase/ in profit
(decrease) in before tax
HK$/RMB rate and equity
B AR BRBLAT
E =@M, g )T
CR4) #n, (Bd)
% HK$°000
BE BT T
2025 —E-RE
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB o B HARMERE 1 4
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB {384 5 A R FHE (1) (4)
2024 —E-UF
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB B ARBRE 1 75
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB {384 5 A\ R FHE (1) (75)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group'’s policy that only well-established
customers will be considered for open account terms and the
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, bills receivable, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
debt instruments at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, long term rental deposits and derivative
financial instruments, arises from default of the counterparties,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments, which is considered by the directors as not significant
as the counterparties of these other financial assets are mainly
well-recognised corporations.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21
to the financial statements.

FERR
FEEEEYRAGFERFZE=ZERS - &
SECzBERARZRARFER 2FFHILR
HIRF - RETERZEEFRRERF ° 1o
REEFEBERBUGIESS  WEEAZ
SRARRERS o

AEBHMERNEE(BRRAERASEE
7 BREE  BERBANIR - fI& kA
YRR AZEMERE  REBERARNER
TR gAREBEFABSENEREE - REHA
ERSURMTESRTR) ZEERABREAR
SHFENMELE  BesRBESENZETA
ZEREE - ARG EMERMEERZHFETE
AREEAREERFZHE  AUESEARZ
ZRBIETERX o

HRAEEEEERREERFZE=ER

2 BMWEERREMIERME

HitERAEEmE R BV RAELENEER
2 BILER S RBE R BI|RMEE21

EAkELEFRAT —Z-HFH
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. B EMTSEEERBE #)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EERK(E

Maximum exposure and year-end staging BAERR FLEIER

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum THREIRERNEB EEREZEEEERE
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which REERBR(ZTERBAPERLRMELY - BRIEH
is mainly based on past due information unless other information tERATEZEFETVERNERE L ZER
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging TES) UE—_E-_RER_FE_ME=A
classification as at 31 March 2025 and 2024. The amounts ST —HZFHERBRIN - 228 RE
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets. MEELREME -

31 March 2025 ZE-HFZA=t+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
EH
FEEE AEAEHEREESE

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—RER F-ER FSER BHEEX =)
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBFT BEFrT BETT BETT EETFT

Trade receivables* FEUBRFR* - - - 690,359 690,359
Bills receivable =R 269,397 - = - 269,397
Financial assets included in BIEATERFIE -

prepayments, deposits and AR E MR

other receivables BRAAZERERE 140,847 - - - 140,847
Debt instruments at amortised b7 mE: . £iz)p%:N: 0]

cost (= =] - - 64,415 - 64,415
Long-term rental deposits RifE2%ZS 21,834 - - - 21,834
Cash and cash equivalents HEREESZEEY 1,633,407 - - - 1,633,407
Total 55 2,065,485 - 64,415 690,359 2,820,259

31 March 2024 —ENE=BA=1+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
FEHA
EEEE A A HEREEEE

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—RER SRR F=RER O BEERX RE
HK$’000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BETFrT BT BT  BEFrT

Trade receivables* FEWBR TR - - - 705,914 705,914
Bills receivable EREE 242,003 = = - 242,003
Financial assets included in BERBMARE -

prepayments, deposits and ek HAiREWER

other receivables HAZERERE 72,359 = = = 72,359
Debt instruments at amortised cost 3% T LAY

ERTE 14,999 - 72,581 - 87,580
Long-term rental deposits REHEESZRSE 78,280 - - - 78,280
Cash and cash equivalents BERBLSEEY 1,555,102 = = - 1,555,102
Total 55 1,962,743 - 72,581 705,914 2,741,238
" For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * REF G ENE REEFEER  ER
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix BEEIERE 2 BRI BRI B IR A 221 -

is disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts and
bank loans. As at 31 March 2025, 64% (2024: 38%) of the Group’s
total borrowings would mature in less than one year.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

38.

31 March 2025 —E—-##=H=+—H
BRRBREERERBE#)

BN R
AEEEERFBRTEIRIRTERUSEE
AESHEEMREZIMENSYE K=
“HFE=ZRA=1+—H AEEHAEFRN64%
(ZZZ/UF : 38%) N —FREIHE -

FEBRBERANESHEE  RERRMBR

the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

XA EIHIER AL

wr

2025
—E-HEF
3to
On Lessthan less than Over
demand 3 months 12 months 1 year Total
==
RER =Z@BAUR +t=@BR BB—F a5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT BETT EBEFr BEFT BETT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings K E$R{TER - 338,608 222,192 312,785 873,585
Trade payables FEATERFR - 461,516 41,920 - 503,436
Financial liabilities included in BIENE A ETERR
other payables and REFTERBERZ
accrued liabilities SRiBE 8,090 26,159 46,286 - 80,535
Derivative financial liabilities rTHEEmAas - 3,830 - - 3,830
Lease liabilities HEaE - 34,673 96,825 426,351 557,849
Total CHI 8,090 864,786 407,223 739,136 2,019,235

2024
s
3to
On Lessthan less than Over
demand 3 months 12 months 1 year Total
=
RER Z@AMUR +t=—@AR ®BB—F &t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BEFr BETT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings [ 24R{TE =% - 123,516 226,513 536,911 886,940
Trade payables FEATERTX - 545,165 28,305 - 573,470
Financial liabilities included in BIENE A ESIRR
other payables and REFEERZ
accrued liabilities E@Aans 56,420 128,291 3,524 901 189,142
Derivative financial liabilities fTEemas - 4,839 - — 4,839
Lease liabilities HEEE - 37,101 97,109 409,986 544,196
Total S5 56,420 838,912 355,451 947,804 2,198,587
EAEREFRAT —Z-HFR
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to the ordinary equity holders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance.

The Group regards total equity as capital and manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
interest-bearing debts, less cash and cash equivalents, divided by
total equity. The Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at
an appropriate level.

BB
kR - RERBESEEY

Total interest-bearing debts
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Total equity BRER
Gearing ratio EXREELE
2 The gearing ratio was not applicable as the Group’s cash and cash

equivalents exceeded the Group’s total interest-bearing debts.
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BRRAREEBERBE@#)

BERERE
FEBEREEEDERAEEERFENZ
EheD - RNBEBRENEREESES U
EEBERMEESIRADE -

AEERAERAEANEBEREBURIR
BSESRNEESELRE - REBA BB
ARERRRBORE - BRRBBERHH
THRURESAAREREE - RBEE=Z
THFE=RA=ET-HRZE-NE=A=1+-—
HIEEER  EASHENEE - BEREFIL
| o

FEMEREABBLLEEZES  EXEE
LERFNGRERREEEWROBH EEH
PROVBERSTE - AEENBR EHEERFER
BEERNEGEKTF -

2025 2024
—E_FF —E_ME
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYTFT BHF T
846,242 819,937
(1,633,407) (1,555,102)
(787,165) (735,165)
4,769,169 4,792,565
N/A* N/A*

BEEBEETER  HAEENREZRELEEYA
RAEBEATBHT D ET -
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSET
Investments in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments and deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITY
Other payables and accrued liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS
Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital

Reserves (note)
Proposed final dividend

Total equity

FRBEE
RHBARZRE

RBEE
ANRERT £
RERBREZEY
BRBEE

RBAE
HitE SRR R B A E

BERE
FE
BEBTIRA
TG =)
BRRHR S

39.

BRI T

RABRBEBR 2P BRRRERNT ¢

2025 2024

—E_FF —E_ME

HK$000 HK$°000

BYTFT BHEFT

2,034,153 2,117,021

242 207

232 218

474 425

146 214

328 211

2,034,481 2,117,232

69,085 69,085

1,882,494 2,020,513

82,902 27,634

2,034,481 2,117,232
EXkEREFRAT —Z-HEFR
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

40.

COMPANY (continued)
Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

At 1 April 2023

Total comprehensive income
for the year

2023/2024 interim
dividend paid

2023/2024 proposed final
dividend

At 31 March 2024 and
1 April 2024

Total comprehensive income

for the year

2024/2025 interim
dividend paid

2024/2025 special interim
dividend paid

2024/2025 proposed final
dividend

2024/2025 proposed special
final dividend

At 31 March 2025

R-ZE-=FWA—H

REERERARE

—E-=/"%N
FEFHRE

=®==/=2-[
FERKARBARE

R-T-mE
=A=+—HEK

R-E-MFENA—H

AEEZEW AL

=B-MN/—%=F
FEFHRE

ot S 111 [ el S
FERATHRE

ot 11! [l Sk
FERRRERKRE

—B_N/—%=F

FERSBIRBRE

N-_TBE_RF
=A=+—A

39. RAMBARR T E)
Miat -
AR EIFEHELT -
Share Capital
premium redemption Contributed Retained

account reserve surplus profits Total

RA IRA
HERR W E BHER RE BT R
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
it B FT B FT B FT BT T BT T
703,365 1,695 48,708 1,363,185 2,116,953
- - - 279 279
10 - - - (69,085) (69,085)
10 - - - (27,634) (27,634)
703,365 1,695 48,708 1,266,745 2,020,513
- - - 151 151
10 - - - (13,817) (13,817)
10 - - - (41,451) (41,451)
10 - - - (13,817) (13,817)
10 - - - (69,085) (69,085)
703,365 1,695 48,708 1,128,726 1,882,494

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the

Company and the then combined net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired on the date of acquisition, as a result of the
reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the Company’s
shares in 1992. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), a distribution may be made out of the contributed

surplus under certain circumstances.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 12 June 2025.
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